# Annual Report 2019-2020





Shri Santosh Kumar Gangwar, Union Minister of State for Labour and Employment (Independent Charge) lighting the lamp while inaugurating 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week.



Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, President NCUI giving a momentoe to Shri Bhupesh Vaghel, Chief Minister, Chattisgarh during Central Zone Conference.

### GOVERNING COUNCIL MEMBERS OF NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA (As on 31-03-2020)



Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, MP President



Dr. Bijender Singh, Ex-MLA Vice-President



Shri G.H. Amin Vice-President



Shri V.P. Singh



Shri V.R. Boda



Shri Balvinder Singh Nakai



Shri H.K. Patil, MLA



Shri K. Sivadasan Nair, Ex-MLA



Shri S.N. Sharma,



Shri D.S. Thakur



Shri Swarna Kamal Saha, MLA



Shri Kiran Kakati



Shri R.G.N. Mule



Shri Pramod Kumar Singh



Shri Gurpratap Singh Khushalpur



Shri Rajender Singh Negi



Shri Jyotindra Mansukhalal Mehta (Govt. Nominee)



Shri T. Prasad Rao Dora Co-opted Member



Shri N. Satyanarayana Chief Executive

# **ANNUAL REPORT 2019 - 2020**



#### NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA

3, SIRI INSTITUTIONAL AREA, AUGUST KRANTI MARG NEW DELHI-110 016

Phones: 26512750, 26861472, 26861988, 26565146

Fax: 011-26865350/26863248 E-Mail: mailncui@india.coop website: www.ncui.coop

# ANNUAL REPORT

2019 - 2020

## CONTENTS

Ch	apter	Page	No.
	Report of the Governing Council of NCUI		i-iii
1.	Management and Administration National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI)		1
2.	Cooperative Education		3
3.	General Cooperative Policies		69
4.	Information Technology		70
5.	Publications, Publicity and Public Relations		71
6.	राजभाषा का विकास		73
7.	International Relations		77
8.	Brief Reports of National Level Cooperative Organisations		92
9.	Important Activities of State Level Cooperative Organisations		102
	Appendix		
	List of Members of the NCUI Governing Council		117

### Report of the Governing Council of NCUI

#### **Dear Fellow Cooperators,**



n behalf of the Governing Council of National Cooperative Union of India, I have the pleasure in placing before you the Annual Report of NCUI for the year 2019-20.

During the year under review, the NCUI continued to function as nodal agency of the Indian Cooperative Movement. Its main objectives are to educate, guide and assist its member organizations in strengthening the cooperative sector. A brief report relating to various aspects of cooperative development during 2019-20 is as under:

#### Membership

At the close of the year, there were 268 cooperative organizations representing various sectors of the cooperative movement as members of NCUI. In the year 2019-20, 16 new members have been enrolled, out of which two are dormant for more than two decades.

#### Meetings of the Governing Council

During the year, four meetings of the Governing Council were held. Besides this, three meetings of the Executive Committee were held. Matters relating to administrative and financial management of NCUI, and various issues confronting the cooperative sector to make it strong and vibrant were discussed in the meetings.

#### **Cooperative Education**

The National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE), New Delhi organised 204 training programmes against the target of 80 programmes during the year, including a 12 week Diploma Programme in Cooperative Education and Development. All the important and emerging sectors/ areas like skill development, women, dairy, consumers, service coops, tourism coops, digital technologies, etc. were covered in the training programmes. 6894 persons from various sectors of the cooperative movement, in different states, were trained. The syllabus of Diploma Programme on Cooperative Education and Development was upgraded and more paid programmes were organised during the year. Emphasis was placed on organising training programmes for strengthening relatively weaker sectors like labour, fishery, tribal cooperatives, handloom and handicrafts etc. 47 such programmes were organised for weaker sector cooperatives. Due to the important role played by women in the development of cooperatives, 36 programmes were organised exclusively for women participants. Under the Coop Connect Programme, training programmes for Kendriya Vidyalaya School Teachers were held at Delhi, Thiruvananthapuram, Shimla and Jaipur.

#### **Cooperative Education Field Projects**

During the Year 2018-19, the NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects including North-

East and Women Projects conducted wide ranging programmes on various issues of cooperative development. Under UDS projects, new societies registered during the year were 15, and the number of persons benefitting from income generating programmes were 11525, while 1377 SHGs were formed with 18,734 members. Under the Cooperative Education Field Projects (North-Eastern State), new societies registered during the year were 30, and number of SHGs formed were 66, while number of persons benefited under income generating scheme were 654. The women projects also progressed on all fronts including increase in number of SHGs, total membership, etc.

#### **General Cooperative Policies**

A Zonal Conference was organised for Central Zone States on Challenges and Opportunities for Cooperatives on 27th July, 2019 at Indira Gandhi Krishi Vishwavidyalaya, Raipur in which cooperative representatives from the states like Chattisgarh, U.P., M.P., Uttarakhand, etc. were present. The conference was inaugurated by Chattisgarh, Chief Minister Shri Bhupesh Vaghel. The conference came up with wide-ranging recommendations for strengthening the cooperative movement in the region like implementation of schemes and programmes by cooperative societies, active involvement of women and youth in the activities of cooperatives, etc. Several cooperative institutions approached NCUI regarding the issues faced by them. NCUI examined the issues received and extended all possible support to them in solving their problems.

#### **Public Relations and Publications**

The 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week was organised from 14<sup>th</sup> to 20<sup>th</sup> November, 2019 which was inaugurated by Shri Santosh Kumar Gangwar, Union Minister of State (Independent Charge) Labour and Employment, Government of India. An attractive poster designed on the theme was printed and distributed to all the cooperative organisations. A Special Issue of 'The Cooperator' was brought out on the occasion. NCUI continued to publish 'The Cooperator' a monthly magazine carrying articles, features, success stories and news and views related to various issues of cooperative development. 'Indian Cooperative Review' a research journal containing case studies on various sectoral issues of the cooperative movement was regularly published. A National Workshop on "Cooperatives: A Key Partner in Skill Development and Employment Generation" was organised in which Manish Kumar, Managing Director, National Skill Development Corporation was the Chief Guest. In a major initiative NCUI was involved in preparation of NCUI Vision Document 2030, a comprehensive document highlighting future growth strategy of NCUI.

#### **International Relations**

NCUI in collaboration with ICA-AP organised an International Workshop on "Enhancing Gender Equality in Cooperative Business" on 20-22 August 2019 at NCUI, Delhi. The International Day of Cooperatives was organised by NCUI in collaboration with ICA-AP on 6th July, 2019 by organising two events viz. Symposium on the theme "COOPS 4 Decent Work" and Children Picture Contest competition in which Jagdishwar, Goburdhun, GOSK, High Commissioner of Republic of

Mauritius was the Chief Guest. An International TOT Programme on Training Techniques for Trainers of Cooperatives and Rural Financing Institutions was organised by NCUI and CICTAB, Pune from 2-6 December, 2019 at NCUI. Besides visit of delegations of various countries to NCUI, the visits of representatives of Indian cooperatives to other countries through participation in many international fora provided a good opportunity for them to share, as well as exchange views on various issues of cooperative development.

#### Acknowledgments

Our sincere thanks and gratitude to the Hon'ble Minister of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Minister of State for Agriculture, Cooperation & Farmers Welfare, officials of the Department of Agriculture & Cooperation for their cooperation and the support given by them, both in the form of Grants and otherwise. We also express our thanks to the representatives of NCDC, International Bodies like ICA, IRU, ILO, NEDAC and FAO, different Ministries, Members of Parliament, State Legislatures and all such prominent persons who took keen interest in the functioning of NCUI. Thanks are also due to the member institutions of NCUI, RCS of different States, State Cooperative Unions and other constituent members of NCUI for their valuable support towards achieving the organizational goals. Our heartfelt thanks to the officers and employees of NCUI for their hard work, dedication and commitment for achieving the objectives of the NCUI in the year of reporting.

On behalf of the Governing Council of NCUI

(Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav)

President

National Cooperative Union of India

#### CHAPTER - 1

# MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA (NCUI)

#### **MEMBERSHIP**

The membership of National cooperative Union of India (NCUI) is open to national cooperative societies, state cooperative unions, state level cooperative federations and multi-state cooperative societies. At the beginning of the year, the membership of NCUI comprised of 262 cooperative institutions. These institutions represent different sectors of the Indian Cooperative Movement.

During the year 2019-2020, the following cooperative institutions were admitted as members of NCUI:

- 1. Uttarakhand Pradeshik Cooperative Union Ltd.
- 2. Karnataka State Basaveshwara Suddi Madhyama Coop. Fedn. Ltd. Bangalore
- 3. Jharkhand State Cooperative Bank Ltd., Ranchi
- 4. Karnataka State Cooperative Fisheries Federation Ltd. Mysore (Karnataka.)
- 5. Hapur Kisan Bahuuddeshiya Multi State Coop. Society Ltd. Hapur (U.P.)
- 6. Indian Diversified & Sustainable Agriculture Coop. Ltd., Varanashi (U.P.)

Thus, at the close of the year, there were 268 member cooperative institutions of NCUI, as shown below:

1.	National Level Cooperative Societies	17
2.	State Cooperative Unions	29
3.	Cooperative Unions of Union Territories	04

4.	State Cooperative Marketing Federations	17
5.	State Cooperative Banks	21
6.	State Cooperative Land Development Banks (Agriculture and Rural Development Banks)	10
7.	State Cooperative Consumer Federations	07
8.	State Cooperative. House Building/Housing Finance Societies/ Federations	06
9.	State Urban Cooperative Banks & Credit Societies/ Associations/ Federations	12
10.	Other State Cooperative Federations	:
	<ul> <li>Dairy/Milk Marketing</li> </ul>	05
	<ul> <li>Handloom/Spinning Mills</li> </ul>	11
	<ul><li>Sugar/Cane</li></ul>	03
	<ul><li>Fisheries</li></ul>	02
	<ul> <li>Miscellaneous</li> </ul>	24
11.	State Tribal Development Cooperative Corporations/ Societies/ State Cooperative Bank Associations	02
12.	Multi State Cooperative Societies	98

#### **MANAGEMENT**

## Management Organs of National Cooperative Union of India

The Management of National Cooperative Union of India is carried out by the following three

#### organs:

- General Body, which is comprised of delegates of the Member Institutions of NCUI.
- 2. Governing Council comprised of office bearers, elected and co-opted members.
- Executive Committee, which is a subcommittee of the Governing Council of NCUI.

#### **GENERAL BODY**

As per the provisions of the Multi State Cooperative Societies Act 2002 and the Bye-laws of NCUI, the General Body of NCUI is comprised of one delegate from each member institution. The Annual General Body Meeting of NCUI for the year 2018-2019 was held on 04th September, 2019 in the Auditorium of the National Cooperative Union of India. The General Body deliberated on various issues concerning the Cooperative Movement in the country.

#### **GOVERNING COUNCIL**

During the year under review, four Meetings of the Governing Council were convened on 30.04.2019, 26.07.2019, 04.09.2019 and 26.12.2019. The meeting of the Governing Council for the last quarter i.e. January to March 2020 had been scheduled to be held on 25th March, 2020, but had to be postponed as a result of the complete lockdown in the Country due to the Covid 19 pandemic. The Governing Council in its earlier meetings dealt with various subjects related to the development of the cooperative movement and for carrying out the activities aimed at fulfilling the objectives of NCUI as per its bye-laws.

#### **EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**

During the year under review, three meetings of the NCUI Executive Committee took place on 15.07.2019, 04.09.2019 and 19.01.2020. The Executive Committee dealt with matters related to the administrative and financial management of NCUI.





#### CHAPTER – 2

#### **COOPERATIVE EDUCATION**

## NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION (NCCE)

he National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE), New Delhi organised 204 training programmes including 12 week Diploma Programme in Cooperative Education and Development with 250% achievement against its target of 80 programmes during the year 2019-20.. The syllabus of the Diploma programme on Cooperative Education and Development was upgraded and more paid programmes were organised in this year. In all 6894 persons, from various sectors of the cooperative movement in different states, were trained. Of 204 training programmes, 47 programmes were organised for weaker sectors like labour, fisheries, tribal cooperatives etc. and exclusively for SC/ST cooperatives. 36 programmes were also organised exclusively for women cooperatives. The feedback of the participants is also taken into account while analysing of the impact of the training programmes conducted. NCCE had planned 25 - 30 more programmes all over India, but due to COVID-19, these programmes could not be conducted in the year 2019-2020.

Annexure I: Programme organised during 2019-20 (Data-wise)

Annexure II: Programmes conducted during

2019-20 (State-wise)

Annexure III: Programmes conducted during

2019-20 (Sector-wise)

COOPERATIVE EDUCATION FIELD
PROJECTS IN UNDER DEVELOPED STATES/
AREAS OF THE DEVELOPED STATES
OTHER THAN NORTH EASTERN STATES
AND WOMEN PROJECTS

#### 1. Introduction

As a special measure for strengthening the

cooperative movement in cooperatively under – developed states / areas and reducing regional imbalances in the level of development, the Government of India had in 1976 approved an NCUI scheme of Cooperative Education. This is a Central Sector Scheme funded by the Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare.

#### 2. Objective

The main objective of the Scheme is to develop and promote cooperative societies in project areas and through them to increase the productivity of farmer members and thereby improve their socio-economic condition.

#### 3. Approach

Intensive efforts for cooperative development through cooperative education combined with farm / technical guidance are the main ingredients of the project approach. The office bearers and members of project adopted societies are educated and motivated to implement the business development plans through their active participation in planning of business activities, operational management and most importantly evaluation. Self Help Groups are formed by the project personnel to facilitate micro - credit and sustainable income- generating activities. Formation and working of these groups is based on cooperative culture. All educational, farm guidance and developmental activities are linked with the business development plans of PACS / LAMPS adopted by projects for their overall development.

4. NCUI is implementing the Central Sector Scheme for the intensification of Cooperative Education through 41 Cooperative Education Field Projects including Women Projects and North Eastern Projects located in cooperatively under developed states / under developed areas of developed states and Union Territories as detailed below:

Zone	SI. No.	State	Project Location	No.
South	1.	Karnataka	Gulbarga (Yadgir) & Shimoga	2
	2.	Kerala	Thiruvanathapuram	1
	3.	A.P.	Vijayawada	1
	4.	A & N Islands	Port Blair	1
			-	5
West	5.	Goa	Panaji	1
	6.	Gujarat	Ahmedabad & Surendranagar	2
	7.	Madhya Pradesh	Raghogarh, Ujjain, Bhopal, & Ratlam	4
	8.	Chattisgarh	Raipur	1
			-	8
East	9.	Bihar	Hazipur & Arrah	2
	10.	Orissa	Khurda, Aska & Cuttack (Jagatsingpur)	3
	11.	W.B.	Raiganj	1
	11.	VV.D.	riaigarij -	<u>_</u> 6
North	12.	J & K	- Udhampur	
NOILII	13.	H.P.	Bilaspur & Hamirpur	
	13. 14.	n.r. Punjab	Bathinda &	2
	14.	runjab	Jalandhar	2
	15.	Rajasthan	Sawai Madhopur, Jhunjhunu, & Jodhpur	3
	16.	Uttar Pradesh	Pilibhit, Fatehpur, Baghpat, Jhansi, Deoria, Unnao & Sultanpur (Amethi)	7
			-	15
North	17.	Assam	Morigaon & Jorhat	2
East	18.	Manipur	Thoubal & Imphal	2
	19.	Meghalaya	Shillong	1
	20.	Nagaland	Kohima	1
	21.	Mizoram	Aizwal	1
			-	
			-	<u> </u>

#### 5. Project Activities:

The Project activities are divided mainly into 4 parts:

- Educational / developmental activities:
   Aiming at strengthening and developing
   cooperative societies with sound democratic
   character and strong financial base.
- Farm / technical guidance activities:
   Aiming at increasing farm production by adopting improved farm technology.
- Socio-developmental activities: Aiming at increasing functional literacy / adult education, better living conditions, health care, family welfare, drinking water facilities.
- Women development activities: Aiming at involvement of women in cooperatives as well as promoting women cooperatives exclusively and through them raising their socio – economic conditions.
- **6. Progress :** Project-wise activities, achievements and progress are given at annexure (IV to VIII).

# NCUI WOMEN COOPERATIVE EDUCATION PROGRAMME UNDER COOPERATIVE EDUCATION FIELD PROJECTS FOR THE YEAR 2019-20

NCUI's Cooperative Education and Development Programme for Women is run through its 43 Cooperative Education Field Projects of which 4 are exclusive women projects located at Shimoga (Karnataka), Aska Behrampur (Orissa), Bhopal (Madhya Pradesh) and East Imphal (Manipur).

#### 1. Progress

The progress of various activities, the formation of Self Help Groups and other educational / developmental achievements for the year. April 2019 to March, 2020 is given at Annexure IX & X respectively.

#### 2. Formation of Self-Help Groups

During the year under report 323 Self-Help

























Groups having membership of 4187 women were formed by the lady mobilisers of the cooperative education field projects A total of 4097 Self Help Groups with 45051 members have been formed since inception till date. The details of activities under the Women's Education Project is at Annexure-XI.

#### 3. Number of Beneficiaries

Through various income generating activities, 14759 women were benefited under this programme.

#### 4. Average income

On an average, each woman beneficiary was able to earn about Rs. 5000/- per month.

#### 5. Women Educated

During the year, a total of 68711 women were imparted education under various educational activities.

#### 6. Resource Mobilisation

The self-help groups were able to mobilize Rs 21262714 from their own savings during the year under report.

#### 7. Loan distributed

During the year, Rs. 807619719/- was disbursed as loan to members of self-help groups for taking up income generating activities.

## 8. Self Help Groups converted into cooperatives.

70 Cooperative societies have been registered under various State Cooperative Societies Acts of the members of self-help groups organized by NCUI cooperative education field projects.

COOPERATIVE EDUCATION FIELD
PROJECTS IN UNDER DEVELOPED STATES/
AREAS OF THE DEVELOPED STATES OF
NORTH EAST (N.E.)

#### Introduction

As a special measure for strengthening the cooperative movement in the North East and

reducing regional imbalances, the Government of India has been giving grants to NCUI under the Central Sector Scheme to operate six cooperative education field projects in the North East Region, which cover the under-developed areas of the region.

50% of the expenditure incurred on these projects is met through the grants received from the Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare and the balance 50% is met through the funds collected from the cooperative movement in the form of the Cooperative Education Fund.

#### Objective

The main objective of the scheme is to develop and promote cooperative societies in the project areas, to increase the productivity of farmer members, to inculcate the habit of thrift amongst the women members, to impart and develop skills to the women and youth members thus improving their overall socio-economic condition in the area. Each project is given activitywise targets to be achieved over the course of the entire year. The project activities include educational and training activities; farm/technical guidance activities; socio-developmental activities; and women development activities.

During 2019–2020 all the six projects being implemented achieved their set targets and objectives as per the overall guidelines. A total of 36095 participants were trained.

Activity wise and project wise achievements/ progress and highlights of special activities is placed at annexure-XII, XIII, XIV, XV and XVI.

## GENERAL COOPERATIVE EDUCATION PROGRAMMES/ SCHEMES CONDUCTED BY STATE COOPERATIVE UNIONS

In furtherance of its objectives to promote and develop the cooperative movement in India in accordance with cooperative principles, NCUI monitors cooperative education programes to popularise the principles and practices of Cooperation. The overall objective of the Cooperative Education Programme is to create enlightened, participatory and responsive membership and cooperative leadership; to improve the management efficiency of board

members and office bearers of cooperative societies; to provide and develop dynamic and forward looking leadership and to create cooperative awareness among the masses, particularly the youth of the country and the women.

Presently, three types of Cooperative Education Programmes are being conducted in the country – (1) General cooperative education programme for agriculture cooperatives implemented by state cooperative unions; (2) Sector specific cooperative education programme covering dairy, fishery, women, urban credit, consumer, housing, industrial, handicrafts, forest, and labour contract construction, marketing cooperatives etc. (3) Special cooperative education projects based on area development approach.

The target group of this programme consists of members and managing committee members of primary agriculture cooperative societies and Self Help Groups wherever they are developed by the concerned State Cooperative Union at village level. The programme is implemented by State Cooperative Unions through the adoption of two types of approaches namely; peripatetic approach and intensive approach (cooperative education and development scheme). Under the peripatetic approach, education activities are organised at society level through mobile cooperative education instructors and under intensive approach the cooperative societies in selected blocks and districts are adopted for overall development of cooperatives and the cooperative education of members. The education programme is dovetailed with the developmental activities in the area. A team of educational personnel is deployed to conduct the education programme on an intensive basis in an identified area. During the year under report, the NCUI continued to monitor the effectiveness of state cooperative unions All States were implementing cooperative education programmes with peripatetic approach.

Under the Cooperative Education Programme, the following main educational and developmental activities are included:

 Orientation Course / Classes for Secretaries/ Managers of PACS - 2 weeks

- Managing Committee Members Class 5 days
- Ordinary Members and Potential Members Class – 3 days
- Leadership Development Programmes 3 days

The activities of the CEDS aim at assisting local societies in :

- Increasing membership.
- Convening meetings of Managing Committee and General Body regularly with high attendance and securing active participation of members.
- Assessing credit and other inputs required on the basis of real planning of crops and preparing societies to enable them to fulfill the members' needs.
- Promoting repayment of loans in time out of marketing of sale proceeds through cooperatives / cooperative efforts.
- Enabling societies to move towards selfreliance, assisting them in preparing long term plans for mobilizing deposits and ensuring regular collection of deposits out of sale proceeds of crops.
- Developing farm /dairy/ poultry/ horticulture etc. guidance services on their own in due course.

During the year 2019-20, 7883 training programmes were conducted. In all,140113 persons were educated / trained including 49864 SC/ST participants and 42205 women participants.

Many of the state cooperative unions have diversified their education programmes and organised cooperative education programmes for other sectoral cooperatives as well. These programmes were conducted for many sectors such as. dairy, urban credit, fishery, industrial / weavers, marketing, labour contract and forest labour cooperatives, cooperative law etc. in the country's rural as well as the urban areas.

Some of the state cooperative unions like those in Himachal Pradesh and Kerala implemented special education programmes for SC/ST in selected area of the states. Additionally, some states organized classes/courses for SC/ST and backward community members / potential members as a part of the on-going Cooperative Education Programme. During the reporting year 2019-20, a total number of 102710 SC/ST persons and 100935 women were trained.

In response to the Government of India's 15 Point Welfare Programme for minority communities in the 40 identified districts, consistent efforts were made to cover minority communities under the

on-going cooperative education programme. The programme is being implemented through state cooperative unions and cooperative education field projects / units and the benefits of cooperative education programme are being provided to the minority communities.

During the year 2019-20, total 7883 courses have been conducted and 140113 persons were trained by the State Cooperative Unions of the states of Gujarat, Delhi, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Kerala, Tripura, West Bengal, Chhattisgarh and Assam, which conducted these programmes regularly.

SI. No.	Particulars	No. of Courses	Trained person	SC/ST	Women
A.	Educational Development Activities (in Primary Agricultual Cooperatives	)			
1	Course for Secretaries / Managers	608	7677	2744	1604
2	Courses for MCMs / Office bearers	2224	15440	3715	4566
3	Courses for Members / Potential Memb	ers 3074	34596	10621	11528
4	Courses for Leaders	284	5959	2489	1080
5	Meetings (General Body Study Circle Contact Meetings)				
B.	Educational / Developmental Activiti in Societies other than PACS	es			
1.	Agricultural Cooperatives	230	4149	1684	406
2.	Dairy Cooperatives	106	729	1275	1586
3.	Women	25	913	255	153
4.	Industrial Cooperatives	70	1276	927	858
5.	Urban Bank	13	1199	112	97
6	Consume Cooperatives	56	1774	242	183
7.	Cooperative Act	12	312	213	218
8.	Youth	314	12669	9861	7264
9.	SC/ST	216	9256	720	481
10	BDP	23	1161	538	364
11.	Adult Education	10	2069	1300	1579
12.	Fisheries	85	1625	825	340
13.	SHG	08	152	25	56
14.	Others (Family Welfare, AIDs etc.)	305	19822	9611	6438
15.	Seminars/ Conferences	105	15263	1625	2545
	Total	7883	140113	49864	42205

## FOR WOMEN AND YOUTH THROUGH STATE COOPERATIVE UNIONS

Cooperative Education Programmes for Women are being implemented through the state cooperative unions in the states of Arunachal Pradesh, Assam, Bihar, Delhi, Gujarat, Himachal Pradesh, Kerala, Karnataka, Madhya Pradesh, Manipur, Mizoram, Orissa, Rajasthan, Tamil Nadu, Uttar Pradesh and West Bengal. Cooperative education programmes/classes under this programme are being conducted by the lady cooperative education instructors in rural as well as in urban areas. The duration of these programmes varies from 1 to 7 days, which covers classes/ meetings for ordinary and potential women members of cooperative societies, managing committee members, office bearers and employees of women cooperatives etc.

During the year, April 2019 to March 2020, 1175 events were organised and as many as 46931 women were imparted knowledge in different areas in the various classes. The details of activities are mentioned below:

	Name of the Programme	Events	Partici- pants
1.	Programme for Housewives for their socio-economic development	203	9828
2.	Programmes for Managing Committee Members about functioning of society	214	5440

	Total	1175	46931
8.	Other miscellaneous activities	159	3726
7.	training/Course for Women Employees	153	7354
6.	Under Kheda Project (Gujarat)	95	3125
5.	Dairy Seminars	178	9303
4.	Seminars/Meetings/Shiviris on different subjects	55	4330
3.	Programmes for ordinary members on their role and responsibilities	118	3825
	Name of the Programme	Events	Partici- pants

The Youth Education Programme is being implemented as a part of the on going activity of the Cooperative Education Programme by the state cooperative unions. There is no earmarked staff for this programme. Cooperative education classes of one week duration for students and other youth in collaboration with the educational institutions and youth organisations, and youth rallies, camps, essay/drawing and painting/ and debating competitions are conducted. During the year i.e. April 2019 to March 2020, the number of events and youth participants imparted training is as follows:

No. of Events : 390

No. of participants : 23137

NCUI Annual Report 2019-20

ST Women OBC Other NE From To Yenu  1 41 23 11 6 02/04/2019 04/04/2019 NOC  2 2 25 7 5 15/04/2019 17/04/2019 NOC  0 3 13 9 0 22/04/2019 25/04/2019 NOC  0 29 0 0 0 25/04/2019 27/04/2019 SINOC  11 15 9 0 25/04/2019 27/04/2019 Bang  11 7 0 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019 NOC  New E		NAT <b>Program</b>	NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION Programmes organised during the year April, 2019 - March, 2020	ENTRE	FOR C	OOPERA	TIVE ED pril, 201	UCATIO	N :h, 202	0	Annexure - I
41 23 11 6 02/04/2019 04/04/2019 1 5 20 0 09/04/2019 11/04/2019 2 25 7 5 15/04/2019 17/04/2019 3 0 34 0 22/04/2019 26/04/2019 3 13 9 0 23/04/2019 25/04/2019 29 0 0 0 25/04/2019 27/04/2019 1 15 9 0 29/04/2019 27/04/2019 7 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019	Name of the Programme Total participant	Total participa	ant 	SC	ST	Women	OBC	Other	뷛	Date	Venue
1 5 20 0 09/04/2019 11/04/2019 2 25 7 5 15/04/2019 17/04/2019 3 0 34 0 22/04/2019 26/04/2019 3 13 9 0 23/04/2019 25/04/2019 29 0 0 25/04/2019 27/04/2019 11 15 9 0 29/04/2019 27/04/2019 7 0 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019	Leadership Development Programme 41 for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives of India	4		9	-	14	83	Ξ	9		NCCE, New Delhi
2 25 7 5 15/04/2019 17/04/2019 3 0 34 0 22/04/2019 26/04/2019 3 13 9 0 23/04/2019 25/04/2019 29 0 0 0 25/04/2019 27/04/2019 1 15 9 0 29/04/2019 27/04/2019 7 0 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs and Credit Societies of India	27		0	-	-	2	50	0	09/04/2019 11/04/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
3 0 34 0 22/04/2019 26/04/2019 3 13 9 0 23/04/2019 25/04/2019 29 0 0 0 25/04/2019 27/04/2019 1 15 9 0 29/04/2019 27/04/2019 7 0 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019	Leadership Development Programme for 29 Chairmen/ Directors of Fishery Cooperatives of India			0	Ø	Ø	52	_	2	15/04/2019 17/04/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
3 13 9 0 23/04/2019 25/04/2019 29 0 0 0 25/04/2019 27/04/2019 1 15 9 0 29/04/2019 27/04/2019 7 0 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019	Leadership Development Programme for 34 Chairmen/ Directors of T/C Society of Nepal Cooperators	8		0	0	ო	0	8	0	22/04/2019 26/04/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
29 0 0 0 25/04/2019 27/04/2019 1 15 9 0 29/04/2019 27/04/2019 7 0 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019	Leadership Development Programme for 25 Chairmen/ Directors of Multi State Coop. Societies of India	25		ო	0	ო	13	o	0		NCCE, New Delhi
1 15 9 0 29/04/2019 27/04/2019 7 0 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019	Leadership Development Programme for 29 Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperatives of Karnataka	83		0	0	73	0	0	0	25/04/2019 27/04/2019	CICOPA, Bangalore
7 0 0 6 01/05/2019 03/05/2019	Leadership Deveopment Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperatives of India	56		N	0	-	15	6	0	29/04/2019 27/04/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
	Leadership Development Programme for 26 Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Cooperative Societies of India			15	£	_	0	0	9	01/05/2019 03/05/2019	NCCE, New Delhi

Venue	CCM, Mehsana	NCCE, New Delhi	Sikkim State Coop. Union	NCCE, New Delhi	NCCE, New Delhi	JCTC, Raipur	NCCE, New Delhi	30/05/2019 IFFCO Plant, Phulpur	JCTC, Kolhapur	JCTC, Pune
Date 1 To	01/05/2019 03/05/2019	019 09/05/2019	13/05/2019 15/05/2019	13/05/2019 17/05/2019	019 20/06/2019	019 23/05/2019	28/05/2019 30/05/2019	019 30/05/2019	04/06/2019 06/06/2019	05/06/2019 07/06/2019
From	01/05/2	07/05/2019	13/05/2	13/05/2	20/05/2019	21/05/2019	28/05/2	29/05/2019	04/06/2	05/06/2
N N	0	9	8	0	0	0	4	0	0	0
Other	56	9	0	<del>1</del>	4	4	9	18	83	24
OBC	0	83	တ	2	9	88	53	_	∞	12
Women	12	37	28	Ø	က	0	0	α	-	2
ST	-	က	20	0	0	-	-	0	0	0
SC	80	2	-	α	-	α	9	2	α	က
Total	35	37	30	73	Ξ	35	42 is	30	32	39
Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for MPCS of Gujara	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperative Societies of Sikkim	Trainer's Training Programme for Cooperative Education Personnel of State/ Distt. Coop. Union & Faculty Members of JCTC of India	Certificate Course in Cooperation and Cooperative Management	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Handloom/ Handicrafts Cooperative Societies of Chhattisgarh	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperatives of India	Cooperation and Cooperative Management for Personnel of IFFCO	Trainers' Training Programme for CEIs of Maharashtra State	Trainers' Training Programme for CEIs of Maharashtra State
S S	6	9	Ξ	7	13	<del>4</del>	15	16	17	8

NCUI Annual Report 2019-20

	JCTC, Latur	DCU, Khandwa	NCCE, New Delhi	CCM, Jalpaiguri	JCTC, Akola	NCCE, New Delhi	APSCU, Vijaywada	NCCE, New Delhi	Sikkim SCU
0	10/06/2019 12/06/2019	10/06/2019 12/06/2019	11/06/2019 00/01/1900 N	11/06/2019 13/06/2019 J	17/06/2019 19/06/2019	18/06/2019 20/06/2019 N		25/06/2019 27/06/2019 N	01/07/2019 03/07/3019
	10/06/20	10/06/20	11/06/20	11/06/20	17/06/20	18/06/20	24/06/2019	25/06/20	01/07/20
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		88
	20	10	10	2	_	_	0	23	0
	ω	83	0	က	20	23	9	rO	17
	-	0	Ø	83	-	9	-	9	0
	0	9	0	0	0	0	0	-	=
	Ø	0	0	72	ω	9	2	10	0
	78	35	12	83	32	35	20	88	88
	Trainers' Training Programme for CEIs of Maharashtra State	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperative Societies of M.P.	Programme for delegates from Ethiopia, Bangladesh, Nepal (Role of NCUI in Development of Cooperative Management)	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of West Bengal	Trainers' Training Programme for CEIs of Maharashtra State	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/Directors of Fisheries Cooperative Societies of India	Trainers Training Programme for Cooperative Education Personnel	Leadership Development Programme on Digital Banking & Cyber Security for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs and T/C Societies of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Educated Unemployed Cooperative Societies of NE States
일	19	20	23	8	R	24	52	56	27

SI. No.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	N	Date From To	Venue
88	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Multi State Cooperative Societies of India	51	<del>=</del>	-	19	10	53	0	01/07/2019 03/07/3019	NCCE, New Delhi
83	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Madhya Pradesh	33	∞	N	31	9	Ŋ	0	04/07/2019 06/07/2019	JCTC, Indore
30	Leadership Development Programme Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of India	38	0	0	0	0	0	0	08/07/2019 10/07/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
31	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of West Bengal	31	83	0	31	Ŋ	ო	0	09/07/2019 11/07/2019	CCM, Jalpaiguri
32	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Seed Growers of Cooperative Societies of Madhya Pradesh	32	0	Ø	0	78	ß	0	11/07/2019 13/07/2019	CTC, Indore
83	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperative Societies of India	58	-	ω	8	Ŋ	4	0	11/07/2019 13/07/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
8	SBI Employees' (M.S. Patel) Coop. Credit Society Ltd.	83	N	N	10	10	19	0	13/07/2019 14/07/2019	Navi Mumbai
35	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperatives of Assam	30	4	<del>-</del>	30	2	20	8	16/07/2019 18/07/2019	JCTC, Guwahati
98	Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management for the Personnel of IFFCO Aonla Unit, Aonla (U.P.)	88	ო	0	0	4	21	0	18/07/2019 19/07/2019	IFFCO Aonla (U.P.)

Š.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women	OBC	Other	R	Date From To	Venue
1	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Kadaknath Murga Cooperative Societies of Madhya Pradesh	83	0	30	83	8	-	0	18/07/2019 20/07/2019	MPSCU, Bhopal
	Leadership Development Prpgramme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of Uttrakhand	30	9	0	30	0	24	0	22/07/2019 24/07/2019 Chaukhatiya	Chaukhatiya
	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of Uttrakhand	8	22	0	30	0	52	0	23/07/2019 25/07/2019	Bhikiyasen
	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fishery Coops. of NE States	32	58	0	0	-	Ω	32	23/07/2019 25/07/2019	Barpeta
	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Sugar Coops. of Maharashtra	40	22	0	0	-	æ	0	23/07/2019 25/07/2019	Warnagar
	Leadership development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Consumer Coopertives of India	51	ω	4	6	83	16	0	23/07/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
	Training Programme for Officers / Staff of UCBs of Gwalior	98	6	0	15	0	52	0	28/07/2019 00/01/1900	Gwalior
	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs & T/C Societies of Maharashtra	9	က	က	15	က	16	0	29/07/2019 31/07/2019	JCTC, Mumbai
	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCB's and Thrift & Credit Societies of India	47	N	-	9	6	24	0	31/07/2019 02/08/2019	NCCE, New Delhi

Name of	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	岁	Date From To	Venue
Leadership Deve Chairmen/ Direc Credit Societies	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Gujarat State Coop. Credit Societies	20	0	-	0	0	16	0	06/08/2019 08/08/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadershi Chairmen Cooperati	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Seed Growers of Cooperative Societies of Madhya Pradesh	98	0	0	0	24	5	0	06/08/2019 08/08/2019	DCU, Khandwa
Leadershi Chairmen of Societi	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperatives of Societies of Sikkim	27	0	S	0	23	0	27	12/08/2019 14/08/2019	Sikkim SCU
70th Sess for the ye	70th Session of Junior Basic Course (JBC) for the year 2019, Manipur	32	0	32	5	0	0	32	13/08/2019 00/01/1900	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadersh Chairmer Cooperat	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Odisha State Cooperative Union	16	N	-	ო	o	0	0	17/08/2019 19/08/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadersh Chairmer of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Coops. of India	36	20	16	7	0	0	9	20/08/2019 22/08/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadersh Chairper Coopera	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of Sikkim	25	<del>-</del>	<b>~</b>	25	17	0	25	20/08/2019 22/08/2019	Sikkim, SCU
Leadersh Chairper Coopera	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperatives of Jalpaiguri (W.B.)	8	24	0	8	-	o	0	20/08/2019 22/08/2019	CCM, Jalpaiguri
Study Visit Y from Taiwan	Study Visit Young Agriculture Ambassador from Taiwan	52	0	0	0	0	0	0	23/08/2019 00/01/1900	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadersk Chairper Coopera	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons / Women Directors of Credit Cooperative Socieites of Madhya Pradesh	89	9	ო	83	8	ø	0	27/08/2019 29/08/2019	JCTC, Indore

Venue	NCCE, New Delhi	JTC, Rajamundry	CSRM, Gujarat Vidyapith	CSRM, Gujarat Vidyapith	CCM, Rohtak	RICEM, Jaipur	NCCE, New Delhi	NCCE, New Delhi	CCM, Jalpaiguri
Date From To	26/08/2019 31/08/2019	27/08/2019 29/08/2019	29/08/2019 31/08/2019	29/08/2019 31/08/2019	03/09/2019 05/09/2019	06/09/2019 07/09/2019	09/09/2019 11/09/2019	11/09/2019 13/09/2019	11/09/2019 13/09/2019
뿐	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	_	0
Other	7	0	9	10	31	13	0	თ	ო
OBC	15	0	10	5	α	27	56	25	0
Women	10	82	4	9	-	5	7	84	38
ST	4	8	0	0	0	4	0	Ø	-
SC	8	62	-	10	-	Ø	o	0	33
Total	8	85	7	83	35	46	42	84	99
Name of the Programme	Refresher Course on Cooperative Policy and Development for Faculty of Indian Universities	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Cooperatives of Andhra Pradesh	Diploma in Cooperative Management at Gujarat Vidyapith, Gandhinagar (Gujarat) (Semester -3)	Diploma in Cooperative Management at Gujarat Vidyapith, Gandhinagar (Gujarat) (Semester -1)	Short term Training Programme on Cooperative Law Practice and Accounting Principles for Personnel of Cooperative Societies of Haryana	Training Programme for Kendriya Vidyalaya School Teachers of Jaipur Region	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperatives of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Cooperatives of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperatives of West Bengal
S. S.	26	27	28	29	09	61	62	83	4

Venue	NCCE, New Delhi	NCCE, New Delhi	CCM, Kalimpong	CCM, Rohtak	IFFCO, Paradeep (Odisha)	OSCB	NCCE, New Delhi	SCU, Bhopal	Telangana	CCM, Jalpaiguri
Date From To	12/09/2019 13/09/2019	16/09/2019 18/09/2019	17/09/2019 19/09/2019	17/09/2019 19/09/2019	19/09/2019 20/09/2019	20/09/2019 21/09/2019	23/09/2019 25/09/2019	24/09/2019 26/09/2019	24/09/2019 26/09/2019	24/09/2019 26/09/2019
ШZ	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other	24	20	0	0	17	တ	83	α	0	_
OBC	∞	9	-	17	9	7	9	50	0	ო
Women	15	4	∞	8	0	<del>=</del>		0	55	73
ST	0	0	0		0	-	0	0	55	0
SC	7	0	83	က	-	C)	-	0	0	19
Total	14	32	8	30	78	33	4	23	55	23
Name of the Programme	Training Programme for Kendriya Vidyalaya School Teachers of Delhi Region	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of T/C Cooperative Societies of Gujarat	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fishery Cooperative Societies of West Bengal	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Directors of PACS of Haryana	Programme on Cooperaiton and Cooperative Management for the Personnel of IFFCO Paradeep	Cyber Security Digital Banking and Cooperative Management the Personnel of Odisha State Coop. Bank	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Housing Cooperatives of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperatives of Madhya Pradesh	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Women Tribal Cooperatives of Telagana	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives of West Bengal
S. S.	92	99	29	89	99	20	7	72	73	74

ÿ Ş Ş	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women	OBC	Other	뿔	Date From To	Venue
75	Sensitisation Progrmme on Cooperatives for KV Teachers of Ernakulam Region	39	<b>o</b>	0	16	2	ω	0	26/09/2019 27/09/2019 Thiruv	19 ACSTI, Thiruvananthapuram
9/	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Central Apex level Cooperatives of A&N Islands	15	0	ო	4	O	0	0	26/09/2019 28/09/2019	RGCTC, A&N Islands
1	Certificate of Proficiency in Coooperative Management Session 2019-20 students of BPSMV, Sonipat	47	0	0	47	_	47	0	01/10/2019 02/10/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
28	Diploma of Proficiency in Cooperative Management students of BPSMV, Sonipat	16	0	0	16	ო	0	0	01/10/2019 02/10/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
62	24th Session of Diploma in Cooperative Education and Development	31	2	ო	10	4	0	0	03/10/2019 20/12/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperative Societies of West Bengal	33	24	0	0	N	2	0	06/10/2019 08/10/2019	CCM, Jalpaiguri
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Nalbari Distt. Cooperative Societies of Assam	32	ო	0	4	4	12	32	14/10/2019 16/10/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of A & N Islands	27	0	0	27	19	ω	0	16/10/2019 18/10/2019 A	RGCTC, & N Islands
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Consumer Cooperative Societies of Madhya Pradesh	36	ო	0	-	5	20	0	16/10/2019 18/10/2019	JTC, Khandwa
22	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Credit Cooperative Societies of Madhya Pradesh	34	Ø	=	31	1	0	0	17/10/2019 19/10/2019	MPSCU, Bhopal

Si. No.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	Ä	Date From To	Venue
82	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of SC/ST Cooperatives of West Bengal	27	27	0	27	58	0	0	23/10/2019 25/10/2019	CCM, Jalpaiguri
98	Leadership Development Programme for Personnel of Service Coop. Societies	30	0	0	0	0	0	8	29/10/2019 31/10/2019	Mizoram
87	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Haryana	32	ო	0	က	2	27	0	04/11/2019 06/11/2019	CTC, Rohtak
88	DoP & CoP Micro Finance Practices & Women Session 2019-20 at BPSMV, Sonipat (Haryaya)	32	9	0	35	4	52	0	04/11/2019 00/01/1900	NCCE, New Delhi
88	LDP for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coop. of West Bengal	8	8	4	0	0	0	0	05/11/2019 07/11/2019	CCM, Uttarpara
6	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of West Bengal	31	24	Ω	0	0	0	0	06/11/2019 08/11/2019	CCM, Jalpaiguri
91	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Non Agriculture Primary Coops. of A&N Islands	24	0	0	0	0	24	0	07/11/2019 09/11/2019	RGCTC, A&N Islands
92	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Women Tribal Cooperatives of Telagana	22	0	55	22	0	0	0	08/11/2019 10/11/2019	Telangana
93	Leadership Development Programme for PACS of West Bengal	52	0	0	0	0	0	0	11/11/2019 13/11/2019	CCM,
8	Management Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of VLEs	9	-	0	-	5	23	0	Kalimpong 13/11/2019 15/11/2019	NCCE, New Delhi

Venue	CCM, Jalpaiguri	RCU, Bishrampur, Palamu	RGCTC, A&N Islands	DCU, Mehsana	NCCE, New Delhi	MPSCU, Pune	CCM, Jalpaiguri	Balod	JTC, Dhaar	NCCE, New Delhi
Date From To	13/11/2019 15/11/2019	14/11/2019 16/11/2019	16/11/2019 18/11/2019	18/11/2019 20/11/2019	19/11/2019 21/11/2019	20/11/2019 22/11/2019	20/11/2019 22/11/2019	21/11/2019 23/11/2019	25/11/2019 27/11/2019	25/11/2019 27/11/2019
뷜	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0
Other	6	^	0	20	0	30		0	4	0
OBC	က	99	6	12	16	ω	-	20	99	0
Women	0	0	27	Ø	0	0	20	0	0	Ø
ST	0	15	0	0	_	0	8	_	0	0
SC	25	Ħ	0	9	4	10	-	Ø	4	0
Total	37	72	27	40 jarat	27	48	20	30	88	37
Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of West Bengal	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of Jharkhand	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of A&N Islands	Leadership Development Programme for 4 Chairmen/ Directors of Credit Coops. of Gujarat	Leadership Development programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops.	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Multi State Cooperative Societies of Maharashtra	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of UCBs and Tribal Coop. Societies	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Sugar Coop. Societies of Madhya Pradesh	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Coops. of Madhya Pradesh	Management Development Programme for VLEs
S. S.	92	96	97	86	66	100	101	102	103	104

Venue	2019 Mizoram	2019 CCM, Jalpaiguri	2019 NCCE,	Jelhi 2019 CCM, Rohtak	2019 Mizoram	1900 NCCE, New Delhi	2019 NCCE, New Delhi	'2019 Trg. Centre Rajkot	2019 Trg. Centre Mehsana	
Date Tom To	19 28/1	27/11/2019 29/11/2019	28/11/2019 30/11/2019	New Delhi 09/12/2019 11/12/2019	10/12/2019 12/12/2019	02/12/2019 00/01/1900	10/12/2019 12/12/2019	10/12/2019 12/12/2019	10/12/2019 12/12/2019	10/12/2019 12/12/2019
岁	90	0	0	0	30	0	2	0	0	<b>C</b>
Other	0	Ω	0	32	0	0	б	30	0	C
OBC	0	4	4	-	0	4	∞	-	0	3,7
Women OBC	0	83	Ø	ო	30	-	32	0	9	0
ST	0	91	0	<del>-</del>	0	က	0		83	C
SC	0	10	Ø	_	0	-	ო	4	0	0
Total	30	83	99	4	30	4	32	35	35	35
Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Farming of PACS of Coop. Societies	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of West Bengal	Management Development Programme for VLEs	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Haryana	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Women Cooperative Societies	Study Visit of Hrapapanahalli Taluk Agril. Produce Coop. Mktg. Society Ltd.	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Coops. of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Gujarat	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/Directors of Dairy Coops. of Gujarat	Leadership Development Programme for
S S	105	106	107	108	109	110	=======================================	112	113	7

n. S	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women	OBC	Other	N N	Date From To	Venue
115	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of ST Women Cooperatives of Gujarat	35	0	35	35	0	0	0	10/12/2019 12/12/2019	CTC, Surat
116	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Coops. of Gujarat	35 at	-	2	0	23	10	0	10/12/2019 12/12/2019	CTC, Bhavnagar
117	Leadership Development Programe for Chairmen/ Directors of Credit Coops. of Gujarat	32	_	ო	0	0	25	0	10/12/2019 12/12/2019	GCTC, Ahmedabad
118	Programme for Executive Committee Members of Okhalkanda Block, Uttrakhand	8	16	0	0	∞	ω	0	12/12/2019 14/12/2019	IFFDC,
119	Leadership Development Programme for Short Term Training Programme by CCM, Rohtak	02	4	0	0	83	0	0	16/12/2019 18/12/2019	CCM, Rohtak
120	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Coops. of West Bengal	25	ო	0	55	0	83	0	17/12/2019 19/12/2019	CCM, Uttarpara
121	Management Development Programme for Village Level Entrepreneurs	51	22	0	0	23	2	0	17/12/2019 19/12/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
122	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of Madhya Pradesh	30	-	0	15	13	-	0	18/12/2019 20/12/2019	JCTC, Khandwa
123	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Industries Coop. Society Ltd.	56	-	0	6	4	2	0	23/12/2019 25/12/2019	CCM, Kalimpong
124	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Cooperatives of West Bengal	27	0	0	0	0	0	0	23/12/2019 25/12/2019	Jalpaiguri

S S.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	岁	Date From To	Venue
1		,	,				(			L
125	Leadersnip Development Programme for UCBs of India	<u>9</u>	-	0		N	<u>ა</u>	0	24/12/2019 00/01/1900	NCCE, New Delhi
126	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of India	84	10	<del>-</del>	0	52	9	0	26/12/2019 28/12/2019	NCCE, New Delhi
127	Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management	27	က	0	Ø	13	0	0	06/01/2020 07/01/2020 IFFCO Unit, Kalol	IFFCO Unit, Kalol
128	Study Visit of Cooperative Journalists of Nepal	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	06/01/2020 07/01/2020	NCCE, New Delhi
129	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs of India	8	-	-	N	5	17	0	07/01/2020 09/01/2020	NCCE, New Delhi
130	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Service Coops. of West Bengal	35	4	0	2	4	0	0	07/01/2020 09/01/2020	CCM, Uttarpara
131	Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management	18	9	0	0	10	α	0	09/01/2020 10/01/2020 IFFCO Unit, Kandla	IFFCO Unit, Kandla
132	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperatives of India	25	ო	O	25	Ø	0	9	15/01/2020 17/01/2020	NCCE, New Delhi
133	Leadership Development Programme for Chairment/ Directors of Youth Coops. of A & N Islands	4	α	0	0	0	27	0	16/01/2020 18/01/2020	RGCTC, A&N Island
134	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Service Cooperatives (Engineering) of West Bengal	14	∞	0	4	ω	25	0	16/01/2020 18/01/2020	CCM, Jalpaiguri

	C, mu	CE, Delhi	har, ırup	ram	CE, Delhi	ammn	M.P.)	.M, tak	CE, Oelhi	tu, Impur	Ğ, mu
Venue	JTC, Jammu	NCCE, New Delhi	Kokihar, Kamrup	Mizoram	NCCE, New Delhi	JTC, J	JCTC, Dhar (M.P.)	CCM, Rohtak	NCCE, New Delhi	RCU, Bishrampur	CTC, Jammu
욘	19/01/2020	18/01/2020 20/01/2020	18/01/2020 20/01/2020	21/01/2020 23/01/2020	21/01/2020 23/01/2020	23/01/2020 25/01/2020 JTC, Jammu	23/01/2020 25/01/2020	01/2020	27/01/2020 29/01/2020	28/01/2020 30/01/2020	29/01/2020 31/01/2020
Date	19/	20 20/	120 20/	120 23/	20 23/	20 25/	20 25/	120 29/	120 29/	120 30/	20 31/
From	17/01/2020	18/01/20	18/01/20	21/01/20	21/01/20	23/01/20	23/01/20	27/01/2020 29/01/2020	27/01/20	28/01/20	29/01/20
뿔	0	-	30	90	0		0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	4	16	0	0	19	_	23	0	∞	0
OBC	-	œ	0	0	16	∞	15	13	27	84	0
Women	90	თ	30	0	Ø	0	0		თ	5	0
ST	0	-	0	0	<del>-</del>	က	6	0	0	N	7
SC	Ø	<del>-</del>	4	0	-	0	0	Ŋ	_	13	0
Total	30	24	30	30	33	30 ammu	31	33	20	99	30
Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons / Women Directors of Women Coops. of Jammu	<ul> <li>Refresher Course for Project Officers of NCUI Coop. Edu. Field Projects</li> </ul>	' Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Youth Coops. of Assam	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Pig Producers Coop. Societies	<ul><li>Management Development Programme for VLEs</li></ul>	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Panchyati Raj of J	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of M.P.	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Haryana	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries of Coops. of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Driectors of Dairy Cooperatives of Jharkhand	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Jammu
S. S.	135	136	137	138	139	140	141	142	143	<del>4</del> 4	145

S. S.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women	OBC	Other	뿔	Date From To	Venue
146	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of NE States	36 s	2	ဇ	36	18	8	36	03/02/2020 05/02/2020	JCTC, Imphal
147	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Coops. of Gujarat	35	0	52	_	က	0	0	03/02/2020 05/02/2020	CTC, Mehsana
148	Cooperative Workshop for Credit Coops.	46	က	2	4	27	72	0	03/02/2020 05/02/2020 N	CTC, Mehsana
149	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Kerala	8	0	0	8	52	O	0	03/02/2019 05/02/2019   Thiruvana	2019 KICMA, Thiruvananthapuram
150	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of Madhya Pradesh	33		8	ო	0	0	0	04/02/2020 06/02/2020	DCU, Jabalpur
151	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of A&N Islands	R	0	0	ω	Ξ	2	0	04/02/2020 06/02/2020 F	RGCTC, A&N Islands
152	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of India	38	4	ო	0	4	0	10	04/02/2020 06/02/2020 N	NCCE, New Delhi
153	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Employees of Weavers' Coop. Society of West Bengal	6	2	∞	9	4	Ø	0	04/02/2020 06/02/2020 K.	CCM, Kalimpong
154	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperatives of West Bengal	31	17	8	31	ო	6	0	05/02/2020 07/02/2020 J	CCM, Jalpaiguri
155	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperatives of Maharashtra	04	4	0	4	52	<del></del>	0	06/02/2020 08/02/2020	CCM, Yavatmal

Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperatives of Gujarat
Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperatives of NE States
Certificate of Proficiency in Cooperative Management Session 2019-20
16
Leadership Development Programme for 29 Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Cooperatives
Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Farm Forestry Cooperatives of Madhya Pradesh
Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Urban & Credit Cooperatives of Madhya Pradesh
Diploma in Coop. Management of CSRM, 27 Gandhinagar
56
Leadership Development Programme for 33 Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperatives of Madhya Pradesh

S S	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	뮏	Date From To	Venue
166	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Agri Marketing Cooperative Societies of India	29	0	က	Ø	6	20	4	18/02/2020 20/02/2020	NCCE, New Delhi
167	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of A&N Island	25	0	0	ო	α	5	0	18/02/2020 20/02/2020	Port Blair
168	Management Development Programme for Village Level Entrepreneurs	55	2	Ø	0	5	72	88	19/02/2020 21/02/2020	JTC, Jalpaiguri
169	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Women Coops. of A&N Islands	56	0	0	56	0	56	0	20/02/2020 22/02/2020	Port Blair
170	Management Development Programme for Village level Entrepreneurs	38	0	0	0	0	0	0	24/02/2020 26/02/2020 Thiruva	2020 ACSTI, Thiruvananthapuram
171	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Haryana	4	-	0	0	_	33	0	24/02/2020 26/02/2020	CCM, Rohtak
172	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of India	89	က	9	89	16	42	4	25/02/2020 27/02/2020	NCCE, New Delhi
173	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Credit Coops. of Gujarat	36	0	0	Ø	∞	56	0	25/02/2020 27/02/2020	Lunwada
174	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Farm Forestry Cooperatives of Madhya Pradesh	32	13	9	4	4	2	0	27/02/2020 29/02/2020	JTC, Khandwa
175	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Madhya Pradesh	35	Ø	0	0	8	15	0	27/02/2020 29/02/2020	JTC, Khandwa

SI. No.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women	OBC	Other	N N	Date From To	Venue
176	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Credit Coops. of Gujarat	50	2	က	=	17	25	0	27/02/2020 29/02/2020	Guwahati
177	Certificate of Proficiency in Cooperative Management Session 2019-20, BPSMV	36	0	0	36	22	31	0	28/02/2020 01/03/2020	BPSMV, Sonipat
178	Diploma of Proficiency in Cooperative Management Session 2019-20, BPSMV	41	0	0	4	ო	13	0	28/02/2020 01/03/2020	BPSMV, Sonipat
179	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Coops. of Jharkhand	43	0	43	4	0	0	0	13/02/2020 15/02/2020	RCU, Bishnupur
180	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Handloom Coop. Societies	30	0	0	0	0	0	30	25/02/2020 27/02/2020	Mizoram
181	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ directors of Schedule Caste Coops. of Jharkhand	38	88	0	9	0	0	0	27/02/2020 29/02/2020	RCU, Bishnupur
182	Management Development Programme for VLEs	37	ო	0	0	13	17	0	02/03/2020 04/03/2020 VAMNICOM, Pune	VAMNICOM, Pune
183	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Women Cooperative Societies of Karnataka	20	_	0	0	4	0	0	03/03/2020 05/03/2020	Shikaripura
184	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs of India	32	0	0	9	15	17	α	03/03/2020 05/03/2020	NCCE, New Delhi
185	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of IFFDC of Madhya Pradesh	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	04/03/2020 06/03/2020	IFFDC, Sagar

Venue	PFFCS, Sagar	Khandwa	Chhattisgarh	Guwahati	NCCE, New Delhi	Karnataka	Bhopal	CICOPA, Karnataka	Mizoram	NCCE, New Delhi
Date To To	04/03/2020 06/03/2020	05/03/2020 07/03/2020	05/03/2020 07/03/2020 Chhattisgarh	05/03/2020 07/03/2020	05/03/2020 07/03/2020	05/03/2020 07/03/2020	06/03/2020 08/03/2020	09/03/2020 11/03/2020	11/03/2020 13/03/2020	12/03/2020 14/03/2020
	04	02	05		02	05	90	60		12
뷛	0	0	0	30	0	0	0	0	30	0
Other	16	4	-	0	-	0	α	0	0	=
OBC	6	30	27	99	83	0	56	0	0	83
Women	0	0	0	ო	0	0	14	33	0	0
ST	-	0	α	0	N	0	-	N	0	ю
SC	2	-	0	27	0	0	<del>=</del>	-	0	2
Total	78	35	30	30	30	37	4 14	31	30	9
. Name of the Programme ).	36 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PFFCS of M.P.	37 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of HL Coops. of M.P.	8 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperatives of Chhattisgarh	9 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Women Coops. of SC/ST Coops. of Assam	90 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperatives of India	11 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SCU/DCU of Karnataka	12 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Women Coops. of M.P.	33 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Women Coops. of Karnataka	<ul><li>14 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coop. Societies</li></ul>	5 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of India
S	186	187	188	189	190	191	192	193	194	195

Total SC
<del>-</del>
1039

#### Annexure - II

#### NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION

#### State-wise Programmes Conducted by NCCE during 2019-20

States/UTs	No. of Programme
INDIA	
East Zone	
A & N Islands	8
Bihar	0
Odisha	3
West Bengal	24
Jharkhand	5
North Zone	
India	43
Jammu & Kashmir	3
Haryana	15
Punjab	0
Uttrakhand	3
Himachal Pradesh	0
Rajasthan	1
Uttar Pradesh	2
South Zone	
Telangana	2
Andhra Pradesh	2
Kerala	3
Karnataka	5
Lakshadweep	0
West Zone	
Madhya Pradesh	25
Chattisgarh	2
Goa	0
Gujarat	21
Maharashtra	10
Daman & Diu	0
NE States	22
International	5
Total	204

#### Annexure - III

#### NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION

#### Sector wise Break-up of Programmes Conducted by NCCE during 2019-20

SI. No.	Sectors	No. of Programme
	COOPERATIVE EDUCATION	
1	ARDBs	0
2	Agriculture	19
3	Consumer	2
4	Cooperative Education	24
5	Cooperative Management	3
6	Dairy	12
7	Farm Forestry	6
8	Fertiliser	5
9	Fisheries	22
10	Handloom/ Handicraft	5
11	Horticulture	0
12	Housing	1
13	Joint Farming	0
14	Labour	6
15	Marketing	1
16	MPCS	2
17	Multi State Coop. Societies	3
18	NCUI Coop. Edu. Field Project	1
19	Poultry	2
20	SC/ST Cooperatives	8
21	SCBs/ DCCBs	0
22	SCU/DCU	2
23	Service Coops.	6
24	Sugar	2
25	Tourism	0
26	Tribal	3
27	Urban Credit	21
28	VLE	8
29	Women Coops.	36
30	Youth Coops.	4
	Total	204

#### Annexure - III (Contd.)

#### NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION

#### Overall Programmes of NCCE Conducted during 2003-04 to 2019-20

Year	Conducted overall of NCC		Programmes at NCCE,	
	No. of Programmes	No. of Participants	No. of Programmes	No. of Participants
2003-2004	52	1563	3	108
2004-2005	52	1677	2	51
2005-2006	50	1442	5	149
2006-2007	54	1434	5	128
2007-2008	50	1311	6	170
2008-2009	50	1359	7	162
2009-2010	58	1540	7	203
2010-2011	55	1379	16	446
2011-2012	59	1640	17	459
2012-2013	66	1998	23	656
2013-2014	73	2250	19	522
2014-2015	89	2886	35	1255
2015-2016	109	3698	52	1945
2016-2017	144	5058	62	2211
2017-2018	164	5458	58	1955
2018-2019	133	4495	55	1829
2019-2020	204	6894	60	1983

**Findings:** It is observed that before the year 2010-11 only 2 to 7 training programmes covering hardly 51 to 200 participants were being organized at New Delhi by NCCE. During the last five years the numbers of training programmes and participants per year have been increased manifold. It is important to mentioned that in the year, 2019-2020 NCCE has conducted 204 programmes with 6894.

#### Annexure - III (Contd.)

#### NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION

#### Target and Achievement of Programmes Conducted by NCCE for the Year 2019-20

Sector	Target of Programme	Achievement of Programme	Achievement in %age
Participants Overall Programme	80	204	255
Pogramme at NCCE	33	60	181
Participants Weaker Sector	24	47	195
Participants Women	15	36	240
Participants SC/ST	5	8	160

#### Annexure - III (Contd.)

#### NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION

### Target and Achievement of Participants of Programmes Conducted by NCCE for the Year 2019-20

Sector	Target of Participants	Achievement of Participants	Achievement in %age
Participants Overall Programme	2400	6894	287
Pogramme at NCCE	990	1983	200
Participants Weaker Sector	720	1652	229
Participants Women	450	1221	271
Participants SC/ST	150	304	202

	NGO	II Annual Rep	JUIT 2019-20	J			
		-				Ann	exure - IV
	Activities-wise Education Programme	ae organie	ed by Co	onerative l	Education		
	(Except North East & W					i ieiu rioj	CCIS
	(Except North East & W	omen io		, iiioiidatet	1) 2015-20		
SI.	Programmes	Duration	Events	Ве	neficiaries	/Participar	nts
No.	9	(Days)				out of which	
		(Dayo)		Total	SC/ST	Women	OBC
				Iolai	30/31	VVOITIGIT	Minority
							TVIIITOTTLY
A.	<b>Cooperative Education Programmes</b>						
1	Secretaries/Managers training prog.	3	264	2,849	-	358	256
2	Managing Committee Members traing pro	g. 3	1,028	11,752	2,027	2,027	1,387
3	Members & Potential Members Courses	2	2,019	34,125	9,386	9,386	5,580
4	Leadership Development Programmes	3	643	10,313	2,568	2,568	3,201
5	Youth Camps / Meetings	1	644	10,892	2,972	2,972	2,401
6	Meeting on Credit /Recovery/Deposits Mobilisation	1	1,015	15,687	4,885	4,885	4,737
7	Women's Development Meeting &	1	1,136	16,935	5,788	5,788	7,766
	Formation of SHG's (Motivational Meetin	• ,					
8	Participation & Guidance in MCM	1	508	5,755	1,985	1,985	1,753
9	Water harvesting	1	205	2,437	597	597	284
10	BDP Formation Prog.& Others	3	151	4,233	999	999	1,368
	Total		7,613	114,978	31,207	31,565	28,733
В.	Social Development Programmes						
	(conducted by Cooperative Education	Instructors	s)				
,	Family Wolfara Education	4	E 47	7 400	0.004	0.005	1 070
1	Family Welfare Education Health Education (AIDS)	1 1	547 438	7,469 5,953	2,294 1,790	2,225 1,233	1,072 889
2	Adult Education	1	436 456	5,933 5,926	1,790	1,233	667
4	Social Welfare	2	480	6,935	1,946	1,798	555
<del> </del>							
	Total		1,921	26,283	8,021	6,785	3,183
C.	Farm Guidance Programmes						
1	Crop Development	3	151	2,364	770	308	459
2	Dairy/Poultry/Cattle Development	3	173	2,858	725	390	494
3	Horticulture Development	2	85	1,337	312	119	248
4	Plant Protection	3	146	2,400	804	333	482
5	Vegetable Development	2	73	1,178	264	149	186
6	Mktg./Grading of Agricultural Produce	3	162	2,601	780	219	431
7	Use and application of Fertiliser	1	86	1,374	332	116	244
8	Fodder Development	1	85	1,452	411	198	185
9	Farmers Meetings	1	151	2,466	473	232	375
10	Oil & Pulses Development	1	61	972	237	118	103
11	Environment Protection	1	107	1,412	460	319	102
12	Water Harvesting	2	198	2,843	912	255	675
13	Climate Change & Others(Specify)	1	149	2,034	523	334	169
	Total		1,627	25,291	7,003	3,090	3,465

(Contd...)

#### Annexure - IV (Contd..)

## Activities-wise Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except North East & Women Projects) (Consolidated) 2019-20

SI.	Programmes	Duration	Events	Ве	neficiaries	/Participan	ts
No.		(Days)			C	ot of which	1
				Total	SC/ST	Women	OBC Minority
D.	Other Programmes						
1	Skill Development Programme	7	67	1,646	739	1,131	285
2	Block Level Conference	1	591	7,905	2,292	3,459	710
3	Distt. Level Conf.	1	42	699	325	250	79
4	Awareness camp for foeticide (family welfare) & others	1	37	493	138	181	69
5	LDP programmes for the members SHG's	3	4	198	102	319	21
6	Workshop for youth	1	28	595	145	65	189
7	Participation in exibition / Exposure visit/ Dist level conf.	1	4	215	45	52	10
8	WDRA (Warehousing Development and Regulatory Authority) one day awareness Programme	1	-	-	-	-	-
	Total		773	11,751	3,786	5,457	1,363
	Grand Total (A+B+C+D)		11,934	178,303	50,017	46,897	36,744

NCIII Annual Report 2019-20				
	NCHI	Annual	Donort	2010 20

Annexure - V	ojects)	40	Minority/ OBC	'	3495	724	233	309	213	139	543	236	723	79	1	345	1223	787	ı	807
Ann	en & NE Pr	Programme	Women	1331	157	351	362	433	2841	301	362	231	2847	325	1624	882	0	1822	1266	433
	ept Wome	Education F	SC/ST	974	466	1342	72	436	774	1124	973	884	1755	241	2887	3026	1141	545	1378	798
	19-20) (Exc	Cooperative Education Programme	Partici- pants	9477	4118	4085	1564	1852	5865	2368	1878	2134	5914	1895	0609	5988	4085	2212	8423	2064
	ects – (201	Ö	Events	432	244	259	134	92	379	142	127	198	180	114	376	354	262	185	299	119
	Field Proj		Minority/ OBC	0	5338	1054	314	410	259	1176	713	379	807	115	0	556	1627	1308	0	1937
	Coop. Edu.	ırammes	Women	2522	333	561	434	986	3051	704	440	287	3171	453	1979	1192	0	3384	1463	1015
	anised by (	cation Prog	SC/ST	1727	2113	1806	136	853	843	3012	1209	1330	2066	327	3366	3965	2256	1123	1624	1941
	mmes orga	Overall Education Programmes	Benefi- ciaries	18007	7791	7319	2973	3952	6459	6848	2362	3232	9229	2401	6847	9253	8157	3784	9414	4994
	on Progra		Events	795	489	524	258	221	406	373	160	297	204	145	440	564	499	. 328	069	299
	ative Educatio	State		Punjab	Gujarat	Bihar	<b>₽</b>	Orissa	Orissa	Rajasthan	J.	U.P.	Karnataka	Bihar	Punjab	U.P.	Rajasthan	West Bengal	H.P.	U.P.
	Project-wise Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Coop. Edu. Field Projects – (2019-20) (Except Women & NE Projects)	Name of	Projects	Bathinda	Ahmedabad	Arrah	Bagpat	Khurda	Cuttack	Sawai Madhopur	Deoria	Fatehpur	Gulbarga Project	Hajipur (Vaishali)	Jalandhar	Jhansi	Jodhpur	Raiganj	Bilaspur	Amethi
	Pr	SI.	o S	-	0	က	4	2	9	_	ω	6	10	Ξ	72	13	4	15	16	17

NCUI Annual	Report	2019-20
-------------	--------	---------

										An	Annexure - V (Contd.)	(Contd.)
Pr	Project-wise Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Coop. Edu. Field Projects – (2019-20) (Except Women & NE Projects)	rative Educatic	on Progra	ımmes org	anised by	Coop. Edu	J. Field Pro	jects-(20	19-20) (Exc	sept Wome	n & NE Pr	ojects)
S	Name of	State		Overall Education Programmes	cation Prog	grammes		O	Cooperative Education Programme	Education F	rogramme	
No.	Project		Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority/ OBC	Events	Partici- pants	SC/ST	Women	Minority/ OBC
18	Hamirpur	H.P.	298	3648	1312	2024	0	151	1665	655	981	1
19	Panaji	Goa	195	2714	136	2435	33	165	2257	109	1987	8
20	Pilibhit	U.P.	346	4376	902	16	999	235	2962	456	4	450
2	Port Blair	A & N Islands	ds 195	3078	79	1902	2068	155	2423	74	1614	1639
22	Raghogarh	M.P	475	2808	3416	664	421	381	4764	2754	583	329
23	Raipur	Chhatisgarh	383	4016	873	1179	139	293	3178	642	1086	139
24	Udhampur	J&K	749	9217	1640	2801	1072	543	7105	1114	833	673
25	Ratlam	МР	171	1762	469	257	0	127	1288	365	242	0
56	Jhunjhunu	Rajasthan	194	2799	262	0	371	194	2799	262	0	371
27	Surendranagar	Gujarat	321	4937	61	0	78	255	3973	45	0	8
28	Thiru. Puram (SC/ST Proj)	Kerala	383	4220	4220	2848	0	194	2161	2161	1612	0
53	Ujjain	M.P	186	2074	268	2	144	Ξ	1247	154	2	102
30	Unnao	U.P.	866	14483	3700	8695	361	285	4405	2015	988	330
31	Vijayawada	A. P.	543	7,716	3,481	3,599	458	325	4,739	1,943	1,881	301
	Total : (SI. No. 1 to 31)	l to 31)	11934	178303	50017	46897	21754	7613	114978	31207	31565	28733

										An	Annexure - V (Contd.)	(Contd.)
ď	Project-wise Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Coop. Edu. Field Projects – (2019-20) (Except Women & NE Projects)	erative Educat	ion Progra	mmes orga	anised by	Coop. Edı	ı. Field Pro	jects – (20	19-20) (Ex	sept Wom€	en & NE Pr	ojects)
SI.	Name of	State		Social Dev	elopment F	Social Development Programmes	Sé		Farm Gui	Farm Guidance Programmes	rammes	
Ö	Project		EEvents	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority/ OBC	Events	Partici- pants	SC/ST	Women	Minority/ OBC
-	Bathinda	Punjab	123	3197	344	461	1	185	3784	220	246	1
Ø	Ahmedabad	Gujarat	27	606	147	125	630	188	2764	1500	51	1213
က	Arrah	Bihar	74	820	268	2	176	191	2384	196	189	154
4	Bagpat	<b>□</b>	82	951	8	20	48	ස	458	90	13	8
2	Khurda	Orissa	126	2100	417	253	101	0	0	0	0	0
9	Cuttack	Orissa	0	0	0	0	0	27	594	99	210	46
7	Sawai Madhopur Rajasthan	· Rajasthan	37	296	357	144	83	194	3684	1531	259	333
œ	Deoria	₽ D	æ	484	236	78	170	0	0	0	0	0
6	Fatehpur	U.P.	33	382	160	2	92	0	0	0	0	0
9	Gulbarga SC/ST Project	Karnataka	23	432	291	294	82	0	0	0	0	0
Ξ	Hajipur (Vaishal ) Bihar	) Bihar	33	206	98	128	98	0	0	0	0	0
12	Jalandhar	Punjab	2	757	479	355	1	0	0	0	0	ı
13	Jhansi	U.P.	49	096	492	134	102	161	2305	447	176	109
4	Jodhpur	Rajasthan	66	1687	460	0	154	135	2,325	644	1	236
15	Raiganj	West Bengal	138	1483	226	1483	521	0	0	0	0	0
16	Bilaspur	H.P.	91	991	246	197	1	0	0	0	0	0

NCUI Annual Report 2019-	-20
--------------------------	-----

å	Annexure - V (Containe Projective Education Programmes organised by Cook Educated Projects - (2010-20) (Event Women & NE Projects)	Site of the Control o			yd bosine	1000	7 C	(C) - stock	10-20) /EVO	An	Annexure - V (Contd.)	/ (Contd.)
	Name of	State	96014	Social Development Programmes	elopment F	Programme	S. Field FIG.	 	Farm Guid	Farm Guidance Programmes	irammes	ojecis)
ġ	Project		Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority/ OBC	Events	Partici- pants	SC/ST	Women	Minority/ OBC
17	Amethi	U.P.	63	944	352	178	341	117	1,986	791	404	789
18	Hamirpur	H. P.	2	291	104	110	ı	126	1692	553	933	I
19	Panaji	Goa	99	457	27	448	0	0	0	0	0	0
8	Pilibhit	U.P.	69	881	159	7	128	42	533	91	ı	88
2	Port Blair	A & N Islands	16	275	2	223	168	24	380	1	65	261
83	Raghogarh	M.P	75	832	230	62	47	19	212	132	19	15
83	Raipur	Chhatisgarh	88	799	231	83	0	0	0	0	0	0
24	Udhampur	J&K	137	1355	373	909	305	69	757	153	124	96
52	Ratlam	MP	99	419	88	15	0	2	55	16	0	0
56	Jhunjhunu	Rajasthan	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	128	0
27	Surendranagar	Gujarat	99	964	16	1	4	0	0	0	1	ı
88	Thiru. Puram (SC/ST Proj)	Kerala	74	402	602	447	ı	37	333	333	194	ı
83	Ujjain	M.P.	75	827	114	0	42	0	0	0	1	1
99	Unnao	U.P.	0	0	0	0	0	13	223	26	73	31
31	Vijayawada	A. P.	86	1045	740	797	14	22	822	200	134	63
	Total : (Sl. No. 1 to 31)	1 to 31)	1921	26283	8021	6785	3183	1627	25291	2003	3090	3465

NCUI Annual Report 20
-----------------------

						Annexure -	Annexure - V (Contd.)
	Project-wise Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Coop. Edu. Field Projects – (2019-20) (Except Women & NE Projects)	ation Programmes org	anised by Coop	o. Edu. Field Project	ts – (2019-20) (Exc	ept Women & NE	Projects)
<u>.</u>	Name of	State		Other P	Other Programme		
Ö N	Project		Events	Participants	SC/ST	Women	Minority
-	Bathinda	Punjab	55	1549	189	484	0
Ŋ	Ahmedabad	Gujarat	0	0	0	0	0
က	Arrah	Bihar	505	7141	1643	3101	1207
4	Bagpat	A)	0	0	0	0	0
2	Khurda	Orissa	0	0	0	0	0
9	Cuttack	Orissa	0	0	0	0	0
	Sawai Madhopur	Rajasthan	0	0	0	0	0
∞	Deoria	UP	0	0	0	0	0
თ	Fatehpur	U.P.	09	716	586	351	51
10	Gulbarga SC/ST Project	Karnataka	-	30	20	90	S
Ξ_	Hajipur (Vaishal )	Bihar	0	0	0	0	0
12	Jalandhar	Punjab	0	0	0	0	0
13	Jhansi	U.P.	0	0	0	0	0
4	Jodhpur	Rajasthan	က	09	F	0	4
15	Raiganj	West Bengal	S.	88	23	62	0
16	Bilaspur	H.P.	0	0	0	0	0

S	Name of	State		Other F	Other Programme		
Š.		1	Events	Participants	SC/ST	Women	Minority
4	Amethi	a.u	0	0	0	0	0
8	Hamirpur	H.P.	0	0	0	0	0
19	Panaji	Goa	0	0	0	0	0
20	Pilibhit	U.P.	0	0	0	0	0
2	Port Blair	A & N Islands	0	0	0	0	0
23	Raghogarh	M.P.	0	0	0	0	0
83	Raipur	Chhatisgarh	-	39	0	30	0
24	Udhampur	J&K	0	0	0	0	0
25	Ratlam	MP	0	0	0	0	0
56	Jhunjhunu	Rajasthan	0	0	0	0	0
27	Surendranagar	Gujarat	0	0	0	0	0
88	Thiru. Puram (SC/ST Proj)	Kerala	78	1017	1017	295	0
83	Ujjain	M.P.	0	0	0	0	0
39	Unnao	U.P.	0	0	0	0	0
3	Vijayawada	A. P.	59	1110	298	787	80
	Total : (Sl. No. 1 to 31)		773	11751	3786	5457	1363

#### Annexure - VI

# NCUI Cooperative Edcuation Field Projects (UDS) Highlights of various Programmes an other activities of achievements (Consolidated) for the April, 2019 to March, 2020 (except Women & NE Projects)

SI. No.	Name of Programmes	No.
1	New Socities registered during the year	15
2	Societies Revitalised	426
3	New Members enrolled	4891
4	(i) BDP Formulated	458
	(ii) BDP Implemented	805
5	Kisan Cards arranged to farmers	33630
6	No. of Persons benefited under Income Generating Scheme	11525
7	(i) No. of SHGs formed	1337
	(ii) Membership	18734
8	No.of SHGs converted into Cooperatives	50
9	Plantation of Trees	57779
10	Soil sample tested	1741
11	Seed sample tested	870
12	(i) Farmers Clubs under VVV Scheme of NABARD	864
	(ii) Membership	12472
13	(i) Plot Demonstration	313
	(ii) Farmers benefitted	1280
14	(i) Seminars/ Conferences/ Workshops	421
	(ii) Participants	6795
15	No. of persons who have learn to write their names	4372
16	(i) Vermi Culture Pits & Water harvesting prog.	190
	(ii) Beneficiaries	2052
17	(i) Skill Development Pogrammes	33
	(ii) Participants	999
18	(i) Workshop for youth	465
	(ii) Participants	7718
19	(i) Leadership Development Programmes	643
	(ii) Participants	10313

NCH	I Annual	Renort	2019-20

						NC	UI An	nual	Repo	ort 20	19-20	_								
Annexure - VII		akhs)	(-/+)	0	7.38	0	-2	142.89	0	0	0	0	0	126.2	1.35	127.27	0.43	-554.95	0	(151)
Ann	Loaning increase	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2019-20	0	64.68	83.05	124.03	7,655	2781.04	615.4	0	0	2151.04	3.5	22.69	5718.14	12.53	2226.98	0	21,505
ects)	Los	Am	2018-19	0	57.3	79.15	126.03	7512.36		522.34	0	0	2141.14	127.85	68.84	5590.87	12.1	2781.93	0	19,020
en & NE Proj 19-20	9.00	khs)	(-/+)	0	1.1	0	24	2.78	0	0	0	0	0	124.4	15	24.4	0.75	-109.9	0	82
NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	Share capital increase	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2019-20	0	4.95	25.36	128.6	396	1972277	323.78	0	0	45.43	4.55	81.07	329.23	25.2	242.81	0	1,973,884
ield Projects ( vements durii	Share	Am	2018-19	0	3.85	25.24	126.2	393		281.4	0	0	40.43	92.8	39.57	304.83	24.53	352.74	0	1,687
Education F	New	enrolled		0	454	801	136	556	802	651	0	0	110	91.25	0	638	105	256	0	4,600
Cooperative	Societies	revitalised		0	α	18	-	0	30	0	0	0	0	204	0	7	0	0	0	259
NCN	New	registered	year 2019-20	0	က	-	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	-	0	0	α	0	0	. 11
	Projects			AHMEDABAD	AMETHI	ARRAH	BAGPAT	BATHINDA	BILASPUR	CUTTACK	DEORIA	FATEHPUR	GULBARGA	HAMIRPUR	HAZIPUR	JALANDHAR	UDHAMPUR	JHANSI	UNUHUNUHU	SUB-TOTAL - 1:
	S. 5	 2 			2	က	4	2	9	7	œ	6	10	=	12	13	4	15	16	

NCUI Annual Report 2019-20	1	NCUI	Annual	Report	2019-20
----------------------------	---	------	--------	--------	---------

									Annexure - VII (Contd.)	II (Contd.)
		ON	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	Education Fi t-wise Achiev	rative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	except Womer gthe year 2019	າ & NE Proj 9-20	ects)		
<u>n</u> 5	Projects	New	Societies	New	Share capit	Share capital increase (in lakh)	akh)	Loaninç	Loaning increase (in lakh)	akh)
j		registered during the	מלילומו	enrolled	Amo	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	(St	Απ	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	ıkhs)
		year 2019-20		ı	2018-19	2019-20	(-/+)	2018-19	2019-20	(-/+)
17	JODHPUR	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
18	KHURDA	0	0	180	201.85	203.5	1.65	945.5	960.5	Ξ
19	PILIBHIT	0	0	41	205.82	206.97	1.15	1424.42	1425.24	0.82
8	PANAJI Goa	0	0	285	189.94	191.75	1.81	700.62	1109.21	408.59
2	PORT BLAIR	-	~	72	0.53	0.54	0.2	2.26	2.86	79.02
8	RAGHOGARH	0	0	187	101.54	104.15	0	138.57	142.76	0
প্ত	RAIGANJ	0	0	201	63.14	63.21	0.07	310	320	10
24	RAIPUR	0	0	720	295.84	322.33	26.49	26.55	26.33	-0.22
52	RATLAM	0	0	52	347.15	370.15	0	6325	9229	0
56	SAWAI MADHOPUR	PUR 1	162	311.97	347.81	35.54	3195	3300.3	105.13	2939.22
27	SURENDRA NAGAR	GAR -	0	72	438.16	437.5	-0.66	3471	420.1	-3050.9
88	THIRUVANANTHAPURAM	IAPURAM -	2	244	189.9	68.3	-121.6	414	274	-140
8	UJJAIN	0	0	323	258.48	259.86	0	4855.12	7864.98	0
8	UNNAO	0	0	217	48000	41100	<del></del>	267.39	217.95	1.1
3	VIJAYAWADA	2	2	350	205.96	316.34	110.4	383.6	24.72	-358.88
	SUB-TOTAL-2	4	167	3,211	50,846	43,680	3,216	22,564	19,450	(100)
	SUB-TOTAL - 1	11	259	4,600	1,687	1,973,884	82	19,020	21,505	(151)
	GRAND TOTAL	15	426	7,811	52,533	2,017,564	3,298	41,584	40,955	(252)

	NCUI	Annual	Report	2019-20
--	------	--------	--------	---------

										Annex	ıre - VII (	Annexure - VII (Contd)
	NCUI	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	Educatio	n Field Pro hievement	erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	pt Women year 2019	& NE P -20	rojects	(\$			
Projects	 Recov	Recovery increase			Deposit Increase	ase	N	mber o	Number of societies in	es in	B	BDP
	Amount	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	(s	Am	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	lakhs)	Profit	Loss	Self- reliant	Not self-	Formu- lated	Imple- mented
	 2018-19	2019-20	(-/+)	2018-19	2019-20	(-/+)				reliant		
AHMEDABAD	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
AMETHI	15.1	19.7	4.6	109.25	120.58	11.33	12	13	0	0	6	∞
ARRAH	103.25	106.07	0	108.24	109.29	0	19	-	20	4	0	0
BAGPAT	97.03	98.01	.9049.07	60.49	11.42	0	ω	0	80	0	-	0
BATHINDA	7,478	7,620	141.78	88	91	1.93	30	1	0	0	30	30
BILASPUR	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CUTTACK	419.3	520.2	0	530.24	570.33	0	10	10	0	0	20	8
DEORIA	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	2	0	0	212	7
FATEHPUR	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
GULBARGA	1875.15	1880.15	0	70.46	80.46	0	ω	7	0	0	0	2
HAMIRPUR	126.2	128.75	2.55	198.5	184.5	-14.25	8	7			10	9
HAZIPUR	91.97	93.05	1.56	32.6	39.05	28	0	0	30	20	17	0
JALANDHAR	5219.81	5301.45	81.64	1035.91	1066.11	30.2	8		8	8	0	0
UDHAMPUR	8.4	8.7	0.3	0	0	0	88	0	4	9	48	5
JHANSI	993.55	6.607	-283.65	169.85	103.15	-66.07	13	7	0	0	13	9
UNUHLNUHL	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SUB-TOTAL - 1	16,428	16,486	(51)	2,404	2,376	(6)	172	37	7 82	60	330	169

NCUI	Annual	Report	2019-20
------	--------	--------	---------

Annexure - VII (Contd)		J.	Imple- mented		0	10	16	0	17	20	209	0	10	10	0	24	0	0	20	636	169	802
re - VII (		BDP	Formu- lated		0	10	16	0	17	20	-	0	10	10	0	24	0	0	8	128	330	458
Annexu		ij	Not self-	reliant	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	•	09	09
`		Number of societies in	Self- reliant		0	0	0	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	82	88
	rojects)	mber of	Loss		0	2	0	0	<del>=</del>	9	က	4	0	0	2	∞	7	2	0	49	37	86
	& NE PI -20	Nur	Profit		0	2	16	10	9	4	9	9	10	10	52	12	∞	4	20	162	172	334
	ot Women year 2019	ise	akhs)	(-/+)	0	25.5	0.23	24.81	0	0	0.08	43.4	0	0	1.56	25	0	1.	277.52	399	(6)	390
	erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	Deposit Increase	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2019-20	0	770.1	27.6	2245.35	310	51.74	771.17	91.75	650	78.85	12.96	361	374.08	48000	1009.51	54,754	2,376	57,130
	n Field Proj hievements		Amc	2018-19	0	744.6	27.37	2220.54	305.5	49.36	771.09	48.35	553	872.55	11.4	336	354.05	51000	731.99	58,026	2,404	60,430
	Educatio t-wise Ac		<u></u>	(-/+)	0	25.35	0.58	12.41	9.0	0	0.15	338.48	0	0	-331.19	2	0	1.1	204.95	273	(51)	222
	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	Recovery increase	(Rs. in lakhs)	2019-20	0	1005.75	1116.88	770.53	3.8	98.97	291.31	2633.06	0	793.7	3315.21	91.9	1963.06	267.67	1153.45	13,505	16,486	29,991
	NCDI	Recov	Amount (Rs. in	2018-19	0	980.4	1116.3	758.12	3.6	92.06	291.16	2294.58	3063	128.4	3646.4	RAM70.9	2008.18	293.71	948.5	15,698	16,428	32,126
		Projects			JODHPUR	KHURDA	PILIBHIT	PANAJI	PORT BLAIR	RAGHOGARH	RAIGANJ	RAIPUR	RATLAM	<b>SAWAI MADHOPUR</b>	<b>SURENDRA NAGAR</b>	THIRUVANANTHAPURAM70.9	UJJAIN	UNNAO	VIJAYAWADA	SUB-TOTAL - 2	SUB-TOTAL - 1	GRAND TOTAL
		S 5	<u> </u>		17	8	19	8	72	83	ಣ	24	52	56	27	88	83	8	31			

			-																	
Contd.)	ting	e year 20	Benifi- ciaries	0	218	0	0	0	0	0	55	0	125	0	0	3000	0	0	0	3,398
Annexure - VII (Contd.)	er Harvest	During the year 2019-20	Ö	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	-	0	0	-	0	0	0	23
Annex	Pits & Wate Programme	Partici- pants	ı	0	785	103	0	75	0	0	20	0	806	0	24	15	0	0	0	1,930
Projects)	Vermi Culture Pits & Water Harvesting Programme	Since	to March, 2019	0	55	9	0	2	0	0	-	0	45	0	∞	-	0	0	0	121
omen & NE r 2019-20	der	the 9-20	Member- ship	0	198	0	0	20	0	40	20	0	1002	0	116	102	12	100	0	1,640
Except We	omoted und if NABARD	During the year 2019-20	No.	0	12	0	0	2	0	Ø	-	0	80	0	7	2	-	∞	0	121
erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	Farmers clubs promoted under VVV scheme of NABARD	Since inception to March, 2019	Member- ship	0	745	88	169	2,581	0	486	20	0	4613	0	88	310	0	1258	0	10,243
cation Fie	Farn	Since inception March, 2019	No. (Rs.)	0	48	0	10	209	0	88	-	0	298	0	13	15	0	104	0	738
NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	No. of persons benefited	under income gen. scheme	Ave. income	0	2800	18000	1000	2,300	0	3000	0	0	2700	3500	2000	21000	1800	450	0	61,550
NCUI Coc	No. o	unde	No.	0	165	0	15	757	0	3000	0	0	3201	102	4	120	74	100	0	7,538
	Kisan	arranged to farmers		0	413	879	215	3,750	0	428	96	0	1236.8	85	450	3282	88	797	0	: 11,635
	Projects	+		AHMEDABAD	AMETHI	ARRAH	BAGPAT	BATHINDA	BILASPUR	CUTTACK	DEORIA	FATEHPUR	GULBARGA	HAMIRPUR	HAZIPUR	JALANDHAR	UDHAMPUR	JHANSI	JHUNJHUNU	SUB-TOTAL - 1:
	S S			-	0	4	2	9	7	8	6	10	Ξ	12	13	4	15	16	17	

	1	NCUI	Annual	Report	2019-20
--	---	------	--------	--------	---------

		i	<del></del>	1																	
Contd.)	ing	year 30	Benifi- ciaries	0	0	0	0	0	0	1,000	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1,000	3,398	4,398
Annexure - VII (Contd.)	er Harvest	During the year 2019-20	Ö	0	0	0	0	0	4	Ø	0	0	ო	0	0	0	0	0	19	23	42
Annex	Pits & Wate Programme	Partici- pants		0	0	0	0		25	9	0	0	64	0	0	0	0	0	122	1,930	2,052
rojects)	Vermi Culture Pits & Water Harvesting Programme	Since	to March, 2019	0	0	0	0	0	25	12	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	69	121	190
men & NE P 2019-20			Member- ship	0	0	0	0	0	40	0	0	0	61	0	0	0	0	106	207	1,640	1,847
Except Wo	moted unde NABARD	During the year 2019-20	Ö Z	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	က	0	0	0	0	5	10	121	131
ative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) roject-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	Farmers clubs promoted under VVV scheme of NABARD	eption to 2019	Member- ship	0	0	0	85	318	780	45	0	0	553	0	0	0	0	451	2,229	10,243	12,472
cation Fiel se Achieve	Farm	Since inception to March, 2019	No. (Rs.)	0	0	0	-	17	39	က	0	0	37	0	3000	0	0	29	126	738	864
perative Edu Project-wi	No. of persons benefited	under income gen. scheme	Ave. income	0	3000	4000	3000	11000	1800	1000	2000	2500	3200	0	840	0	4000	1500	43,300	61,550	104,850
NCUI Cooper	No. ol	under ing gen. sch	Ö	0	124	48	88	252	74	612	ო	52	610	0		0	497	834	3,987	7,538	11,525
_	Kisan cards	arranged to farmers	<u> </u>	0	180	144	38	286	114	209	8638	25	PUR1260	GAR142	IAPURAM	8930	211	1218	21,995	11,635	33,630
	Projects	to <u>a</u>		JODHPUR	KHURDA	PILIBHIT	PANAJI	PORT BLAIR	RAGHOGARH	RAIGANJ	RAIPUR	RATLAM	SAWAI MADHOPUR1260	SURENDRA NAGAR142	THIRUVANANTHAPURAM	UJJAIN	UNNAO	VIJAYAWADA	SUB-TOTAL-2	SUB-TOTAL - 1	GRAND TOTAL
	SI. No.			18	19	21	22	23	24 F	25 F	26 F	27	28	29 8	30	31	32 (	33	<i>U</i> )		

			NCUI Cooper P	coperativ Proje	/e Educat ∋ct-wise A	ion Field Achievem	erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	xcept W	/omen & เr 2019-2	NE Project 0	(s)	Annexure - VII (Contd.)	re - VII ((	Sontd.)
<u>a</u>	<u> </u>		Plot Demonstrations	strations		Soil/see trea	Soil/seed samples treatment		Farmer plar (plantati	Farmers provided plants etc. (plantation of trees)	Stu	Study visit for members of MC	PCC n	PCC meeting held
S	Š	ı—	Farmers	Average	Soil		Seed		No. of	Persons	<u>9</u>	Persons	Š	Parti-
o	o		benefi-	ann	No. of	Persons	No. of	Persons	trees	benefi-		benefi-		cipant
plots	plots		ted	income	samples	bene-	samples	bene-		ted		ted		
		_						2						
AHMEDABAD 0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
9	9		185	12000	18	378	7	145	235	470	45	625	19	278
0	0		0	14000	72	92	92	135	1990	62	30	315	-	5
0	0	_	0	0	17	20	0	0	120	10	0	0	0	0
BATHINDA 6	9		28	3,850	358	358	382	382	24,500	270	က	92	2	16
BILASPUR 0	O		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CUTTACK	4,	2	198	3000	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
80	ω		15	36000	142	142	0	0	25	55	-	45	0	0
FATEHPUR 0	0	_	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GULBARGA 10	9	_	55	2520	0	0	0	0	268	48	0	0	_	10
HAMIRPUR 4	7	_	12	7000	125	70	17	249	100	20	0	0	0	0
0	0	_	0	27600	310	310	140	140	3840	98	0	0	0	0
JALANDHAR 5	2	_	110	4500			35	168	2335	53	2	163	0	0
UDHAMPUR 0	0	_	0	0	24	12	20	9	198	40	0	0	8	18
2	Ø		7	2200	110	110			1521	92	0	0	0	0
0 ONDHUNDHU	0	_	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SUB-TOTAL - 1 46	46	I .	575	115,970	1,158	1,495	693	1,229	35,462	2 1,209	84	1,240	25	327
		- 1												

		_																				
contd.)	PCC meeting held	Parti-	cipant		170	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	170	327	497
) III (C	PCC m	So			8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	20	25	45
Annexure - VII (Contd.)	Study visit for members of MC	Persons	benefi-	ted	180	0	0	0	30	45	0	0	0	110	22	0	0	0	09	479	1,240	1,719
<u> </u>	Stud for me of	No.			8	0	0	0	-	7	0	0	0	2	-	0	0	0	4	35	84	119
NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	provided etc.	Persons	benefi-	ted	198	0	4	4	35	43	83	0	0	115	56	0	0	24	450	1,007	1,209	2,216
omen & NI 2019-20	Farmers provided plants etc. (plantation of trees)	No.of F	trees		24	0	98	1200	1500	209	130	0	0	3263	8	0	0	400	190	7,494	35,462	42,956
xcept Wo			Persons	bene- fited	202	0	7	0	0	36	0	0	0	25	တ	0	0	0	0	310	1,229	1,539
ojects (E	samples nent	Seed	No. of	samples	23	0	Ξ	0	0	N	0	0	0	117	25	0	0	0	0	177	693	870
n Field Pl	Soil/seed samples treatment		Persons	bene- s	698	0	16	0	0	40	0	0	0	115	0	0	700	7390	09	8,699	1,495	10,194
erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20		Soil	No. of	samples	24	0	16	0	0	N	0	0	0	427	56	0	25	4	49	583	1,158	1,741
operative Projec	rations	Average	annual	income	0	0	0	0	15000	22000	0	0	0	14200	0	0	0	320	0	51,520	575 115,970	1,280 167,490
NCUI Co	Plot Demonstrations	Farmers		ted	410	0	0	0	25	166	0	0	0	104	0	0	0	0	0	705		
	Plo	No.	o	plots	208	0	0	0	7	15	0	0	0	UR 2	3AR0	MW 0		40	0	267	46	313
	Project				JODHPUR	KHURDA	PILIBHIT	PANAJI	PORT BLAIR	RAGHOGARH	RAIGANJ	RAIPUR	RATLAM	SAWAI MADHOPUR 2	SURENDRA NAGAR0	THIRVNTHAPURAM 0	UJJAIN	UNNAO	VIJAYAWADA	SUB-TOTAL - 2	SUB-TOTAL-1	GRAND TOTAL
	S. S.				82	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	56	27	78	59	30	31	32			

NCUI	Annual	Report	2019-20
------	--------	--------	---------

	z	NCUI Coope	erative E	ducation wise Achi	erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	ts (Exce	pt Women year 2019	& NE Pro	ojects)	Anne	Annexure - VII (Contd.)	(Contd.)
<u>n</u> S	Projects	Semin conferer worksh	Seminar/ onferences/ vorkshops	Training poorganised fields (come good income good actions actions actions actions income good income good income good income good income good actions	Training programmes organised in various fields (other than income generation activities	Guid MC m	Guidance in MC meetings	Guir in /	Guidance in AGM	Documenta film show arrangemer	Documentary film show arrangement	No. of persons who have learn to write
		Ö	Parti- cipant	N O	Parti- cipant	No.	Parti- cipant	Ö	Parti- cipant	Ö	Parti- cipant	their names
-	AHMEDABAD	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
2	AMETHI	∞	165	ω	182	9	92	7	165	6	218	232
ო	ARRAH	α	99	56	480	8	0	0	0	0	0	946
4	BAGPAT	0	0	0	0	20	221	2	150	0	0	110
ى 5	BATHINDA	48	1,258	က	92	06	720	30	4,190	0	0	750
9	BILASPUR	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
_	CUTTACK	0	0	4	300	100	799	2	247	-	25	09
∞	DEORIA	4	160	30	518	18	163	က	655	0	0	178
ი	FATEHPUR	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
9	GULBARGA	25	1008	10	1023	53	365	15	2467	Ø	80	126
Ξ	HAMIRPUR	-	83	-	83	49	181	7	442	0	0	0
57	HAZIPUR	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
13	JALANDHAR	4	913	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
4	UDHAMPUR	176	1286	0	0	48	428	110	0	0	0	0
15	JHANSI	0	0	240	3710	69	623	0	0	17	280	298
9	UNUHUNUHU	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	SUB-TOTAL -1	305	4,872	322	6,327	429	3,595	177	8,316	29	603	3,000

NCUI Annual I	Report	2019-20
---------------	--------	---------

	NCI	JI Coop	erative E Project-	ducation l	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	ts (Exce	pt Women year 2019	& NE Pro	ojects)	Anne	Annexure - VII (Contd.)	(Contd.)
is S	Projects	Ser confe work	Seminar/ conferences/ workshops	Training programised organised fields (organised income gactive active	Training programmes organised in various fields (other than income generation activities	Guid MC rr	Guidance in MC meetings	Guic in /	Guidance in AGM	Documentary film show arrangement		No. of persons who have learn to write
		Ö	Parti- cipant	Ö	Parti- cipant	N.	Parti- cipant	Ö	Parti- cipant	Ö	Parti- cipant	their
4	JODHPUR	8	160	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	260
8	KHURDA	0	0	0	0	10	125	∞	612	0	0	107
19	PILIBHIT	0	0	0	0	15	139	က	371	0	0	22
8	PANAJI	0	0	0	0	4	743	0	0	0	0	0
72	PORT BLAIR	4	120	ო	06	4	307	2	325	0	0	4
83	RAGHOGARH	84	812	13	195	8	741	Ξ	250	7	303	126
ន	RAIGANJ	0	0	0	0	16	146	0	0	0	0	145
24	RAIPUR	4	269	ო	98	17	136	10	1670	0	0	28
52	RATLAM	0	0	2	162	က	က	က	800	0	0	15
28	SAWAI MADHOPUR	0	0	4	26	24	216	10	4275	10	180	<del>1</del> 2
27	<b>SURENDRA NAGAR</b>	-	47	73	855	10	110	Ξ	672	13	195	9
88	THIRUVANANTHAPURAM	0	0	0	20	37	262	0	0	0	0	0
83	UJJAIN	0	0	-	55	Ξ	87	0	0	0	0	2
30	UNNAO	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	152
3	VIJAYAWADA	4	215	56	425	28	754	2	8784	0	0	255
	SUB-TOTAL - 2	116	1,923	146	1,944	339	3,769	99	17,759	34	829	1,372
	SUB-TOTAL - 1	305	4,872	322	6,327	429	3,595	177	8,316	53	603	3,000
	GRAND TOTAL	421	6,795	468	8,271	768	7,364	243	26,075	63	1,281	4,372

NCUI Annual Report 2019-20

	Project-wise Progress of Self-Help	s of Self-He		organised b	y CEI/LCE	as on 31st M	larch 2020 (E	Groups organised by CEI/LCEI as on 31⁵t March 2020 (Except Women & NE Projects)	& NE Projec	
is S	Project	Since i upto Me	Since inception upto March 2020	During April 2019 to March 2020	vril 2019 1 2020	No. of bene- ficiaries April 2019 to March	Approx. income earned per member in (Rs.) during	SHG converted into cooperative	Thrift collected during the year	Loan disbursed during the year
		No.	Mem.	No.	Mem.	2020	the year	year 2019-20	(in Rs.)	(in Rs.)
-	AHMEDABAD	5	29	-	10	0	0	0	4000	0
8	AMETHI	_	135	<del>1</del>	198	145	8500	9	116324	116702
က	ARRAH	4	20	4	48	170	15000	0	1292882	431300
4	BAGPAT	41	415	Ø	20	0	1000	0	12000	30000
2	BATHINDA	92	1248	9	75	37	2300	0	14700	30300
9	BILASPUR	13	130	0	0	65	20000	7	370000	237500
7	CUTTACK	4	516	Ø	27	451	20000	0	523200	530400
ω	DEORIA	4	48	0	0	0	38500	0	0	106325
6	FATEHPUR	4	09	4	09	2	36000	0	272000	125000
9	GULBARGA	569	4170	10	150	524	38000	80	202000	2002000
Ξ	HAMIRPUR	17	228	Ø	R	93	40000	0	95400	54500
72	HAZIPUR	24	287	Ø	24	125	24000	7	107460	122600
13	JALANDHAR	37	469	4	72	0	21000	0	0	394000
4	UDHAMPUR	148	1492	12	128	188	21000	0	29940	120400
15	JHANSI	99	069	4	40	0	40000	0	1234560	526000
16	JHUNJHUNU	4	999	9	96	1728	15600	6	457200	2423500
	SUB-TOTAL - 1	671	10,671	73	953	3,531	370,900	32	4,731,666	10,253,527

NCUI A	Annual	Report	2019-20
--------	--------	--------	---------

SI. Project No. 17 JODHPUR	Project-wise Progress of Self-Help ject Since ince upto March No. IURDA 146	Since ir	Self-Help Groups or	ganised by	y CEI/LCEI	as on 31st Ma	arch 2020 (E	Groups organised by CEI/LCEI as on 31st March 2020 (Except Women & NE Projects)	ا & NE Projec ن	its)
<u> </u>	our Ac	Since ir upto Ma	nception		0,00					
	our DA	j	upto March 2020	During April 2019 to March 2020	2020 L	No. of beneficiaries April 2019	Approx. income earned per member in	SHG converted into cooperative	Thrift collected during the year	disbursed during the
	vuR JA	No.	Mem.	No.	Mem.	2020	the year	year 2019-20	(in Rs.)	(in Rs.)
	AC	4	140	0	0	140	0	0	1221000	0
18 KHURDA		146	1615	Ξ	110	182	3000	0	110000	2800000
19 PILIBHIT	Ę	0	0	7	23	0	0	0	10600	2200
20 PANAJI Goa	II Goa	19	283	7	35	0	40000	0	718300	2179200
21 PORT BLAIR	BLAIR	17	172	0	20	120	11000	-	487000	935000
22 RAGHC	RAGHOGARH	24	240	4	40	56	2500	0	193300	121800
23 RAIGANJ	, N.	122	1192	12	120	276	12000	0	715240	2892000
24 RAIPUR	Œ	17	190	7	23	20	2000	0	145740	20000
25 RATLAM	<b>N</b>	2	24	8	263	22	2500	15	20000	86000
26 SAWAI	SAWAI MADHOPUR	8	360	0	35	0	3200	0	360000	442000
27 SUREN	SURENDRA NAGAR	9	136	4	28	23	0		327950	51500
28 THIRU\	THIRUVANANTHAPURAM	22	1320	2	29	850	30000	0	442725	1072750
29 UJJAIN	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
30 UNNAO	0	2	879	4	29	0	0009	0	671000	371284
31 VIJAYA	VIJAYAWADA	150	1512	2	70	1068	30000	2	583360	11803000
SUB-T	SUB-TOTAL - 2	999	8,063	75	913	2,791	142,500	18	6,037,115	22,830,034
SUB-T	SUB-TOTAL - 1	671	10,671	73	953	3,531	370,900	32	4,731,666	10,253,527
GRAN	GRAND TOTAL 1	1,337	18,734	148	1,866	6,322	513,400	20	10,768,781	33,083,561

×			.j. ‡	4	က	_			
ure - L		ers	Partici- pant	4964	23	5017			
Annexure - IX		Others	Classes	324	2	329			
		Income generation	Partici- pant	7814	637	8451			
	rojects	lnc	Classes	582	35	617			
	UI UDS F	levelop. mmes/ V/Aids	Partici- pant	7109	5086	12195			
	nder NC	Social develop. programmes/ F.W./HIV/Aids	Classes	585	298	883	6	_	
	- 2020 u	ılt ıcy	Partici- pant	82/8	1377	10165	5349		
	3102 gui	Adult literacy	Classes	772	162	934			
	ated dur	G ngs	Partici- pant	7671	2194	9865	sses hel		
L L	en Educ	SHG meetings	Classes	029	151	821	er of cla		
	ot wom	ational tings	Partici- pant	10698	3573	14271	al numb		
	se details	Motivational meetings	Classes	793	257	1050	s the tot		
	Activities-wise details of Women Educated during 2019- 2020 under NCUI UDS Projects	Cooperative education	Partici- pant	6313	2434	8747	lactivitie		
•	Activ	Coop	Classes	525	190	715	ucting al		
	-	Activity		39 UDS Projects	4 Exclusive Women Projects	Total	For conducting all activities the total number of classes held		

NCUI	Annual	Report	2019-20
------	--------	--------	---------

Project Name   Project Same   Project Name   Proj													Anne	Annexure - X
Since to Name			NCUI's	Women ( Pro Farget of	Cooperati ogress of Self Help	ive Educal Self Help Groups di	tion Fiel Groups uring th	d Project: during th e years p	s Women Si e 2019 - 20; er LM/LCEI	elf Help Gro 20   per year	sdno			
AbohartiPunjab)*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         Abuhardad (dujarat)         Abuhardad (dujarat)         60         831         4         42         64         873         647190         70000         70         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0 <t< th=""><th></th><th>Project Name</th><th>SHGs as on 31.03.2020</th><th>Member- ship of SHGs as on 31.3.2020</th><th>SHGs formed during 1.4.2019 to 31.3.2020</th><th>Member- ship of SHGs 1.4.2019 to 31.3.2020</th><th>Total SHGs as on March 2019</th><th>Total Member- ship as on March 2020</th><th>Thrift collected during the year</th><th>Loan disburse- ment during ther year</th><th>No. of benefi- ciaries</th><th></th><th>SHGs conver- ted into upto March 2020</th><th>No. of persons who have write to learn their names</th></t<>		Project Name	SHGs as on 31.03.2020	Member- ship of SHGs as on 31.3.2020	SHGs formed during 1.4.2019 to 31.3.2020	Member- ship of SHGs 1.4.2019 to 31.3.2020	Total SHGs as on March 2019	Total Member- ship as on March 2020	Thrift collected during the year	Loan disburse- ment during ther year	No. of benefi- ciaries		SHGs conver- ted into upto March 2020	No. of persons who have write to learn their names
Altramedabad (Gujarat)         60         831         4         42         64         873         697190         700         70         20000         0           Aixwall Mizoram)         70         768         6         58         76         86         76         60         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0 </td <th></th> <td>Abohar(Punjab)*</td> <td>0</td>		Abohar(Punjab)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aizerial (Mizoram)         768         6         6         6         76         76         768         6         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         77         76         77         76         77         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         77         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76         76		Ahmedabad (Gujarat)	09	831	4	42	9	873	697190	210000	20	20000	0	131
Anantag(JaK)**         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0		Aizwal (Mizoram)	70	292	9	28	92	826	334670	265000	73	0006	0	0
Arrah (Bhar)**         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0		Anantag(J&K)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Baghpatt 6i1 687 5 54 66 741 52200 2800 26 9500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		Arrah (Bihar)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Bilaspur 52 548 5 54 57 116 172 569854 699406 480 500 0 0 Cuttuck (Orissa) 110 1643 6 77 116 1720 569854 699406 480 4000 0 0 Cuttuck (Orissa) 110 1643 6 77 116 1720 569854 699406 480 4000 0 0 Cuttuck (Orissa) 110 1643 6 77 116 1720 569854 699406 480 4000 0 0 Cuttuck (Orissa) 110 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173		Baghpat	61	289	2	54	99	741	52200	28000	26	9200	0	265
Cuttuck (Orissa)         110         1643         6         77         116         1720         569854         699406         480         400         0         0           Deoria**         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0	5	Bilaspur	52	548	2	54	22	602	228060	259000	93	2000	0	25
ur         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0	6	Cuttuck (Orissa)	110	1643	9	77	116	1720	569854	699406	480	4000	0	10
ur         79         1185         4         60         83         1245         352000         695000         18         36000         0           32         512         2         24         34         536         5,586,200         1,297,417         512         4000         0           34         519         5         60         5         579         578         6,586,200         1,297,417         512         4000         0           Avaishali (Bihar)*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0 <th></th> <td>Deoria*</td> <td>0</td>		Deoria*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ga (Karn.)         47         519         2         24         34         536, 200         1,297,417         512         4000         0           av (kain.)         47         519         5         60         52         579         538, 200         1,297,417         512         4000         0           v. Vaishali (Bihar)*         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9         9		Fatehpur	62	1185	4	09	83	1245	352000	695000	18	36000	0	43
ga (Karn.)         47         519         5         60         52         579         5.48         16.93         85         65000         5           Ausishali (Bihar)*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0<		Goa	32	512	0	24	34	536	5,358,200	1,297,417	512	4000	0	0
vaishali (Bihar)*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0		Gulbarga (Karn.)	47	519	2	09	52	219	5.48	16.93	85	65000	5	0
nart         55         807         5         75         60         882         6.25         9.25         0         20000         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0		Hazipur, Vaishali (Bihar)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
pur         18         27         6         1324         24         1351         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         1139         24800         47500         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0		Jalandhar	55	807	2	75	09	882	6.25	29.25	0	20000		25
nuu(Raj.)         44         666         5         51         100         1139         24800         47500         0         0         0         0           r((Rajasthan)*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0		Udhampur	18	27	9	1324	24	1351	0	0	0	0	0	0
nuu(Raji)         44         666         6         96         50         762         457200         2423500         9         15600         0           r((Rajasthan)*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0 <th></th> <td>Jhansi</td> <td>92</td> <td>1088</td> <td>2</td> <td>51</td> <td>100</td> <td>1139</td> <td>24800</td> <td>47500</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>160</td>		Jhansi	92	1088	2	51	100	1139	24800	47500	0	0	0	160
r((Rajasthan)*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0		Jhunjhunu(Raj.)	44	999	9	96	20	762	457200	2423500	6	15600		9/
93 1037 5 51 98 1088 541060 525700 535 65000 0  146 1615 5 50 151 1665 65000 165 3000 0  103 155 6 90 111 1665 142000 286 82000 0  (Hamirpur)* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  (Hamirpur)* 150 1355 5 51 155 1406 16500 90,000 72 31000 0		Jodhpur((Rajasthan)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
146         1615         5         50         151         1665         65000         50000         165         3000         0           105         1575         6         90         111         1665         14200         49000         286         82000         0           81         823         6         64         87         887         463080         433100         524         7600         3           0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           150         1355         51         155         1406         16500         90,000         72         31000         0		Jorhat	66	1037	2	51	86	1088	541060	525700	535	65000	0	65
105         1575         6         90         111         1665         142000         490000         286         82000         0           81         82         87         463080         433100         524         7600         3           90         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           150         1355         51         155         1406         16500         90,000         72         31000         0		Khurda	146	1615	2	20	151	1665	00059	200000	165	3000	0	107
81         823         6         64         87         887         463080         433100         524         7600         3           0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0		Kohima	105	1575	9	06	111	1665	142000	490000	286	82000	0	20
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 1355 51 155 1406 16500 90,000 72 31000 0		Morigaon (Assam)	81	823	9	64	87	887	463080	433100	524	7600	က	99
150 1355 5 51 155 1406 16500 90,000 72 31000 0		Nahan (Hamirpur)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
		Pilibhit (UP)	150	1355	2	51	155	1406	16500	90,000	72	31000		62

NCUI Annual	Report	2019-20
-------------	--------	---------

										Anne	xare - X	Annexure - X (Contd.)
	NCUI's	Women ( Pro Target of	Cooperat ogress of Self Help	ive Educa Self Help Groups d	tion Fiek Groups Iuring the	d Projects during the years po	on Cooperative Education Field Projects Women Self Help G Progress of Self Help Groups during the 2019 - 2020 of Self Help Groups during the years per LM/LCEI per year	NCUI's Women Cooperative Education Field Projects Women Self Help Groups Progress of Self Help Groups during the 2019 - 2020 Target of Self Help Groups during the years per LM/LCEI per year	sdno			
Project Name	SHGs as on 31.03.2020	Member- ship of SHGs as on 31.3.2020	SHGs formed during 1.4.2019 to 31.3.2020	Member- ship of SHGs 1.4.2019 to 31.3.2020	Total SHGs as on March 2019	Total Member- ship as on March 2020	Thrift collected during the year	Loan disburse- ment during ther year	No. of benefi- ciaries	Average income earned per members	SHGs conver- ted into upto March 2020	No. of persons who have write to learn their names
Port Blair (A &N) Islands	494	5538	6	125	503	5663	339000	4,880,000	6662	150000	13	120
Raghogarh (Madhya Pradesh)	108	1460	9	06	114	1550	216000	488900	1568	45000	က	82
Raiganj (West Bengal)	110	1122	9	63	116	1185	646540	4279000	310	0	0	0
Ratlam	65	655	2	53	70	208	150000	150000	260	8000	0	132
Sawai Madhopur (Raj.)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Shilong(Meghalaya)	26	926	2	20	102	1026	175300	00006	84	2000	0	16
Sultanpur (Raj.)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Surrendra Nagar	13	151	က	30	16	181	155400	97000	0	0	0	249
Thiruvanthapuram (Kerala)	77	1049	9	71	83	1120	205940	1144500	1050	25000	0	140
Thoubal (Manipur)	22	310	7	20	24	330	26000	20000	140	10000	7	100
Ujjain (Madhya Pradesh)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unnao (UP)	88	1061	2	22	93	1116	324973	1412000	0	0006	0	89
Vijawada(AP)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
West Sikkim (Sikkim)*	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Total	2372	28008	133	2838	2505	30846 1	30846 11540978.73	20525069.18	13022	625700	26	1952
Women Projects												
Aska	839	5380	123	630	962	6010	931115	5485000	285	20000	0	475
Bhopal	140	2106	26	300	166	2406	4136020	777668000				
Manipur (Imphal)	222	2792	21	214	243	3006	2585300	2193700	1220	00009	17	95
Shimoga	201	2578	20	205	221	2783	2069300	1747950	232	3500	27	80
TOTAL	1402	12856	190	1349	1592	14205	9721735	787094650	1737	113500	44	650
GRAND TOTAL	3774	40864	323	4187	4097	45051 2	45051 21262713.73	807619719.2	14759	739200	70	2602

Annexure - XI
Activities-wise Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects
(North East States) (Consolidated) 2019-20

SI.	Programmes	Events	Ве	neficiaries	/Participan	its
No.				C	ot of which	า
			Total	SC/ST	Women	Minority
A	Cooperative Education Programmes					
1	Secretaries/Managers	50	608	143	294	29
2	Managing Committee Members	243	2,973	299	1,527	66
3	Members & Potential Members Courses	318	6,242	317	2,916	81
4	Leadership Development Programmes	113	495	135	313	33
5	Youth Camps / Meetings	82	2,305	168	1,046	40
6 7	Meeting on Credit /Recovery/Deposits Mobilisation		1,846	784	1,704	232
8	Formation of SHG's (Motivational Meetings) Others	104 107	2,374	1,171 267	2,433 2,074	335 314
<u> </u>			1,454			
	Total (A):	1,048	18,297	3,284	12,307	1,130
B :	Social Development Programmes (conducted by Cooperative Education Instructor	s)				
1	Family Welfare Education	59	831	142	603	81
2	Health Education (AIDS)	53	707	122	469	28
3	Adult Education	54	582	363	470	51
4	Social Welfare	32	755	17	681	63
5	Enviornment Protection	11	130	16	110	4
6	Programme on climate change	19	230	52	167	11
	Total (B):	228	3,235	712	2,500	238
<b>C</b> :	Farm Guidance Programmes					
1	Crop Development	16	240	16	61	6
2	Dairy/Poultry/Cattle Development	20	290	11	35	-
3	Horticulture Development	11	170	10	86	-
4	Plant Protection	29	415	13	51 75	8
5 6	Vegetable Development Mktg./Grading of Agricultural Produce	11 30	190 450	8 27	75 35	10
7	Use and application of Fertiliser	12	210	-	71	11
8	Fodder Development	10	150	13	27	- ' '
9	Farmers Meetings	40	650	30	123	_
10	Oil & Pulses Development	8	120	10	12	_
11	Environment Protection	17	245	21	32	_
12	Water Harvesting	17	245	20	24	10
13	Others(Specify)	25	325	20	193	14
	Total (C):	246	3,700	199	825	59
D:	Other Programme					
1	Skill Development	14	708	-	534	-
2	Block Level Conference	4	88		55	
	Total (D):	18	796	-	589	-

#### Annexure - XII

## Cooperative Edcuation Field Projects (North East States) Highlights of Achievements (Consolidatied) (April 2019 to March 2020)

S.No.	Name of Programmes	No. of Participants
1	New Socities registered during the year	30
2	Societies Revitalised	9
3	New Members enrolled	85
4	(i) BDP Formulated	46
	(ii) BDP Implemented	8
5	Kisan Cards arranged to farmers	279
6	No. of Persons benefited under Income Generating Scheme	654
7	No. of SHGs formed	66
8	No. of Membership	796
9	No.of SHGs converted into Cooperatives	4
10	Plantation of Trees	0
11	Soil sample tested	10
12	Seed sample tested	15
13	Farmers Clubs promoted under VVV Scheme of Nabard	22
14	No. of Members	420
15	Plot Demonstration	55
16	Seminar / Conferences / Workshops	4
17	No. of Participants	290
18	No. of Persons who have learnt to write their names	47
19	Exposure Visit	0
20	No. of Participants	0
21	Workshop for Youth	16
22	No. of Participants	420
23	Vermi Compost Pit	2
24	No. of Participants	25
25	Skill Devl. Pro.	1
26	No. of Participants	30
27	Block level confrence	1
28	No. of Participants	24
29	Leadership Development Programme	138
30	No. of Participants	945

					_							
Annexure - XIII			(S)	(-/+)%	0	0	92.9	19.5	0	0	26	
Anne		Increase in Ioaning	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2019-20	0	0	8.36	52	0	217.93	251	
		Incre	Amo	2018-19	0	0	1.6	1.52	0	267	270	
	st States) !019-20	re capital	ı lakhs)	(-/+) %	0.015	0.2	90:0	1.35	0.015	<del>.</del> .	3	
	t (North Ea g the year 2	Increase in share capital	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2019-20	4.613	0.2	22.24	9	46.13	41.1	174	
	Field Projec nents durin	Incr	Am	2018-19	4.598	0.4	22.68	46.5	4.5	4.8	88	
	Education   se achiever	New members	enrolled		9	50	29	30	9	211	332	
	Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise achievements during the year 2019-20	Societies revitalised			ဇ	0	α	-	ო	0	6	
	0	New societies registered	during the year		0	Ø	0	0	88	0	30	
		Name of Project N			AIZWAL (Mizoram)	THOUBAL (Manipur)	JORHAT (Assam)	KOHIMA (Nagaland)	MORIGAON (Assam)	SHILLONG (Meghalaya)	TOTAL	
		S. S.			-	N	က	4	2	9		

I (Contd.)	٥	Imple-	(-/+) %	0	0	6	9	0	0	15	
Annexure - XIII (Contd.)	BDP	Formu-	2019-20	0	10	41	8	0	0	28	
•	No. of societies in	Loss	2018-19	15	10	0	0	15	Ŋ	45	
tates) -20	No. of s	Profit	(-/+) %	15	Ŋ	0	40	15	4	68	
rth East S year 2019	sit	hs)	(-/+)%	0.01	1.16	7.43	5.5	0.01	0	41	
Project (No during the	Increase in deposit	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2019-20	0.2	1.16	10.29	15.5	0.2	84	75	
tion Field F evements	Increa	Amoun	2018-19	0.19	-	2.86	10	0.19	51	65	
Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise achievements during the year 2019-20	in recovery	lakhs)	(-/+) %	0	0	0.62	4	0	0	ια	
Cooperat	Increase in rec	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2019-20	0	0	0.19	20.5	0	267.67	788	
	Inc	Amc	2018-19	0	0	0.81	16.5	0	293.71	311	
	Projects		I	AIZWAL (Mizoram)	THOUBAL (Manipur)	JORHAT (Assam)	KOHIMA (Nagaland)	MORIGAON (Assam)	SHILLONG (Meghalaya) 293.71	Total	
	SI.	Š.		-	7	က	4	2	9		

I (Contd.)		Water Harvesting Programme		Membe- ship	0	25	98	0	0	0	119	
Annexure - XIII (Contd.)		Water Ha		No.	0	2	တ	0	0	0	=	
An		der	ле year 2020	Membe- ship	. 20	82	0	0	20	0	125	
	ites) 20	romoted und of NABARD	During the year 2019-2020	NO.	<del>-</del>	ო	0	0	-	0	ια	
	Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2019-20	Farmers Clubs promoted under VVV shceme of NABARD	Since inception to March, 2020	Membe- ship	160	420	0	0	160	0	740	
	ld Project (I nts during t	iŭ	Since ir Marc	Ö	∞	23	0	0	∞	0	8	
	Education Fie e Achieveme	No. of persons benefited under income generation		Per annum Ave. income	0009	1,000	3800	1500	0009	4000	22,300	
	operative E Project-wis	No. of benefi income	<u> </u>	No.	612	42	262	09	612	497	2,085	
	S	Kisan cards arranged	5		0	က	276	99	0	211	520	
		Projects			AIZWAL (Mizoram)	THOUBAL (Manipur)	JORHAT (Assam)	KOHIMA (Nagaland)	MORIGAON (Assam)	SHILLONG (Meghalaya)	TOTAL	
		ng Ng			-	8	က	4	2	9		

tration  Soil/seed samples Farmers plants treatment No. of income Soil (Rs.)  Project-wise achievements during the year 2019-20  Soil/seed samples Farmers plants (plants plants)  Soil/seed samples Farmers plants (plants plants)  Soil/seed samples Farmers plants (plants plant)  Soil/seed samples Farmers plants (plants plant)	Farmers plan (plan	019-20 Farmers provided	d		
Soil/seed samples treatment Seed No. Partic	Farmers plan (plar	provided	-		
Seed	1	plants etc.	study visit t members of MC	or	PCC meeting held
	of trees)	es)		<u> </u>	
par	i- No.	Persons	O	Persons	No. Partici-
	of Plant	benefit- ted		benefit- ted	pant
0 0	0	0	0	0	+
276 15	10	244	0	0	0 0
0 0	0	0	0	0	0
0 0	3000	35	0	0	0 0
0 0	0	0	0	0	1
0 0	400	24	0	0	0 0
			35 0 42		0 0 0

										<del>                                     </del>	
Annexure - XIII (Contd.)		No. of persons who have learn to write their		100%	47	88	9	100	152	395	
nexure - )		Documentary film show arrangement	Partici- pant	0	0	254	0	0	0	254	
Ą		Docu filn arra	S.	0	0	83	0	0	0	22	
		Guidance in AGM	Partici- pant	975	196	1925	821	975	7390	12,282	
	st States 019-20	ਲੁ .≒	No.	99	10	ო	36	99	4	123	
	ct (North Eas ig the year 20	Guidance in MC meetings	Partici- pant	1500	360	167	1015	1500	3200	7,742	
	d Projects Is durin	GE ME	S.	150	99	4	91	150	40	475	
	Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise achievements during the year 2019-20	Training programmes organised in various fields (other than income generation activities	Partici- pant	275	200	3050	140	275	0	4,240	
	erative Ec ject-wise	Training organis fields incom	Ö	=	2	255	_	Ξ	0	289	
	Coop	Seminar/ conferences/ workshops	Partici- pant	œ 8	260		2	30	0	390	
		Ser confe work	Ö	-	ო		0	-	0		
		Projects	•	AIZWAL (Mizoram)	THOUBAL (Manipur)	JORHAT (Assam)	KOHIMA (Nagaland)	MORIGAON (Assam)	SHILLONG (Meghalaya)	TOTAL	
		ng S		-	N	က	4	2	9		

Annexure- tates)  Cooperative education Programme  Minority E P SC/ST Vomen  Cooperative education Programme  127 0 2556 248 540 1606 1606 1606 1606 1607 127 1896 331 1022 248 540 540 540 540 540 540 540 540 540 540	Ž		\ <u></u>				0	·(C	0	
Anne. Hive Education Field Projects during the year 2019-20— h East States)  of which	xure -	vhich	Minority	388	27	359	J	326	)	1130
Hive Education Field Projects during the year 20           h East States)         Cooperative education Programme         SC/ST           of which         Cooperative education Programme         SC/ST           2056         388         150         125         1606           2017         586         157         1896         331           8030         0         469         8876         51           1634         326         172         3,004         1,048           1401         0         160         1840         0           6221         1427         1048         18297         3284	<i>Anne,</i> 119-20 –	Out of v	Women	1606	540	1022	6517	1,634	886	12307
Hive Education Field Projects during the Heast States)           of which others         Cooperative education Programme           omen         Minority         E         P           2056         388         150         125           2017         586         157         1896           8030         0         469         8876           1634         326         172         3,004           1401         0         1840         18297	ne year 20		SC/ST	1606	248	331	51	1,048	0	3284
of which   Cooperative   Programmen   Minority   E   Programmen   Programmen   Programmen   E   Programmen   Programmen	during th	education nme	۵	125	2556	1896	8876	3,004	1840	18297
of which of	eld Projects	Cooperative Prograi	ш	150	0	157	469	172	100	1048
tive E. of which of w	ducation Fi		Minority	388	127	286	0	326	0	1427
Nort	perative Ed North East	Out of which	Women	2056	1083	2017	8030	1634	1401	16221
SC/ST 549 549 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ed by Cook ect-wise (I		SC/ST	2056	491	549	51	1048	0	4195
grammes organise           Project           Overall education programme           Events         Beneficiaries           193         5931           255         3050           585         11237           172         3004           155         2651           1540         26028	s organise Proj	ducation	Benefi- ciaries	155	5931	3050	11237	3004	2651	26028
1540   Coverall e progra   Coverall e progra   180   180   172   172   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   154   1	rogramme	Overall e	Events	180	193	255	585	172	155	1540
States Manipur Assam Meghalaya Meghalaya	tive Education P	States		Mizoram	Manipur	Assam	Nagaland	Assam	Meghalaya	
Cooperat  Name of Project Aizwal Jorhat Kohima Morigaon Shillong Total	Cooperat	ame of roject		Aizwal	Thobal	Jorhat	Kohima	Morigaon	Shillong	Total
S. S.		ZĒ		1 .						

NCUI An	nual Report	2019-20
---------	-------------	---------

_				_							
(Contd.)		vhich	Minority	0	29	0	0	0	0	59	
Annexure - XIV (Contd.)	19-20 –	Out of which	Women	0	340	175	0	0	310	825	
Anne	he year 2(		SC/ST	0	191	∞	0	0	0	199	
	s during t	idance	۵	0	2895	175	0	0	630	3700	
	ld Project	Farm guidance Programme	ш	0	193	15	0	0	38	246	
	ducation Fie States)	<u></u>	Minority	0	1	227	0	0	0	238	
	inised by Cooperative Education Project-wise (North East States)	Out of which	Women	450	203	820	932	0	95	2500	
	d by Cook ect-wise (P		SC/ST	450	25	210	0	0	0	712	
	s organise Proje	development	۵	30	480	626	1586	0	160	3235	
	rogramme	Social developn programme	ш	99	0	88	66	0	16	228	
	Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects  during the year 2019-20 – Project-wise (North East States)	States	,	Mizoram	Manipur	Assam	Nagaland	Assam	Meghalaya		
	Coopera	Name of Project		Aizwal	Thobal	Jorhat	Kohima	Morigaon	Shillong	Total	
		e S		-	N	က	4	2	9		

				_							
Annexure - XIV (Contd.)	20 –		Minority	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Annexur	ıring the year 2019-	Out of which	Women	0	0	0	581	0	∞	589	
	Field Projects du		SC/ST	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	nnised by Cooperative Education Project-wise (North East States)	nent	۵	0	0	0	775	0	24	796	
	mes organised by Coo Project-wise (	Others Development programme	ш	0	0	0	17	0	-	18	
	Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects  during the year 2019-20 – Project-wise (North East States)	States		Mizoram	Manipur	Assam	Nagaland	Assam	Meghalaya		
	Cooperativ	Name of Project		Aizwal	Thobal	Jorhat	Kohima	Morigaon	Shillong	Total	
		n. S		_	N	က	4	2	9		









## **GENERAL COOPERATIVE POLICIES**

#### **Zonal Conference**

Zonal Conference was organized for Central Zone States on "Challenges and Opportunities for Cooperatives" on 27th July, 2019 at the premises of Indira Gandhi Krishi Vishwavidyalaya, Raipur in which cooperative representatives from the states like Chattisgarh, U.P., Uttarakhand, etc. were present. The Conference was inaugurated by the Chattisgarh Chief Minister Shri Bhupesh Vaghel. Shri Prem Sai Singh Tekam, Cooperative Minister Chattisgarh, Shri Sanjay Kumar Patil, Vice-Chancellor, Indira Gandhi Krishi Vishwavidyalay, Shri S.K. Bansal, Chief General Manager, NABARD a were present on the occasion, Shri Prem Sai Singh Tekam, Cooperative Minister, Chattisgarh said that cooperatives and agriculture are complementary to each other. He highlighted that Chattisgarh is the only state where the farmers have been given loans of around Rs.11,500 crore . Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, President NCUI emphasised that all the schemes and programmes of the state should be implemented by cooperative societies, and the cooperative law in the state should be amended in line with the 97th Constitutional Amendment Act.

One Day Zonal Conferences on Cooperative Development for the Western Zone States of Maharashtra, Goa, Gujarat, Dadra & Nagar Haveli and Daman & Diu and the North Eastern States of Arunachal Pradesh, Assam, Manipur, Meghalaya, Mizoram, Nagaland and Tripura- are

being organized by the NCUI shortly for which the preparatory work has been completed.

#### 17th Indian Cooperative Congress

Preparatory work for organizing 17th Indian Cooperative Congress has been initiated. I The Hon'ble President of India and Hon'ble Prime Minister of India were addressed with the request to inaugurate the 17th Indian Cooperative Congre2ss. The Managing Directors of National Level Federations have been requested to contribute a comprehensive status paper on the theme "Cooperatives for Sustainable Development".

#### Services provided to Cooperative Societies

Several cooperative institutions approached NCUI regarding the issues faced by them. NCUI examined the issues received and extended all possible support to them in solving their problem.

NCUI has taken requisite action on the issues/suggestions received from its member institutions. It has been providing financial assistance to member organsiations for conducting training programmes like LDPs/Capacity Building programmes. NCUI has been contributing @50% of the programme cost for selective programmes under the Central Sector Scheme. Through NCCE, it is organizing training programmes for weaker sections, particularly SC/ST societies at the primary level.

## INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

# Restructuring and Development of NCUI website www.ncui.coop

Restructuring and development of NCUI website www.ncui.coop was undertaken as per the guidelines and standards of Indian Government websites. The content of NCUI website was updated based on the inputs received from its various divisions.

The website was regularly updated with reports, photos, press releases, information of upcoming national/international training programmes, seminars, conferences and other events conducted by various divisions of NCUI during the year.

#### Strengthening of IT Infrastructure in NCUI

During the year, the process for strengthening of IT infrastructure in NCUI was initiated as per requisitions received from various divisions.

#### **Support Services Provided**

The IT division provided various support services i.e. LCD Projector with screen and laptop for the various programmes organised by NCCE, CICTAB and Children Painting Competition programmes, Vaikunth Bhai Mehta Memorial Lecture and All India Cooperative Week Programmes, Quiz Competition etc. The division also helped in preparing power point presentations on various issues from time to time, including the presentation submitted to the Ministry.

#### Monitoring and Maintenance of K7 Enterprise End Point Security Antivirus

The division monitored the K7 Enterprise End Point Security Antivirus regularly to keep a check on any viruses infecting the systems.

#### Social Media Interface of NCUI

During the year, the division regularly updated the information about programmes organised by the various divisions of NCUI on social media sites such as - Facebook, Instagram, Twitter & its Youtube Channel viz. NCUI Diaries. This includes:

- Videos of the programmes
- Bytes taken from participants & speakers
- Photos
- Programme Reports

These accounts are regularly accessed by many cooperators around the World.

#### Wi-Fi Accessibility and Other Activities

The IT division has regularly provided Wi-Fi access to all guests in the NCUI campus. The division regularly monitored the consumption of the internet and handled connectivity issues and other grievances of the Wi-Fi users.

The division, with the support of the Resident Engineer and AMC vendor of IT hardware also regularly resolves the various hardware & software related problems received from various divisions.

## **PUBLICATIONS, PUBLICITY AND PUBLIC RELATIONS**

#### **PUBLIC RELATIONS**

During the year 2019-20, various activities were organised to strengthen the image-building of the organisation and also establish strong liaison with the print and electronic media.

 Nomenclature Meeting of MDs/Senior Officers of National level Federations for Cooperative Week Celebrations

A Nomenclature Meeting of MDs/senior officers of Delhi based national / level cooperative federations was organised on 13<sup>th</sup> August, 2019. In consultation with the MDs/key representatives of national level federations, the theme of the Cooperative Week Celebrations, 66<sup>th</sup> in the series, was fixed as "Role of Cooperatives in New India". It was decided to publish a poster on this occasion, for distribution to a large number of cooperative organizations/state cooperative unions all over the country.

- 2. 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week
- The 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week was organised all over the country from 14th to 20th November, 2019 with "Role of Cooperatives in New India" as the theme. The Inaugural function of the Cooperative week celebrations was held on 14<sup>th</sup> November, 2019. The Chief Guest on this occasion was Shri Santosh Kumar Gangwar, Union Minister of State (Independent Charge) Labour and Employment, Government of India. Chairmen/M.Ds of some cooperatives./key members of NCUI Governing Council were present on the occasion. An audience of around 500 comprising of cooperative officials from various organisations and students/faculty members from some of the management institutes attended the Inaugural function
- A national level Quiz and Extempore Speech competition was organised by NCUI on the occasion of the 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative

Week Celebrations on 19th November, 2019. Necessary coordination in this regard was undertaken with all national level federations. The NCDC team was the winner of the First Prize on the occasion.

- A special issue of the NCUI Journal "The Cooperator", which carried articles from eminent dignitaries including Chairmen/MDs, besides the messages received from President, PM, Cabinet/State Ministers, Governors/Chief Ministers, Cooperative Ministers of States, etc. was released on the occasion.
- An attractive poster on the selected theme '
   Role of Cooperatives in New India" was
   printed and posters were distributed to State
   Cooperative Unions, Registrars of
   Cooperative Societies. Institutes of
   Cooperative Management etc. The posters
   were widely appreciated by all quarters.
- The work related to the Preparation of Guidelines of 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week Celebration, which was uploaded on the NCUI Website in time, was handled by the division.
- A National Workshop on the topic Cooperatives as a Key Partner in Skill Development and Employment Generation' was organised on 12th July, 2019 in which Manish Kumar. MD, National Skill Development Corporation was the Chief Guest. Other key dignitaries who were Guests of Honour on the occasion were- Dr. Vandana Agarwal, Director General, National Skill Development Agency, Mr. Raveendran Kasturl, Group CEO, Uralungul Labour Contract Cooperative Society Ms. Poonam Sharma, Director, NIESBUD, Mr. Raj Kumar, Manager, Agriculture Skill Council of India, etc. along with key representatives of the national level cooperative organisations. The recommendations of the workshop were widely circulated to all concerned.

#### 4. Preparation of NCUI Vision Document 2030

In a major initiative, the Division was involved in the preparation of NCUI Vision Document 2030, a comprehensive document highlighting the future growth strategy of NCUI. The Document approved by the NCUI Governing Council was circulated to all concerned..

# 5. Press Releases of Important Events and Preparation of Draft Speeches/ Messages of NCUI President/C.E.

- Press releases in Hindi and English were prepared and distributed to the national dailies/indiancoop.com on the occasion of Celebration of the International Day of Cooperatives organised in July, 2019.
- National Workshop on 'Cooperatives as Partners in Skill Development for Employment Generation' ICA-NCUI International Workshop on Enhancing Gender Equality in Cooperative Business' held on 20-21st August, 2019
- ◆ Inaugural function of 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week
- NCARDB-NCUI Workshop on Strengthening ARDBs held on 21<sup>st</sup> November, 2019 and distributed to the national dailies/ indiancooperative.com
- NCUI reaction of this year's budget and conversion of urban cooperative banks into small finance companies, Draft Speeches in English/Hindi was prepared for NCUI President on the occasion of NCUI AGM, All India Cooperative Week and State Cooperative Conference organised by BISCOMAUN.
- A message of NCUI President was prepared on the occasion of New Year.

# 6. Preparation Work for NCUI Diary-2020 and Annual Report 2018-19

Based on the decision to publish the NCUI Dairy-2020 on the eve of New Year, the Division compiled all the latest information related to the cooperatives from Cooperative Departments at

Centre/States, Institutes of Cooperative Management, Chairmen/MDs of national federations, Governing Council Members etc. The Diary work was completed within the deadline, and diaries were distributed in time to all concerned. The editing work of Annual Report in English/Hindi was also undertaken by the Division in time.

#### **PUBLICATIONS**

#### 'The Cooperator'—Monthly Journal

'The Cooperator' is a monthly Journal of NCUI. It has both English and Hindi sections and provides a regular communication channel to the cooperative fraternity including cooperative institutions. A number of steps such as change in layout, design, new features, getting articles from reputed authors/experts, incorporation of interviews of Ministers/key dignitaries etc., were initiated, which brought about a definite improvement. During the year under review, all the 12 issues of 'The Cooperator' from April, 2019 to March, 2020 were printed and posted to the subscribers on time.

#### Special Issue

The division published a Special Issue of 'The Cooperator' in the month of November 2019, on the occasion of the 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week. The main theme of the journal was based on Cooperative Week Theme, "Role of Cooperatives in New India". A good number of articles were obtained from the Chairmen/MDs of national level cooperative organisations, besides other experts. The advertisement campaign for the journal fetched good results and a good advertisement revenue was obtained from the Special Issue.

#### **Indian Cooperative Review**

This is a quarterly research journal of NCUI. The issues for the months of April, July,

October, 2019 were printed and posted in time. Letters were issued to MDs/ CEOs of cooperative organisations/teaching faculty/academicians/ experts, to ensure that a large number of quality articles are received for publication in this journal.











#### अध्याय - 6

## राजभाषा का विकास

वर्ष 2019—2020 के दौरान राजभाषा नीति के कार्यान्वयन से संबंधित विशिष्ट उपलब्धियों / कार्यों का संक्षिप्त विवरण

## भारत सरकार की राजभाषा नीति का अनुपालन

जभाषा विभाग, गृह मंत्रालय द्वारा जारी वर्ष 2019—20 का वार्षिक कार्यक्रम, संघ कार्यालय के समस्त अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों में अनुपालन हेतु वितरित किया गया। उक्त वार्षिक कार्यक्रम में निर्धारित लक्ष्यों को प्राप्त करने हेतु, संघ कार्यालय के अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों द्वारा यथा—संभव प्रयास किए गए। राजभाषा अधिनियम 1963 की धारा 3(3) का, संघ कार्यालय में अनुपालन करवाने से संबंधी आवश्यक कार्यवाही की गयी तथा राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रगामी प्रयोग से संबंधित आंकड़े एकत्रित कर, उन्हें तिमाही रिपोर्ट के रूप में समेकित कर राजभाषा विभाग, गृह मंत्रालय तथा कृषि, सहकारिता एवं किसान कल्याण विभाग, कृषि एवं किसान कल्याण मंत्रालय को प्रेषित किया गया तथा मंत्रालयों द्वारा रिपोर्ट से संबंधित दिए गए सुझावों एवं मार्ग दर्शन हेतु आवश्यक कदम उठाए गए।

## हिन्दी पखवाड़े (16 से 30 सितम्बर, 2019)

संघ कार्यालय में दिनांक 16 से 30 सितम्बर, 2019 तक हिन्दी पखवाड़े का आयोजन भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ द्वारा अन्य कार्यालयों के साथ संयुक्त रूप से आयोजित किया गया। इस दौरान निम्नांकित गतिविधियाँ आयोजित की गयीं:

#### 1. हिन्दी दिवस

दिनांक 16 सितम्बर, 2019 को संघ परिसर में स्थित भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ, राष्ट्रीय पिछड़ा वर्ग वित्त एवं विकास निगम, कृषि और प्रसंस्कृत खाद्य उत्पाद निर्यात विकास प्राधिकरण, लघु कृषक कृषि व्यापार संघ द्वारा हिन्दी दिवस समारोह का आयोजन संयुक्त रूप से किया गया। उक्त समारोह में समस्त संस्थाओं के अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों ने बड़े उत्साह के साथ भाग लिया एवं कार्यक्रम को सफल बनाने में अपना महत्वपूर्ण योगदान दिया।

हिन्दी दिवस समारोह की अध्यक्षता राज्यसभा सांसद माननीय डाँ० चंद्रपाल सिंह यादव जी द्वारा की गई। कार्यक्रम के विशेष अतिथि डॉ ऋतु राजपूत जी उपस्थित थी जो कि आकाशवाणी भवन में प्रोग्रामिंग हेड पर कार्यरत है। मुख्य अतिथि ने अपने वक्तव्य में हिन्दी को अधिक से अधिक प्रयोग में लाने हेतु प्रेरित किया तथा वर्तमान में, हिन्दी की आवश्यकता एवं उपयोगिता को विस्तारपूर्वक बताते हुए अपने सारगर्भित विचारों से सभा को लाभाविंत किया। हिन्दी दिवस समारोह के दौरान समस्त संस्थाओं के कार्मिकों द्वारा "हिंदी गीत" को प्रस्तुत किया गया।

भा.रा.सह. संघ ने 14 नवम्बर 2019 को अखिल भारतीय सहकारिता दिवस कार्यक्रम का आयोजन किया गया। इसमें मुख्य अतिथि केन्द्रीय राज्य मंत्री श्री संतोष गंगवार के करकमलों से राजभाषा विशेषांक पत्रिका "दीपशिखा" का विमोचन किया गया। "दीपशिखा" का वार्षिक विशेषांक की सभी ने भरपूर सराहना की। इस विशेषांक में कई प्रतिष्ठित लेखकों एवं कवियों ने अपनी रचनाएं भेजी।

#### हिन्दी पखवाडे के दौरान आयोजित प्रतियोगिताएं

हिन्दी पखवाड़े के दौरान भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ द्वारा विभिन्न प्रतियोगिताओं का आयोजन किया गया जिनका संक्षिप्त ब्यौरा निम्नप्रकार है:

नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन समिति (दक्षिण दिल्ली—।) के तत्वावधान में भा०रा०सह० संघ द्वारा "प्रतियोगिता" का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त प्रतियोगिता के निर्णायक वरिष्ठ फोटो पत्रकार एवं राजभाषा विशेषज्ञ श्री उमेश मेहता थे।

- हिंदी शब्द सामर्थ्य प्रतियोगिता
- हिन्दी कहानी लेखन / कथा विस्तार प्रतियोगिता
- हिन्दी निबंध लेखन प्रतियोगिता
- हिन्दी टिप्पण एवं आलेखन प्रतियोगिता
- हिन्दी आश्भाषण प्रतियोगिता
- अंताक्षरी प्रतियोगिता

उक्त प्रतियोगिता में भा0 रा0 सह0 संघ के अधिकारियों / कर्मचारियों द्वारा बढ़—चढ़ कर भाग लिया गया।

## अनुवाद तथा अन्य द्विभाषी कार्य :

- भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ द्वारा प्रकाशित की जाने वाली सहकारी डायरी 2019 में आवश्यक जानकारियों को द्विभाषी (हिन्दी—अंग्रेजी) रूप में अनुदित कर मुद्रित करवाया गया एवं वितरण किया गया।
- संघ कार्यालय के प्रयोग में आने वाले फोल्डर्स, राईटिंग पैडस, पत्रशीर्ष, अधिकारियों के नाम पट्ट एवं रबड़ की मोहरें आदि द्विभाषी रूप में बनवाई गई।
- संघ कार्यालय में हिन्दी को प्रोत्साहन प्रदान देने हेतु कार्यालय के विभिन्न विभागों द्वारा जारी 1963 की धारा 3(3) से संबंधित कार्यालय आदेशों, फार्म, प्रोफार्मा एवं प्रशिक्षण सामग्री इत्यादि का अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी में अनुवाद करवाकर उक्त को प्रयोग में लाया गया।
- संघ की सामान्य निकाय तथा शासी परिषद् की वार्षिक बैठक के पृष्ठाधार लेख तथा वार्षिक रिपोर्ट द्विभाषी रूप में प्रकाशित की गई।
- विभिन्न अवसरों पर संघ कार्यालय द्वारा जारी प्रेस विज्ञप्तियों को द्विभाषी रूप में प्रकाशित किया गया एवं हिन्दी के प्रमुख समाचार पत्रों में इन्हें स्थान मिला।
- संघ कार्यालय की अंकेक्षण रिपोर्ट वर्ष 2019—20 का अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी अनुवाद करवाया गया एवं संबंधित विभाग को सौंपा गया।
- संघ कार्यालय के राष्ट्रीय सहकारी डाटा बैंक प्रभाग द्वारा प्रेषित पत्रों एवं प्रोफार्मा / प्रपत्रों का अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी में अनुवाद किया गया।
- संघ कार्यालय द्वारा प्राथमिक सहकारी समितियों के प्रशिक्षण में उपयुक्त किए जाने वाले पाठ्य सामग्री का अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी में अनुवाद करवाया गया।
- इस वर्ष राजभाषा विभाग ने कार्यालय की हिंदी पत्रिका "दीपशिखा" के विशेषांक का प्रकाशन किया। दिनांक 14.11.2019 को संघ कार्यालय द्वारा सहकारिता सप्ताह के शुभारंभ के उपलक्ष्य श्रम राज्य मंत्री श्री संतोष गंगवार जी मुख्य अतिथि के रूप में पधारे थे। उन्हीं के कर कमलों से "दीपशिखा" का विमोचन करवाया गया। दीपशिखा का वार्षिक विशेषांक की सभी ने भरपूर सराहना की। इस विशेषांक में कई प्रतिष्ठित लेखकों एवं कवियों ने अपनी रचनाएं भेजी है उसे इस विशेषांक में छापा गया है।

- राजभाषा विभाग द्वारा 15 विभागों में अंग्रेजी से हिंदी अनुवाद कार्य करने के लिए शब्दकोष को मंगवाया गया। जिसे समयानुसार सभी विभागों में वितरित कर दी जाएगी।
- इसी वर्ष के दौरान श्री राजीव गंगवार लेखक के मॉ हिंदी पुस्तक क्य कर पुस्तकालय में रखा गया। यह एक बहुत अच्छी पुस्तक है जिसे की कार्यालय के अधिकारियों / कर्मचारियों के अध्ययन हेतु क्य किया गया।
- वर्ष भर में नराकास एवं राजभाषा विभाग केंद्र द्वारा बुलाई बैठकों में भी भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ द्वारा भाग लिया गया एवं इन विभागों के द्वारा जारी किए गए दिशा निर्देशों के अनुपालन हेतु संघ कार्यालय में 'यथोचित कार्रवाई की गई।
- राजभाषा विभाग द्वारा इस वर्ष में कार्यालय की कर्मचारियों की हिंदी ज्ञानवर्धन हेतु प्रतिदिन एक शब्द कार्यालय उपयोग का एक शब्द नोटिस बोर्ड पर लगाया जाता है। और सभी विभागों की इस गतिविधि में प्रतिभागिता बढ़ाने के लिए समय—सारणी बनाकर प्रतिदिन एक सुविचार लिखने के लिए प्रेरित किया गया। जिसमें सभी विभागों ने बहुत रूचि दिखाई और उत्साह पूर्वक साथ भी दिया।
- इसके अतिरिक्त राजभाषा के प्रसार एवं प्रयोग को कार्यालय में बढ़ाने हेतु मुख्य कार्यकारी महोदय के माध्यम से दिशा निदेश, सूचना, विज्ञप्ति एवं परिपत्र आदि जारी करवाए गए।

#### हिन्दी दिवस

- संघ कार्यालय में राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रोत्साहन हेतु दिनांक 16.09.2019 को हिन्दी दिवस का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त कार्यशाला को डॉ स्नेह ठाकुर द्वारा संबोधित किया गया। इस अवसर पर भा०रा०सह०संघ अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों ने भाग लिया।
- राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रति जागरूकता तथा उसके उत्तरोत्तर प्रयोग में गित लाने के उद्देश्य से संघ कार्यालय में दिनांक 30 सितम्बर, 2019 को हिन्दी कार्यशाला का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त कार्यशाला को इस कार्यक्रम में मुख्य अतिथि डॉ स्नेह ठाकुर एवं दिल्ली विश्वविघालय के हिंदी प्रोफेसर लक्ष्मा रेड्डी द्वारा संबोधित किया





- गया। इस कार्यशाला में भा.रा.सह. संघ के कुल 75 अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों ने भाग लिया।
- संघ कार्यालय में राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रति जागरूकता लाने के उद्देश्य से दिनांक 28 जनवरी, 2020 को हिन्दी कार्यशाला का आयोजन किया गया, जिसके वक्ता श्रीमती शशि महंत, कार्यक्रम में मुख्य अतिथि के रूप में भारत पर्यटन विकास निगम की प्रबंधक (राजभाषा) को आमंत्रित किया गया था। इनका हिन्दी राजभाषा के क्षेत्र में 29 वर्ष का लम्बा अनुभव रहा है। डीएवी स्कूल में शिक्षण के अलावा आईटीडीसी में लम्बे समय से जुड़ी है। शशि महंत जी हिंदी ऑनर्स में स्नातकोत्तर स्वर्ण पदक विजेता तथा केंद्रीय अनुवाद ब्यूरो, गृह मंत्रालय के अधीन डिप्लोमा कोर्स में स्वर्ण पदक से सम्मानित है।

## सरकारी कार्यालयों में राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन एवं राजभाषा के प्रति उत्तरदायित्व

हिन्दी भाषा की महत्ता पर प्रकाश डाला और प्रबंधक (राजभाषा) द्वारा उक्त कार्यशाला में राजभाषा के प्रयोग में आने वाली कठिनाईयों पर विचार—विमर्श तथा उनके हल सुझाए गए। इस कार्यशाला में हिन्दी साहित्य से संबंधित प्रश्नोत्तरी एवं सामान्य ज्ञान प्रतियोगिता का भी आयोजन किया गया जसमें सभी अधिकारियों / कर्मचारियों ने बढ़—चढ़ कर हिस्सा लिया।

#### नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन समिति संबंधी गतिविधियां :

- नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन समिति के सदस्य कार्यालयों के लिए आयोजित बैठकों में संघ कार्यालय के उप. निदेशक (राजभाषा), हिंदी अधिकारी एवं अवर श्रेणी लिपिक (राजभाषा) ने समय–समय पर भाग लिया।
- संघ कार्यालय की हिन्दी के प्रगामी प्रयोग से संबंधित छमाही रिपोर्ट (जुलाई, 2019 से दिसम्बर, 2019 तक) तैयार की गई एवं नराकास को प्रेषित की गई।

हिन्दी को प्रोत्साहन प्रदान करने हेतु हिन्दी विभाग द्वारा किये गये अन्य कार्य :

राजभाषा के प्रगामी प्रयोग से संबंधित संघ कार्यालय के हिन्दी अनुभाग का वर्ष 2020—2021 का वार्षिक कार्यक्रम तैयार किया गया तथा वार्षिक प्रतिवेदन हेतु वर्ष 2018—19 के कार्यक्रमों पर की गई अनुवर्ती कार्रवाई रिपोर्ट तैयार कर आवश्यक कार्रवाई हेतु संघ कार्यालय के बोर्ड डिविजन को भिजवाई गई।

- राजभाषा विभाग, गृह मंत्रालय द्वारा जारी वर्ष 2019–20 का वार्षिक कार्यक्रम एवं राजभाषा नीति संबंधी निर्देशों की प्रतियाँ संघ कार्यालय के समस्त अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों में अनुपालन हेतु वितरित की गयीं।
- संघ कार्यालय के समस्त विभागाध्यक्ष / विभागाधिकारी अपने अधीनस्थ कार्यरत हिन्दी आशुलिपि / हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य जानने वाले कर्मचारियों से हिन्दी आुलिपि / हिंदी टंकण का कार्य लेने एवं उन्हें लौंग हैण्ड में हिन्दी डिक्टेशन देने तथा उनके विभाग की त्रैमासिक रिपोर्ट हिन्दी अनुभाग को भिजवाने हेतु कार्यालय आदेश जारी किया गया।
- राजभाषा नीति के कार्यान्वयन से संबंधित दिशा—निर्देशों/आदेशों के अनुपालन हेतु एक कार्यालय विज्ञप्ति जारी की गई। कार्यालय विज्ञप्ति में विभागाध्यक्षों से अनुरोध किया गया है कि राजभाषा नीति व नियमों के अनुपालन पर की गई कार्रवाई से समय—समय पर हिन्दी अनुभाग को अपनी रिपोर्ट भिजवायें।
- संघ कार्यालय में हिन्दी पत्राचार को प्रोत्साहन प्रदान करने, टिप्पणियाँ हिन्दी में प्रस्तुत करने, राजभाषा अधिनियम, 1963 की धारा 3(3) का अनुपालन करने, प्राप्त पत्रों (अंग्रेजी एवं हिन्दी) के उत्तर हिन्दी में देने हेतु, फाइलों पर टिप्पणियां हिन्दी में करने हेतु, लिफाफों पर पते हिन्दी में लिखने एवं अधिकारियों द्वारा हिन्दी डिक्टेशन देने हेतु समय-समय पर आवश्यक निर्देश जारी किए गए।
- संघ कार्यालय में समस्त 62 कम्प्यूटरों एवं 04 लेपटॉप पर द्विभाषी (हिन्दी—अंग्रेजी) रूप में टंकण का कार्य करने की एवं यूनिकोड की सुविधा उपलब्ध कराई गई।
- संघ कार्यालय के समस्त विभागाध्यक्ष / विभागाधिकारी अपने अधीनस्थ कार्यरत हिन्दी आशुलिपि / हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य जानने वाले कर्मचारियों से हिन्दी आशुलिपि / हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य लेने एवं उन्हें लौंग हेण्ड में हिन्दी की डिक्टेशन देने तथा उनके विभाग की त्रैमासिक रिपोर्ट हिन्दी अनुभाग को भिजवाने हेतु कार्यालय आदेश जारी किया गया।
- संघ कार्यालय के विभिन्न विभागों से प्राप्त अंग्रेजी पत्रों का हिंदी रूपांतरण किया गया।

- मंत्रालय के दिशानिर्देशानुसार 139वीं बैठक से संबंधित कार्यालय ज्ञापन जारी किया जिसमें कहा गया कि सोमवार एवं शुक्रवार को केवल हिंदी में कार्य किया जाएं।
- 05 नवम्बर, 2019 को पूर्वाह्न 10:00 बजे कृषि भवन, प्रथम तल में स्थित सभागार सं0 142 में आयोजित बैठक में सितंबर, 2019 की समाप्त हिंदी तिमाही की प्रगति रिपोर्ट की समीक्षा बारे 139वीं बैठक के निर्णयों के भा.रा.सह.संघ में क्रियान्वयन हेतु सक्षम अधिकारी की अनुमति से 'सोमवार और शुक्रवार' को सभी विभागों में पूर्ण रूप से हिंदी में काम करने हेतु निर्देश जारी किए गए। इससे संबंधित कार्यालय ज्ञापन निकाला गया।
- राजभाषा विभाग में हिंदी पखवाड़ा एवं हिंदी कार्यशाला में हुए आयोजनों के फोटो एवं विवरण इकट्ठा किया गया तथा आई.टी. वभाग को भेजा गया, जिससे वह विभाग की वेबसाइट पर प्रकाशित कर दें।
- संघ कार्यालय की अंग्रेजी वेबसाईट के अद्यतन सामग्री के हिन्दी रूपांतरण कार्य को राजभाषा विभाग द्वारा जांचा गया।
- संघ कार्यालय के विभिन्न विभागों द्वारा राजभाशा विभाग को अनुवाद हेतु अंग्रेजी भाषा में प्रेशित साम्रगी हस्ताक्षरित रूप में भेजे जाने के संबंध में. कार्यकारी

- निदेशक महोदय के हस्ताक्षर से कार्यालय आदेश जारी किया गया।
- संघ कार्यालय में हिन्दी दिवस समारोह के अवसर पर हिन्दी के प्रमुख समाचार पत्रों में प्रकाशन हेतु प्रेस विज्ञप्ति भेजी गई।
- प्रशासनिक तथा सहकारिता से संबंधित हिन्दी शब्दों से संघ कार्यालय के अधिकारियों तथा कर्मचारियों को अवगत कराने तथा दैनिक काम—काज में इनका प्रयोग बढ़ाने के उद्देश्य से इन शब्दों के अंग्रेजी तथा हिन्दी पर्याय "सप्ताह का शब्द" के रूप में नोटिस बोर्ड पर लगाये गये।
- संघ कार्यालय में हिन्दी को प्रोत्साहन प्रदान करने हेतु हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य जानने वाले कर्मचारियों को अपने संबंधित विभाग का हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य स्वंय करने हेतु समय—समय पर कार्यालय आदेश जारी किए गए।
- संघ कार्यालय से प्रकाशित होने वाली अंग्रेजी पत्रिका
   "दॅ को—ऑपरेटर" में सहकारिता विषय से संबंधित
   हिन्दी के लेख प्रकाशित करने हेतु सामग्री प्रकाशन
   विभाग को भिजवाई गयी।
- संघ कार्यालय के विभिन्न विभागों को हिन्दी के काम–काज में सहयोग प्रदान किया गया।

## INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

The division conducted many important activities during 2019-2020, which included organizing an international workshop titled Enhancing Gender Equality in Cooperative Business, international Training of Trainers (ToT) programme of CICTAB for Cooperatives and Rural Financial Institutions (RFI) for SAARC member countries Celebration of International Cooperative Day, nominations to participate in the International training courses in different countries, etc.

## International Workshop on "Enhancing Gender Equality in Cooperative Business"

NCUI in collaboration with ICA-AP organized an International Workshop on 'Enhancing Gender Equality in Cooperative Business' on 20 - 22 August 2019 at NCUI, New Delhi. The workshop focused on two broad issues - promoting gender equality in the workplace by looking into the issues around parity, opportunity, safety, mobility etc. and improving data, especially related to sexdisaggregated data. As many as 18 participants of members of ICA - AP Women Committee and other representatives from Bhutan, Iran, Maldives. Malaysia, Nepal, Japan, Philippines, Sri Lanka and India participated in the workshop. In addition, 30 women leaders and functionaries from state cooperative unions and members of NCUI National Committee for Empowerment of Women participated in the workshop.

The workshop was inaugurated by Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, President, NCUI and the valedictory address was given by Mrs. Vasudha Mishra, Additional Secretary (Cooperation), Department of Agriculture, Cooperation & Farmers Welfare, Government of India. A study visit was also organized to Southern Star T/C (U) Society.

## Celebration of International Cooperative Day on 1st Saturday of July 2019

The International Day of Cooperatives (#CoopsDay) was celebrated by NCUI in collaboration with ICA-AP on Saturday, 6<sup>th</sup> July 2019 by organizing two events which included a Symposium on the theme "COOPS 4 Decent

Work" and a Children Picture Contest in which 100 children in the age group of 6 to 15 years participated to draw and paint on the theme of Self Expression.

The Chief Guest of the Symposium was His Excellency Mr. Jagdishwar Goburdhun, GOSK, High Commissioner of the Republic of Mauritius in India. The other eminent speakers were Deputy Director of ILO Decent Work Team for South Asia and Country Office for India, Managing Director of NH Bank Korea New Delhi Office, Chairperson of Gujarat State Women's SEWA Cooperative Federation Ahmedabad and Programme Director of Uralungal Labour Contract Cooperative Society Ltd. (ULCCS) Kerala. The Programme Manager of ICA-AP made a presentation on the study conducted by ICA on work and ownership. The Symposium was attended by more than 150 persons including representatives of national level cooperative federations and cooperative organizations in Delhi NCR region.

# International Trainers' Training Programme of CICTAB members of SAARC countries

An International ToT Programme on Training Techniques for Trainers of Cooperative and Rural Financing Institutions was organised by National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI) and the Centre for International Cooperation & Training in Agricultural Banking (CICTAB) Pune from 2 - 6 December 2019 on its premises. As many as 28 participants representing CICTAB members from Nepal, India and Bangladesh participated in the five day training programme. These participants were from Central Bank and Cooperative Bank of Bangladesh, National level Cooperative Training Institutions from India viz., NCDC, NCCT and NCUI and Apex & Central Cooperative Federation of Nepal viz., NCF/ N, NCBL, NEFSCUN and RMDC. The Programme was inaugurated by H. E. Dr. Manoj Nardeosingh Secretary General, AARDO and concluded in presence of Mr.

- Balu G. Iyer, Regional Director, ICA- AP, Director CICTAB, Chief Executive & Sr. Officers of NCUI.
- An International Programme on Training Techniques for Trainers of Cooperative and Rural Financing Institutions (Focused on Case Writing) was organized at VAMNICOM, Pune from 6-8 January, 2020 with the partial sponsorship of NCUI. Eminent faculty members from IRMA were invited to impart training on case writing to the 25 participants from India, Bangaladesh and Nepal.

# Participation in International Seminars, Conferences, Workshops & Meetings

- The ICA-AP Regional Board Meeting was held in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam on April 16 in conjunction with the Second ICA-AP Cooperative Registrars' Forum. ICA Asia and Pacific in partnership with the Vietnam Cooperative Alliance (VCA) organised the Second Asia Pacific Cooperative Registrars' Forum on Creating Enabling Legal Framework and Policies to Promote Sustainable Development of Cooperatives in the 21st Century. The Board meeting was attended by 32 participants, including Mr. Bruno Roelants, ICA Director General, 12 Board members, observers and interpreters. The Chief Executive of NCUI attended the ICA-AP Regional Board Meeting and also participated in the Cooperative Registrars' Forum on behalf of the President NCUI.
- ◆ The International Cooperative Alliance Global Conference and General Assembly 2019 were held on 15 17 October 2019 in Kigali, Rwanda. One of the Vice-Presidents ,Shri G.H. Amin and Chief Executive NCUI were nominated to represent NCUI in the said ICA events. In addition, the International Cooperative Alliance Asia Pacific Regional Board meeting as well as ICA Domus Trust was also held on 13th October 2019. The President, NCUI who is the Vice President of ICA AP Regional Board & member of ICA Domus Trust attended the said meeting along with the Chief Executive NCUI.
- ◆ The Network for the Development of Agricultural Cooperatives in Asia & Pacific

- (NEDAC) EXCOM meeting and meeting of the International Cooperative Banking Association (ICBA) in collaboration with the NEDAC were organised on 12-13 December 2019 in Colombo, Sri Lanka. The Chief Executive of NCUI participated in the said meeting.
- 14th Asia-Pacific Research Conference was held on 12 - 14 December 2019 at the University of Newcastle Australia. More than 100 researchers from various countries of Asia-Pacific Region were present in the conference. Dr. T. Paranjothi, Ex-Professor, VAMNICOM & Vice-Chairman of the committee and Sanjay Kumar Verma, Deputy Director NCUI & Member of the committee participated in the event. The Deputy Director NCUI presented a paper on "Innovative Ways to Strengthen Cooperatives in India through Cooperation among Cooperatives" at the Research Conference. Besides, NCUI also supported the participation of two young researchers from Sree Narayana College, University of Kerala and Ph.D. research scholar from Tata Institute of Social Science, Mumbai to present their papers on cooperatives at the Research Conference

#### Fraternal Delegation's Visit to India

A group of 20 cooperative leaders and functionaries of Savings & Credit Cooperatives (SACCO) from Kenya visited India between 22 - 28 April 2019 for an exposure visit to see the functioning of cooperative institutions in India. NCUI organized the visit of the delegates to relevant cooperative institutions viz. National Federation of Urban Cooperative Banks & Credit Societies (NAFCUB), Southern Star T/C Society and Bhajanpura T/C Society in Delhi, besides arranging their visit to selected places of historical & cultural interest in Delhi & Agra for the above-said period. The delegates were welcomed at NCUI by Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, President NCUI, while the introductory remarks were made by Shri N. Satyanarayana, Chief Executive, NCUI. NCUI also arranged the visit of the delegation to the High Commission of Kenya









- in New Delhi, where the High Commissioner had detailed discussions with the delegates about their learning experience in India.
- A four member delegation under the aegis of National Cooperative Federation of Nepal (NCF/N) headed by Ms. Om Devi Malla, Vice-Chair of NCF/N and Board Member of International Cooperative Alliance (ICA) and accompanied by Professor and Dean of the Faculty of Management of Tribhuvan University, Under Secretary of Ministry of Land Management, Cooperatives and Poverty Alleviation and Officer of the Curriculum Development Centre in the Ministry of Education, Science & Technology, Government of Nepal visited India from 20 -24 May 2019 to study the development of cooperative curriculum in formal education system in India. The delegation met with the Regional Director, ICA – AP and were briefed about the formal cooperative education system run by different countries in Asia Pacific Region. An interactive meeting with the delegation & NCUI officials was organized on 21st May 2019 in NCUI where Director (International Relations) of NCUI made a brief presentation on the Indian Cooperative Movement and the role of NCUI with specific reference to youth and women in the field of cooperative development. Deputy Director, COOP Connect of NCUI also made a detailed presentation on the present status of curriculum development of cooperatives in the formal education system in India with special emphasis on school education and the active role of NCUI in this endeavour. Deputy Director, NCCE shared the details of the diploma programme run by NCCE, and suggested that there should be active participation of faculty members of Tribhuvan University in the faculty development programme organized in NCCE every year. NCUI in collaboration with the Mysore University also arranged a study exposure visit to Mysore University and other educational institutions in Bangalore where cooperative management is a part of the curriculum of formal education. The Nepalese team also visited Karnataka State Rural Development and Panchayat Raj University in Gadag, where the delegation was briefed
- about the courses of M.Com in Cooperative Management and one year diploma course in Cooperative Management. In another meeting held at Karnataka Souhardha Federal Cooperative, the members of the Nepalese delegation were briefed about the successful running of the Diploma Programme in Cooperative Management.
- A 10 member delegation from National Cooperative Organization of Malaysia (ANGKASA) headed by Mr. Kamarudin Ismail, Deputy President, ANGKASA and ICA Global Board Member visited NCUI on 29th August 2019. The delegates were received by Dr. Bijender Singh, Vice-President, NCUI. The Chief Executive, NCUI and Director, International Relations, NCUI threw light on the growth of Indian cooperative movement and the role of NCUI.
- 20 participants from Nepal and Sri Lanka along with Consultant, CICTAB and Training Manager IFFCO of CICTAB training programme on "Agriculture & Rural Development through Cooperative Business Model" organized by IFFCO FMDI visited NCUI on 16<sup>th</sup> October 2019. Executive Director (IR) welcomed the visiting participants and Director (IR) made a presentation on Indian Cooperative Movement and activities of NCUI.
- A five member delegation from Karmath Saving & Credit Cooperative Ltd. Thamel, Kathmandu of Nepal headed by the Chairman Mr. Tirtha KajiMaharjan and comprising of other Board members visited India from 8-12 January 2020. The delegation visited National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI) on 10<sup>th</sup> January 2020 where they were briefed about the Indian cooperative movement, and the role of NCUI in development.

## Nomination in the International Training Programmes

 All China Federation of Supply and Marketing Cooperatives (ACFSMC) in association with ICA AP & ICA Africa organized a Regional Training Programme on "Development and Practices of Agricultural Cooperatives" from

- 10 15 June 2019 in Jinan, Shandong Province, China. Ritesh Dey, Director, International Relations of NCUI and Ashutosh Chandrakar, Assistant Manager KRIBHCO were nominated by NCUI to participate in the programme.
- The International Cooperative Alliance Asia Pacific (ICA – AP) in collaboration with the Institute for the Development of Agricultural Cooperation in Asia (IDACA), Japan and the Cooperative League of Thailand (CLT) organized the 3<sup>rd</sup> Training Course on "Empowering Women in Business and Management of Agricultural Cooperatives" in Thailand and Japan from 14 July – 10 August 2019. Ms. Suruchi Kumari, Jr. Field Representative, Indian Farmer Fertiliser Cooperative Limited (IFFCO), Patna and Ms. Anindita Guha Chakraborthy, Branch Manager / Deputy Manager, National Agricultural Cooperative Marketing Federation of India Limited (NAFED), Kolkata were nominated by NCUI to participate in the said course.
- The 3<sup>rd</sup> ICA Japan Training Course on "Fostering Agricultural Cooperatives for Food Value Chain in FY-2019" was held from 19<sup>th</sup> August to 11<sup>th</sup> September 2019 at IDACA, Japan. Dr. Rakshit Raj, Officer in Research & Development, CAMPCO was nominated by NCUI to participate in the said training programme in Japan.
- CICTAB organized an International Programme on "Rural Entrepreneurship and Micro Finance: Connecting the Dots in Financial Inclusion" for the period from 24-28 February 2020 at the National Institute of Rural Development & Panchayati Raj (NIRD & PR), Hyderabad. Two Project Officers of NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects were nominated to participate in the Programme.
- CICTAB organized an International Programme on "Women Development through Income Generating Activities" for the period from 2-5 March, 2020 at NIBM, Pune. Dr. Ashwini Borste, Founder Chairperson and Smt. Kumudini D. Kulkarni, Director of Nasik District Women & SHG Development

Cooperative Credit Society, Nasik were nominated by NCUI on the recommendation of Maharashtra Rajya Audhyogik Mahila Sahakari Sanstha Mahasangh Ltd. to participate in the Programme.

#### Membership of International Organisations

NCUI renewed its membership of the following international organisations :

- ☐ International Cooperative Alliance (ICA)
- ☐ The Network for Development of Agricultural Cooperatives in Asia (NEDAC)
- ☐ International Raiffeisen Union (IRU)
- ☐ Centre for International Cooperation and Training in Agricultural Banking (CICTAB)

#### Other important Activities

- Based on the proposal for the implementation of the MoU signed in January 2017 between the Ministry of Business Enterprise and Cooperatives of Mauritius and Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare, Government of India, the Action Taken report along with a note on the proposed education and training activities was sent to the Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare.
- For the meeting of Ministers of Agriculture of BRICS nations scheduled on 26 27 September 2019 in Brazil, a detailed note on BRICS Cooperative Forum and its meeting held earlier, along with other issues needing attention, was forwarded to the Department of Agriculture, Cooperation and Farmers' Welfare.
- The meeting of the Managing Committee of CICTAB was held on 12<sup>th</sup> September 2019 at Krishi Bhavan, New Delhi under the Chairmanship of Additional Secretary (Cooperation), Government of India. Necessary support and assistance was provided to CICTAB secretariat for conducting the meeting.
- The International Cooperative Banking Association – a Sectoral Organization of International Cooperative Alliance held its meeting on 12<sup>th</sup> October 2019 in Kigali, Rwanda. Though NCUI could not participate

in the meeting, but proxy voting for NCUI was arranged through the Chairman of Bangladesh Samabaya Bank Ltd. (BSBL) support was provided to the candidature of Managing Director NAFSCOB who was elected as President of ICBA.

- For the 27<sup>th</sup> Annual World Children Picture Contest organized by IE-NO-HIKARI Association of Japan, about 300 paintings received from different member organizations of NCUI were forwarded to the organiser in Japan for the contest.
- Being one of the founder members of AFGC, NCUI recently hosted a Secretarial level Preparatory Meeting for the AFGC 20<sup>th</sup> Anniversary Annual Meeting on 18 February 2020 at its office in New Delhi. Mr. Y. Kobayashi, Manager and Mr. R. Yoshizawa, Assistant Manager International Relation Division for Trade policy and Cooperation of JA Zenchu (AFGC Secretariat), Mr. U.G. Dayananda, President Independent Farmers' Network Sri Lanka and Senior Officials of NCUI were present. The three main agenda discussed in the preparatory meetings were.
  - Amendment of agreement of establishment of 1999 and 2000
  - Future direction of AFGC activities
  - Draft of a booklet of AFGC past activities

During the interaction with the Chief Executive NCUI, the representative of AFGC Secretariat in Japan appraised him that AFGC will focus on youth involvement in agriculture and how to make agriculture a lucrative profession. NCUI also arranged a courtesy visit of the delegates of Japan and Sri Lanka to ICA – AP and AARDO, as JA Zenchu is a member of ICA-AP as well as earlier member of AARDO.

◆ Dr. Mallika Kumar, Associate Professor and Coordinator of the Office of the International Programme, Shri Ram College of Commerce (SRCC), University of Delhi has been nominated by NCUI in the ICA – AP Committee on Cooperatives in Educational Institutions (ICEI).

#### **Member Services**

The International Relations Division has been regularly looking after the requirement of all member organisations of NCUI and its affiliates by providing them up to date information. All the circulars regarding various programmes were updated in time on the NCUI web-site/ circulated to all members. Also, nominations for international courses received from the member organisations have been processed and in case of selection, all necessary support has been extended. All necessary assistance was also been provided to the representatives of the member organizations for participation in the international programmes/ events.

- NCUI arranged a meeting of officials of National Cooperative Federation of Nepal on 29<sup>th</sup> May 2019 with a 12 member delegation of Delhi Healthcare Cooperative Society during their visit to Nepal from 24 – 29 May 2019 to study the cooperative movement in Nepal.
- National Federation of Urban Cooperative Banks and Credit Societies Ltd, New Delhi had shown interest in obtaining the membership of International Cooperative Banking Association (ICBA). The conditions of membership of ICBA require an application for membership to be signed and recommended by a direct member of ICA. Accordingly, the application duly signed by the Chief Executive NCUI has been forwarded to NAFCUB for its applying to avail membership in ICBA.
- A three-day International Summit & Expo on "Start & Stand Up North East" was organised by MSME Export Promotion Council (Supported by Ministry of MSME, Govt. of India ) on 17th 19th January 2020 at Maniram Dewan Trade Centre, Guwahati. A letter along with the brochure was sent to all member organisations of NCUI in North-Eastern States for hiring stalls from MSME Export Promotion Council to exhibit their products and explore business opportunities.

# BRIEF REPORTS OF NATIONAL LEVEL COOPERATIVE ORGANISATIONS

# INDIAN FARMERS FERTILISER COOPERATIVE LTD. (IFFCO)

FFCO is the largest fertiliser cooperative engaged in manufacturing and marketing of fertiliser products. In the year 2019-20, a year affected by the global pandemic caused by COVID-19, and the unprecedented economic challenges, the Society has continued its excellent performance .During the year 2019-20, IFFCO achieved its highest ever production level of 91.42 lakh MT fertiliser materials. In the field of marketing, the Society achieved its highest ever sale of 133.30 lakh MT fertilisers and recorded a turnover of Rs. 29412 crore in the year under review. IFFCO also recorded the highest ever profit before Tax at Rs. 1280.43 crore during this period. Its paid up share capital stood at Rs. 628.34 crore as on March 31, 2020 and total number of member shareholders (cooperative societies) was 35,300.

In order to promote sustainable as well as environment-friendly agriculture, IFFCO has launched Nano technology based products i.e. nano nitrogen, nano zinc and nano copper for field trials over 11000 locations across the country. These products provide high nutrient use efficiency (NUE) as well as crop protection solutions. The results from the field trials of these products on plant growth, yield and soil health are very encouraging.

IFFCO was ranked No. 1 by Fortune India 500 in the category of fertiliserfertiliser and agrochemicals industries for the year 2019. IFFCO secured its position amongst top 3 agriculture cooperatives around the world based on turnover over GDP per capita for the year 2019. IFFCO was ranked— amongst the top 300 largest cooperatives in the World Cooperative Monitor ranking, designed by International Cooperative Alliance (ICA). During the year, IFFCO plants

bagged top awards from the Fertiliser Association of India (FAI) in various categories including excellence in production, safety, energy efficiency, best technical innovation and others.

Dr. U.S. Awasthi, Managing Director, IFFCO has featured in the list of top 50 influential leaders in the country, who made a difference in the life of individuals and societies as published by Fame India magazine. He is the only person from the cooperative sector to have so far attained this honour.

IFFCO has contributed 'Rs.25 Crores to PM CARES Fund to help the Government of India in its fight against the pandemic. The Hon'ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi Ji acknowledged the efforts and thanked IFFCO by mentioning the same in his tweet "Great Gesture. Thank you to IFFCO". Besides, IFFCO launched its 'Break the Corona Chain' campaign across India. The focus of this campaign has been to educate the farmers about the transmission of the virus, equip them with masks and sanitisers and spread the message of hygiene and social distancing. IFFCO's field staff in various states distributed masks, vitamin-C tablets and soaps to farmers, farm labourers and truck drivers.

Through its unique community mobilisation and education approach, IFFCO organised relief and awareness camps in over 1750 locations across India. In these programs IFFCO reached out to nearly 5.5 lakh people and distributed more than 4 lakh vitamin-C strips containing 10 tablets, over 35 lakh medicated soaps, over 3.5 lakh masks, over 100,000 sanitizers and a lot of medical kits. In addition, 40,000 ration kits (containing rice, pulses, spices and cooking oil) and 4 lakh food packets were also distributed to migrant laborers, workers and needy families at various locations including the national highways in Bihar, U.P. and Punjab.





## Cooperative and Rural Development through various Initiatives

IFFCO in its efforts towards rural and cooperative development continues to fulfill corporate social responsibility through its promoted organisations / different programmes such as:

- IFFCO Kisan Sewa Trust: A charitable trust has been created out of joint contribution from IFFCO & its employees to provide relief and rehabilitation to the victims in the event of natural calamities. The Trust expanded its scope by providing financial assistance to the farmers living below poverty line for their critical medical treatment and education scholarship for higher studies to the children of poor & needy farmers.
- Indian Farm Forestry Development Cooperative Limited (IFFDC): IFFCO promoted a separate multi-state cooperative society with the prime objective to conserve environment and mitigate climate changes through sustainable natural resource management. So far, 29,421 hectare wasteland has been developed as multipurpose forests. These forests are catering to the needs of the community and sequestrating about 1.41 lakh tonnes of atmospheric carbon annually, helping in mitigating the climate change. Presently, IFFDC is implementing projects on farm forestry, integrated watershed development. proofing, rural livelihood climate development, women empowerment, CSR
- Cooperative Rural Development Trust (CORDET) has been promoted by IFFCO with an objective to promote rural development. It is engaged in providing training to farmers on various aspects of farming and animal husbandry by establishing model farms.
- Promotional Programmes: Various promotional and extension programmes have been organised with focus primarily on improving soil health, promoting balanced and integrated use of fertilisers to improve

- N:P:K consumption ratio and educating farmers about the importance of secondary and micro nutrients. Programmes were also organised on latest agri-technology so as to enhance crop productivity through efficient use of fertilisers, water conservation etc which help in enhancing crop productivity and farmer's income.
- Village Adoption programme: The village adoption program was initiated by IFFCO with the objective to bring about overall socioeconomic development in villages for sustainable agriculture development with particular emphasis on balanced use of fertilisers, quality seeds and better farm management. Various promotional, social and community development programs, medical and veterinary check-up campaigns. training programs for rural women etc., were organised in 261 adopted villages during the current year. Additionally, in order to promote and disseminate the appropriate technologies among the farmers in a large area. Farmer's Friend Clubs have been formed in the districts.
- IFFCO Yuva: IFFCO has launched a job portal for youth called IFFCO Yuva. This digital platform helps youth access and improve their skills and aspire for better career opportunities. The Society has been able to provide 3000 job opportunities so far through this portal.
- Nano Fertilisers: In line with the visiion of our Hon'ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi Ji of doubling farmers' Income by 2022 and promoting sustainable as well as environment-friendly agriculture, IFFCO has introduced three Nanotechnology-based products which are -Nano Nitrogen, Nano Zinc and Nano Copper for 'On Field' trials at 11,000 locations across India. These products provide high nutrient use efficiency (NUE) as well as crop protection solutions.
- Neem Plantation and Development of Improved Variants: IFFCO has undertaken a project on Induction, Evaluation and Development of Polyploids in Neem (Azadirachta indica) in collaboration with

Forest Research Institute (FRI), Dehradun since June 2015. A 'Neem Plantation Campaign' has also been undertaken during 2019-20. Neem saplings were provided free of cost for plantation at fields, schools, cooperative premises, residential areas etc. in different states.

Apex Level Cooperative Marketing Federation in India having its reach all across the country including the remotest parts, through its three tier structure consisting of primary cooperatives at the base, state level cooperatives at the middle and NAFED at the top. NAFED's activities add to the

PERFORMANCE HIGH	LIGHTS
The following are the performance highlights	of IFFCO for the year 2019-20
Production of Fertilisers	91.42 lakh MT
Urea Production	48.75 lakh MT
Production of NP/NPK/DAP/ WSFs	42.67 lakh MT
Sales of Fertilisers	133.30 lakh MT
Sales of Urea	86.31lakh MT
Sales of DAP	25.23 lakh MT
Sales of NP/NPK/DAP/WSF & other products	46.54 lakh MT
Fertiliser Despatches	132.46 lakh MT
Profit Before Tax	Rs. 1280.43 crore
Profit After Tax	Rs. 1004.56 crore
Turnover	Rs. 29412 crore
Lowest Composite Energy Consumption	5.285 Gcal/ MT of Urea

#### NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVE MARKETING FEDERATION OF INDIA LTD. (NAFED)

## NAFED - An Apex Cooperative Marketing Federation in India

In India, cooperatives play a crucial role in the marketing of farmers' produce as these cooperatives make significant contributions in making our agriculture strong, resilient and ready to meet the challenges of global economy. Almost all secondary markets in the country have the presence of primary marketing cooperatives, which are members of the state marketing federations which in turn are the members of NAFED at the national level. NAFED is thus the

betterment of agriculture by protecting the interests of the farmers. Nafed is also a member of the International Cooperative Alliance (ICA).

#### Mission and Infrastructure of NAFED

Established on 2<sup>nd</sup> October 1958, with the mission to promote the trade of agricultural and forest resources across the country, NAFED has been rendering great service to the farmers and consumers of the country for the last six decades. NAFED infrastructure is spread all across the country with one or more of its branches in each state of India. It has a state of the art infrastructure comprising of warehouses, cold storages, precooling units/vans, onion storages, tea blending and packing units, consumer marketing division etc.





#### **Business Operations of NAFED**

#### **Domestic Operations**

- is one of the central nodal agencies of the Government of India for the procurement of 16 notified agricultural commodities of oilseeds and pulses under Price Support Scheme (PSS). Under the Scheme, whenever there is a glut in market due to bumper production and when prices tend to crash, Nafed undertakes procurement at the Minimum Support Price under PSS of Government of India in case of 16 notified commodities (pulses, oilseeds, de-husked coconut, Milling/Ball Copra etc.) thereby providing remunerative prices to farmers and their produce.
- Undertakes procurement and marketing of oilseeds, pulses, food grains, spices, horticulture produce and vegetables like onion, potato, tomato etc. in outright account using its own funds against budgeted allocation
- Is one of the Central agencies for procurement of pulses and onion under Price Stabilization Fund (PSF) scheme of Government of India.
- Is a nodal state agency on behalf of Food Corporation of India and the state government under de-centralized procurement (DCP) scheme for wheat and paddy
- Supplies of milled pulses to Army, CPMFs and state governments under PDS, MDM, ICDS welfare schemes
- Undertakes production and marketing of biofertilisers to help the farmers to improve the productivity and quality of their crops
- Productes compressed bio gas (CBG) by treating various types of agri-wastes
- Undertakespocurement of apples NAFED was designated as Central Nodal Agency by Govt. of India for procurement of apples in Jammu and Kashmir during 2019-2020 under Market Intervention Scheme (MIS)

- Organic Farming NAFED is contributing towards promotion of sustainable agriculture and environment having 13 years of experience in the field of organic farming and its certification in states of Uttar Pradesh, Punjab, Bihar and Uttrakhand covering a total area of around 45,000 ha.
- Certified Seed Production under the brand name of NAFED – NAFED is one of the central seed agencies of Department of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare (DAC&FW), Govt. of India and undertakes production, distribution and marketing of certified / foundation seed of pulses, oilseeds and cereals. Besides, it also supplies certified seeds to to state governments under general supplies.
- National Animal Disease Control Programme (NADCP) – NAFED is working with the Ministry of Fishery, Animal Husbandry and Dairying, Government of India under the programme, to take forward their mission of eradicating FMD and Brucellosis diseases.
- Industrial Units NAFED has properties in the form of lands, plots, residential complexes, office premises, godowns, cold storages and industrial units
- Retail Business NAFED has been serving the consumers by selling good quality grocery items through a chain of "NAFED Bazaars" at affordable rates

#### International Trade

NAFED has been undertaking import/export of various agricultural commodities over the years. The Federation has decades of experience, expertise and well established infrastructure for handling exports and imports of all kinds of agricultural commodities like food grains, pulses, spices, edible oils, de-oiled extractions and perishables like fresh fruit and vegetables including onion, garlic, potato, etc. NAFED offices are located at or in proximity to almost all important ports of India. Efforts are being made to further strengthen and augment the international trade business of the federation

- for it to have a significant presence in the global market.
- NAFED is also undertaking supply / export of agricultural items / articles to various countries such as Iran, Bangladesh, Namibia, Myanmar etc as humanitarian assistance on behalf of the Ministry of External Affairs, Govt. of India.

#### The Brand NAFED

In the sixty years of its existence, NAFED has become a brand name amongst the farmers and consumers. NAFED brand of pulses, spices, tea and other products are quite popular amongst e consumers owing to their superior quality. NAFED deals in various flavours of tea and all kinds of pulses and spices produced in India. The blending and packaging of tea is done at its own unit located in the tea producing region in the North East of the country. The procurement is organised directly from the farmers without any middlemen under the close supervision of highly competent and experienced professionals, due to which NAFED products have a strong credibility in terms of price and quality.

# NATIONAL COOPERATIVE DAIRY FEDERATION OF INDIA LTD. (NCDFI)

# Report of the NCDFI Activities and Programmes during 2019-20

During the year 2019-20, the NCDFI continued to coordinate the sale of milk and milk products to institutions; facilitated online transactions of various commodities at NCDFI eMarket; and worked for genetic improvement of the cattle. NCDFI also continued to utilize part of its surplus in developmental activities.

#### Institutional Sale

NCDFI coordinates the supply of milk and milk products by dairy cooperatives across the country to various institutions such as the Ministry of Defence (MoD), Indo-Tibetan Border Police (ITBP), and the Indian Railway Catering and Tourism Corporation (IRCTC). Some of the key achievements of NCDFI are elaborated below.

## Supplies to Ministry of Defense (MoD) and Indo-Tibetan Border Police

During the year, NCDFI coordinated the supply of milk and milk products to 270 Army Supply Corp Depots, 44 Indian Air Force, and 3 Indian Naval Services Units under the Ministry of Defence. Further, the requirement of the Indo-Tibetan Border Police was also met by the member cooperatives of the NCDFI. Amul, Mahanand, Nandini, Saras, Verka, Visakha, and Warana brand UHT Milk were supplied to MOD. Milk product supplies were allocated to Bengaluru, Indore, Kaira, Ludhiana, Mehsana, Patiala, Sangamner, and Warana Milk Unions; Mother Dairy Bengaluru and Nandini Hi-Tech Plant. NCDFI is proud to mention here that 110 cooperative dairies spread across the country participated in the milk and milk products supply. Contracts concluded during the year were of the order of Rs.1,294 crores (Table 1).

Т	able 1: Product-wis Valu	•	es and
SI. No.	Product	Quantity (MT)	Value (Rs. in crores)
Lon	g Shelf Life Milk Pr	oducts	
1	Whole Milk Powder	686	25.94
2	Butter Tinned	947	41.57
3	Desi Ghee	265	12.36
4	CCM	1,454	30.32
5	Cheese	541	22.53
Fres	sh Items (Qty in The	ousand Lti	rs. / MT)
6	Milk Fresh	192,724	886.19
7	Butter Fresh	551	22.60
8	UHT Milk	44,198	251.90
9	Cream Fresh	5	0.14
10	Paneer Fresh	25	0.82
	Total		1,294.37

Supplies to the Indian Army and other armed forces have always been considered a matter of pride. Apart from the privilege and the business

interest, cooperatives that have been consistently supplying to the Army have had tangible and intangible benefits. In addition to enabling an assured market, this has helped in capacity building, consistently improving the quality of products, creating goodwill, and also in the expansion of markets.

# Meetings

Annual Review Meeting: The NCDFI annually convenes a meeting between the dairy cooperatives and senior officials to review the supplies, procedures, and payments. Accordingly, a meeting was convened at New Delhi on June 26, 2019 which was chaired by Major General Arvind Katoch, ADGST (SM), Directorate General of Supplies & Transport, IHQ of MoD. This meeting was attended by 60 representatives from the Ministry of Defence, NCDFI, and various dairy cooperatives. To curtail the rejections in the milk product supplies, NCDFI organised a Quality Control Meeting at Anand on December 27, 2019 to discuss the quality control aspects of the dairy products. The meeting was chaired by Major General Arvind Katoch, ADGST (SM), Directorate General of Supplies & Transport, IHQ of MoD and attended by 45 representatives from the Ministry of Defence, NCDFI, various dairy cooperatives and Centre for Analysis and Learning in Livestock and Food (CALF).

# **NCDFI eMARKET**

Adoption of technology and its application to ensure better returns to dairy cooperatives and in turn to milk producers has been the prime focus of NCDFI. One such initiative is NCDFI eMarket which has immensely benefitted dairy cooperatives across the country. With the eAuction of dairy commodities, the platform has created a benchmark for market prices at the national level. During the year, eAuctions for milk were launched at the NCDFI eMarket. Further, services were extended for procurement of cattle feed ingredients, fodder seeds, edible oils, packing materials, chemicals, sugar, etc. During the year, the NCDFI eMarket also extended its services to the service Contracts such as the hiring of labour, transport, godown hiring, canteen services, etc.

### **Dairy Commodities**

During the year, transacted volumes at

NCDFI eMarket included 15,777 MT SMP, 5,028 MT butter, 585 MT WMP, 475 MT Cheese, 221 MT Whey Powder, 25 MT Ghee apart from 4.77 crore litres of raw chilled milk (RCM) and 1.92 crore litres of separated skimmed milk (SSM). These transactions were done at NCDFI eMarket through various types of auctions i.e. 'Forward Auctions', 'Auction Sale', and 'Reverse Auctions'.

The brands that participated in the NCDFI eMarket auctions were Aarey, Aavin, Amrut, Amul, Devbhog, Gokul, Krushna, Maahi, Mahanand, Medha, Mother Dairy, Nandini, Parag, Rajhans, Sagar, Sanchi, Saras, Sudha, Verka, Vijaya, Vikas, Vita, and Warana. Though both private and cooperative organisations are registered members on the portal, it is only the cooperatives that are allowed to sell dairy commodities on the portal. The members of the NCDFI are routing their dairy commodity bulk sales through the NCDFI eMarket. Their decision has resulted in the realisation of higher sale proceedings.

# Cattle Feed Ingredients

Besides the sale of milk and milk products, NCDFI eMarket also facilitates the procurement of all required agri commodities for cattle feed plants. During the year, 47 cooperative cattle feed plants in the states of Andhra Pradesh, Bihar, Gujarat, Himachal Pradesh, Jharkhand, Kerala, Karnataka, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Orissa, Tamil Nadu, Telangana, and West Bengal procured required cattle feed ingredients through the NCDFI eMarket. These ingredients included 2,60,825 MT Rice Bran/ Polish, 2,04,664 MT Maize, 26,345 MT Cotton Seed Meal, 22,705 MT Mustard Meal, 11,930 MT Wheat, 9,525 MT Coconut Seed Meal, etc. A large and diversified supplier base facilitates the cooperatives to get the required raw materials in time with competitive prices. Hence, many cattle feed plants are in the process to procure raw materials through the NCDFI eMarket.

# Other Products

NCDFI eMarket additionally offered support for procurement of sugar, edible oils, packing materials, compound cattle feed, fodder seeds, chemicals apart from scrap sales, and also concluded service contracts such as hiring of labour, transport, godown hiring, canteen services, etc.

#### Increased Transparency

NCDFI is consistently making efforts to update the Android application and has released updated versions of NCDFI eMarket periodically, which enabled the users to remain updated with customized auction information on a real-time basis. Further, the NCDFI eMarket is regularly publising the results of the eAuction in its monthly 'Activity Report', which is circulated to all members and is also available on the mobile application and webpages of the NCDFI eMarket. It gives a larger publicity to the concluded trades and prices for different products, apart from the information on newly introduced commodities and services on the NCDFI eMarket platform, which further helps cooperative buyers to get the products and services at more competitive prices.

#### Members

The total registered members on the NCDFI eMarket platform were 1,789 as on March 31, 2020 with wide participation from all parts of the country. During the year, NCDFI arranged member meets at Mumbai, Chennai and Erode to have their valuable inputs regarding the operations of NCDFI. Further, a meeting with the senior officials of the Mother Dairy Delhi was convened at Anand to deliberate on the issue related to extending the services of the NCDFI eMarket. The NCDFI also participated in the 48th Dairy Industry Conference at Jaipur, where it had an exhibition stall for promoting the activities of the NCDFI eMarket.

### Transacted value

During the year, total business transactions at NCDFI eMarket were to the tune of Rs.2,047 crores consisting of value-added dairy products valued at Rs.595 crores, liquid milk worth of Rs.208 crores, cattle feed ingredients of Rs.1,110 crores and Rs.134 crores worth of other products.

# Genetic Improvement

To provide better access of good quality semen doses to the milk producers in the country, NCDFI has partnered with NDDB Dairy Services for distribution of frozen semen doses (FSDs) produced by Sabarmati Ashram Gaushala (Gujarat), Animal Breeding Centre (Uttar

Pradesh), Alamadhi Semen Station (Tamilnadu), Rohtak Semen Station (Haryana) and Rahuri Semen Station (Maharashtra). These semen stations are either owned or managed by the NDDB Dairy Services.

These semen stations are equipped with the advanced and modern semen production facilities in the country with sophisticated semen processing equipment adhering to stringent quality control tests. The semen straws produced by these semen stations are marketed under the common brand name of 'SAG' which stands for Superior Animal Genetics.

During the year 2019-20, combined sale from all these semen stations was 3.10 crore FSDs valued at Rs.61 crores.

#### **Total Business Transacted**

During the year 2019-20 cumulative business transactions conducted by the NCDFI amounted to Rs.3,402 crores which was 56.27% higher than the previous year. This includes milk and milk products sales to Institutional buyers valued at Rs.1,294 crores, NCDFI eMarket transactions of Rs.2,047 crores, and sale of frozen semen doses of Rs.61 crores.

### **Developmental Activities**

Being an apex body of dairy cooperatives in India, NCDFI foresees the requirement of utilising part of its surplus in spreading awareness among dairy cooperatives specifically in the areas of clean milk production, cooperative governance, productivity of animals, artificial insemination, ration balancing, etc. and to train manpower to enhance their performance and productivity.

NCDFI arranges AI Technician meets, stalls at farmer fairs, training programmes, farmer meets, seminars, workshops, cooperative conclaves, and management development programs based on the industry need assessment.

# Training to Dairy Farmers

To supplement the income of dairy farmers by adopting organic and biodynamic farming, the NCDFI and the National Dairy Development Board (NDDB) jointly organised 5 days of training on biodynamic farming and vegetable production at Bhaikaka Krishi Kendra, Anand for dairy farmers of North East region. Three batches were conducted for 98 dairy farmers from the states of Sikkim, Assam, West Bengal, Tripura, and Manipur.

### Management Development Program

NCDFI sponsored a 3-day Management Development Programme (MDP) in association with the Institute of Rural Management, Anand (IRMA) for the Managing Directors (MDs) and Senior Officers involved in NCDFI eMarket activities related to member dairy cooperatives on the "Applications of Digital Marketing to Gain Leadership Position in Competitive Markets" at Goa. Senior officials of various dairy cooperatives spread across the country attended this MDP.

#### Stalls at Farmer Fairs

To spread awareness on artificial insemination, NCDFI organised stalls at 17 different farmer fairs in the states of Haryana, Maharashtra, Odisha, Punjab, Rajasthan, and Tamilnadu.

#### Farmer Meets

As a part of promotional activity, NCDFI in coordination with NDDB Dairy Services organised 15 farmer meets which were attended by 1,346 farmers from across the country (Table 2).

#### **Feedback**

The consistent engagement of the NCDFI with its members coupled with developmental

Table 2: Details of Farmer Meets						
State	Place(s)	Number of Meets	Number of Participants			
Andhra Pradesh	Ongole	1	48			
Maharashtra	Ashti Milk Union, Belapur, Khokari, Kolewadi, Mano Rahuri, Vambori, Wathar	ri, 8	1,115			
Rajasthan	Ahiro ki Dhani, Chotti Chomu, Khud, Losal, Patoda, Smart Gaushala	6	183			
	Total	15	1,346			

### Al Technician Meets

To promote artificial insemination, NCDFI in coordination with NDDB Dairy Services organised 107 AI Technician Meets, which showed active participation by 3,047 technicians from various parts of the country (Table 3).

	Table 3: Details of AIT meets					
State	Place(s)	Number of Meets	Number of Participants			
Bihar	Anandpur, Baheri, Baliya, Dalsinghsarai, Debra, Harchanda, Korigaon, Madhubani, Nawada, Roser Samastipur, Vibhutipur.	12 ra,	393			
Jharkhand	Giridih	1	42			
Maharashtra	Ashta, Ahmednagar, Alephata, Amdabad, Ausa, Babhaleshwar, Bhigwan, Chikhali, Dahigaon, Daur Karad, Karmala, Khed, Kolhar, Kopargaon, Pathrud, Pauni, Pune, Rahuri, Shirala, Shrirampur, Tulshi, Vasmat, Warana		841			

Table 3 Contd.)....

State	Place(s)	Number of Meets	Number of Participants
Odisha	Cuttack, Jajpur	2	71
Rajasthan	Alwar, Bansur, Bhilwara, Chattarpura, Dausa, Kareda, Khud, Lalsot, Laxmangarh, Losal, Narayanpur, Pratapgarh, Smart Gaushala	16	668
Uttar Pradesh	Aligarh, Auraiya, Badaun, Baraut, Bareilly, Buland Etawaha, Farrukhabad, Hapur, Kanpur Lakhimpur Meerut, Muzaffarnagar, Pratapgarh, Pilibhit, Ram Raebareli, Roorkee	r,	676
West Bengal	Bonga, Durgapur, Egra, Joynagar, Kakdwip, Keshopur, Purulia	7	356
	Total	107	3,047

initiatives has provided an opportunity to the NCDFI to get valuable feedback from participants on issues pertaining to procurement, processing, marketing, governance, policy, etc. The Federation is continuously working on the feedback received from the participants to address the needs of member cooperatives.

### **Manpower Development**

During the year, the NCDFI organised a three-day Management Development Program (MDP) at Udaipur for 17 officers of the NCDFI. This program helped them to understand the importance of motivation, communication, and stress management to be more productive in the workplace. It also helped them to create awareness about personality development and understand their roles and responsibilities in the managerial context much better and also enhanced their ability to respond to customer needs. Additionally, NCDFI employees were also nominated to attend training programs, seminars, and conferences at premier institutions to help equip them with information regarding the latest developments in the industry.

#### **Liaisoning for Cooperatives**

NCDFI continued to liaison with the Government on various policy issues. NCDFI will

continue to engage with the Ministries such as defence, agriculture, cooperation, and railways on various pertinent issues of the dairy cooperative sector. Consistent support and inputs of members for working out a continuous strategy for liaisoning with various government authorities will immensely benefit it to take up the relevant policy matters with the highest authorities for a favourable consideration..

#### Awards and Recognition

The NCDFI has been selected for 'Swarai Awards 2020' under 'Best Farmer's Cooperative (National)' category by the Outlook Group. The Award was presented by Shri Narendra Singh Tomar, Hon'ble Minister of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare and Minister of Rural Development. Government of India during the 'Outlook Agriculture Conclave and Swaraj Awards 2020' held at NASC Complex ICAR, New Delhi on February 24, 2020. NCDFI feels deeply humbled by the recognition received, and expresses its earnest gratitude to the organisers for their acknowledgment of and honour bestowed on NCDFI for its work. The accolade will boost the morale of all the stakeholders of dairy cooperatives and further catalyse the efforts of the NCDFI, which are headed for the betterment of millions of dairy farmers.

# NATIONAL COOPERATIVE HOUSING FEDERATION OF INDIA (NCHF)

The National Cooperative Housing Federation of India (NCHF) is a nation-wide organisation of the cooperative housing sector. The main activities and achievements of NCHF during the year 2019-20 are given below:

### **Promotion Activities**

- NCHF makes efforts to promote ACHFs in those states where such organizations do not exist and to strengthen the ACHFs which are comparatively weak. All necessary support and cooperation was provided to member ACHFs on various issues. Important publications/documents were also circulated to them at regular intervals. One of the member Federations of NCHF namely the Rajasthan State Cooperative Housing Federation (Rajasthan Housefed) entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Housing and Urban Development Corporation (HUDCO) for extending the benefits of interest subsidy to the eligible beneficiaries of Rajasthan under the CLSS component of PMAY. The MoU was circulated by NCHF to other ACHFs to explore possibility of availing benefit of the scheme on similar lines.
- The National Housing Bank (NHB) was requested for considering a loan of Rs.20 crore to Rajasthan Housefed. Information/ data on borrowings, lending operations, housing loans disbursed and units constructed/financed by ACHFs during 2018-19 was also sent to the NHB for inclusion in their annual publication.
- The Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) was requested to sanction fresh loans to the ACHFs of Odisha and Rajasthan and grant repayment re-schedulements/one time settlement of loans advanced by LIC to ACHFs of Haryana, Madhya Pradesh, Puducherry and Odisha. Necessary guidance was also provided to the concerned ACHFs in preparing repayment reschedulement proposal of LIC loans and the LIC was requested to consider such

- proposals sympathetically keeping in view genuine problems faced by them.
- The Registrars of Cooperative Societies (RCS) of concerned states were requested to permit housing cooperatives to get their audit done by Chartered Accountants who are registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). The RCS of concerned States were also requested to advise housing cooperatives to incorporate provisions for structural audit in their byelaws or issue orders in this regard.
- Various organizations engaged in development of 'Accounting and Management Software for housing cooperatives' were requested to share details with J&K Cooperative Housing Corporation for facilitating them to adopt online accounting and management software to improve efficiency and to bring transparency in the working of housing cooperatives in the State of J&K.
- An article on 'New India Mission-Housing for All by 2022' written by Shri N.S. Mehara, Chief Executive, NCHF was published in the cooperative journals like Haryana Sahakari Prakash (1st December, 2019) and Sahakari Darpan (November-December, 2019 Special issue) and also published in 'NCHF Bulletin' for wider publicity of the flagship programme of the government.
- Senior Officers of Member ACHFs visited NCHF Secretariat and discussed various issues with the Chief Executive, NCHF regarding strengthening of housing cooperatives, raising of funds, etc. NCHF was also represented in various meetings/ conferences convened by the Government of India, state governments, cooperative and other concerned organizations.
- A brief note on the 'Problems & Suggestions on Fiscal Concessions to Housing Cooperatives in the Union Budget 2019-20' was sent to the National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI) in connection with the Pre-Budget consultations of the Hon'ble Union Finance Minister with different stakeholder groups held on 11.06.2019 at New Delhi. A

brief note on the problems faced by housing cooperatives across the country was also sent to the Gujarat State Cooperative Union for their information and taking up the issues with the State Government.

- On the occasion of International Day of Yoga on 21<sup>st</sup> June, 2019 a Booklet on Common Yoga Protocol in Hindi and English was circulated to the members of the Board of Directors of NCHF and the Managing Directors of ACHFs for their information and use.
- Member ACHFs and primary housing cooperatives were requested to cover their housing projects under the 'Standard Fire and Special Perils Policy' through NCHF at a reduced premium. A circular regarding arrangements with the Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company for paperless vehicle insurance (Long Term - 1 to 3 years) on competitive rates through scanning QR Code was also sent to all the Managing Directors of ACHFs and to the president/secretaries of the district federations and primary housing cooperatives. On request, Judgements of Supreme Court/High Courts were sent to primary housing cooperatives and other concerned.

# Education, Training & Information Dissemination

Leadership Development Programme for the Chairmen/Directors of housing cooperatives was organised from 23-25<sup>th</sup> September, 2019 at Delhi by National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE) in collaboration with NCHF. In all, 41 participants from eight states attended the Training Programme.

NCHF also conducts research studies and compiles information/statistical data for the benefit and use of all concerned engaged in cooperative housing activities. The Registrars of Cooperative Societies (RCS) of concerned states were requested to send information/data on the operations of housing cooperatives in their respective States.

# Conferences/Workshops/Study Visits

Chief Executive, NCHF along with the

Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of West Bengal State Cooperative Housing Federation made a Study Visit to the corporate office of Odisha Cooperative Housing Corporation (OCHC) on 11th August, 2019 at Bhubaneswar to get the first hand management, information about the achievements, infrastructure and problems faced by housing cooperatives in Odisha. A Study Visit of the Directors of NCHF and Officers of Apex Cooperative Housing Federations was organised by NCHF in collaboration with M.P. State Cooperative Housing Federation to a cooperative housing project of M.P. Housefed namely Rachna Towers on 3rd January, 2020 at Rachna Nagar in Bhopal.

The 66th All India Cooperative Week was celebrated from 14-20th November, 2019 on the theme of 'Role of Cooperatives in New India'. To commemorate Cooperative Week Celebrations-2019, NCHF brought out a special issue of 'NCHF Bulletin' which was released by Shri Satnosh Kumar Gangwar, Hon'ble Union Minister of State (Independent Charge) for Labour and Employment at the Inaugural function of the Cooperative Week Celebrations organised by the National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI) on 14th November, 2019 at New Delhi.

An article on 'Housing for All' written by Shri N.S.Mehara, Chief Executive, NCHF was published in the Special Issue of 'The Cooperator' brought out on this occasion by the NCUI. Further, NCHF Staff participated in the Cooperative Quiz Competition organised by NCUI.

#### **Publications**

NCHF has been bringing out various publications from time to time. During the year 2019-20, it brought out various publications namely a monthly journal 'NCHF Bulletin' (including special issues on World Habitat Day and Cooperative Week Celebrations); Provision for Structural Audit – Compilation of Orders of RCS; Telephone Directory of NCHF; NCHF Pamphlet; Annual Report; Audit Report; and Compilation of Supreme Court Judgements.

# Implementation of Rajbhasha (Hindi) in NCHF Office

Articles written in Hindi and other relevant

news items in Hindi on cooperative housing and related fields were published in 'NCHF Bulletin' regularly; Hindi Pakhwada was celebrated on 2-16th September, 2019; The Annual Report and Audit Report of NCHF for the year 2018-19 were prepared in Hindi; Meetings of Rajbhasha Karyanvayan Samiti and Hindi workshops were held regularly; Letter-heads, envelopes, vouchers, etc. were printed in Hindi; Quarterly and annual progress reports on the use of Rajbhasha Hindi in NCHF Secretariat were sent to the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (HUA); Efforts were made to procure more Hindi Books and Hindi section on the web-site of NCHF was updated and contents in Hindi were uploaded on the web-site along with contents in English simultaneously; and Citizen Charter of NCHF was updated in Hindi.

The Chief Executive, NCHF attended the meeting of Hindi Salahkar Samiti of the Ministry of HUA as well as the meetings of Town Official Language Implementation Committee (TOLIC) South Delhi-I on 26.08.2019 and 28.01.2020 at New Delhi.

### **World Habitat Day Celebrations**

World Habitat Day was celebrated on 4th October, 2019 at Vigyan Bhawan in New Delhi, which was inaugurated by Shri Hardeep Singh Puri, Hon'ble Union Minister of State for Housing & Urban Affairs, Civil Aviation (Independent Charge) and Commerce & Industry.

To commemorate the World Habitat Day-2019 celebrations, NCHF brought out a special issue of 'NCHF Bulletin' on the theme, which was released by Shri Hardeep Singh Puri, Hon'ble Union Minister in the presence of Shri Durga Shanker Mishra, Secretary, Ministry of HUA and representatives of UN-Habitat.

### **Updating of NCHF Website**

NCHF Web-site (www.nchfindia.net) was updated regularly during the period under report. For the benefit of members of housing cooperatives and others concerned, judgements of Supreme Court pertaining to housing cooperatives/development authorities/housing boards were included in NCHF Bulletin, all issues of which (April, 2019 to March, 2020) were uploaded on the Web-site. The Web-site of NCHF

has been made bilingual having information both in Hindi and English. The Annual Report and Audited Statement of Accounts of NCHF for the year 2017-18 and updated Citizen Charter of NCHF both in Hindi and English were also uploaded on NCHF Web-site.

# **Study Visits to NCHF Secretariat**

Various trainees/students/cooperators made study visits to the NCHF Secretariat during the year 2019-20, details of which are as under:

- A group of seven trainees undergoing Certificate Course in Cooperation and Cooperative Management Development at NCCE made an observation study visit to NCHF Secretariat at New Delhi on 03.06.2019.
- ◆ A Group of five cooperators comprising of the office bearers and directors of Pune District Cooperative Housing Federation under the leadership of Shri Suhas Patwardhan, Chairman, visited NCHF Secretariat on 23.09.2019 and discussed various issues with the Chief Executive, NCHF centred around further strengthening of housing cooperatives in the State of Maharashtra particularly in the Pune region.
- ♦ A group of seven cooperators comprised of the office-bearers and directors of Mumbai District Cooperative Housing Federation under the leadership of Shri Prakash Y. Darekar, Chairman, visited NCHF Secretariat on 24.09.2019 and discussed various issues with the Chief Executive, NCHF for further strengthening of housing cooperatives in Maharashtra especially Mumbai.
- ◆ A group of 29 trainees of the 24<sup>th</sup> Diploma in Cooperative Education & Development being organised from 3-20<sup>th</sup> December, 2019 at the NCCE made a study visit to NCHF Secretariat on 22.10.2019. A group of five trainees of Diploma in Cooperative Education and Development from the NCCE also made a study visit to NCHF Secretariat on 04.11.2019 and had detailed discussion with Shri N.S.Mehara, Chief Executive, NCHF.
- ◆ A group of nine cooperators comprising of

the office- bearers, directors and professional directors of The Citizens House Mortgage and Housing Cooperative Society (CHMHCS) Limited, Mysuru, Karnataka made an observation study visit to NCHF Secretariat at New Delhi on 29.11.2019.

◆ A group of 30 students of Diploma in Cooperative Management from the Centre for Studies in Rural Management (CSRM), Gujarat Vidyapith Randheja, Gandhi Nagar undergoing a sensitizing programme from 14-16<sup>th</sup> February, 2020 at the NCCE made an observation study visit to NCHF Secretariat on 14.02.2020.

#### Miscellaneous

- Citizen Charter of NCHF was updated both in Hindi and English and also uploaded on the web-site of NCHF.
- As requested by the NCCE, a paper written by Shri N.S. Mehara, Chief Executive, NCHF on 'An Overview of Cooperative Housing in India' was sent to them for their Refresher Course on Cooperative Policy and Development for the faculty of Indian universities/colleges at New Delhi w.e.f. 3<sup>rd</sup> October, 2019. Further, his brief write-up regarding views on the Union Budget 2020-21 was published in the February, 2020 issue of the 'The Cooperator' under the caption 'Inadequate Stimulus'.
- The information pertaining to NCHF for the year 2018-19 as on 31.03.2019 as per the prescribed statistical proforma for filing of Returns under Section 120 of the Multi-State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002; the Report of the Audited Annual Accounts for the year 2018-19 and plan for Distribution of Surplus for the Financial Year 2018-19 as approved by the General Body of NCHF were sent to the Central Registrar of Cooperative Societies, Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers' Welfare.
- □ NCHF celebrated the International Day of Yoga (IDY) on 21.06.2019. Yoga Pledge was administered to the staff on this occasion and a banner, yoga chart and inspiring quotes on yoga & meditation were displayed at

prominent places in the NCHF Secretariat.

- Swachhata Pakhwadas were observed and cleanliness drives especially for ensuring plastic free environment were undertaken in the office premises of NCHF during 1-15<sup>th</sup> June, 2019; 1-15<sup>th</sup> October, 2019 and 1-15<sup>th</sup> February, 2020.
- An invitation to enter the World Habitat Awards-2020 received from the World Habitat, an international not for profit organization established in the United Kingdom was circulated to Member ACHFs to facilitate them to submit the entries of their housing projects.
- Shri Igbal Valiyaveetil, Executive Director, Kerala Housefed and Vice-President, Ernakulam Cooperative House Construction Society, Kochi visited NCHF Secretariat on 18.11.2019 and discussed various issues with the Chief Executive, NCHF about strengthening of housing cooperatives in Kerala and sharing information about best practices adopted by them. Shri R.K. Sharma, Managing Director, Rajasthan Housefed visited NCHF Secretariat on 23.11.2019 and discussed various issues with the Chief Executive, NCHF, regarding raising of funds from financial institutions like the NHB, HUDCO, LIC, etc. Shri E. Sarangapani, Managing Director. Puducherry Housefed visited NCHF on 12.02.2020 and discussed various issues regarding raising of funds by Puducherry Housefed from funding institutions and repayment reschedulement of loans raised by them from the LIC.
- An article entitled 'Need for Inclusive Growth of Human Settlements' written by Shri N.S.Mehara, Chief Executive, NCHF was published in the Book on Cooperative and Rural Development (Gandhian Perspective for Sustainable Development), edited by Dr. Lokesh Jain, Prof. and Dr. Rajiv Patel, Prof. & Dean, Centre for Studies in Rural Management, Gujarat Vidyapith, Rural Campus-Randheja, Gandhinagar (Gujarat).
- Letterheads of NCHF were printed with the







logo for commemoration of 150<sup>th</sup> Birth Anniversary of Mahatma Gandhi.

# NATIONAL FEDERATION OF URBAN COOPERATIVE BANKS AND CREDIT SOCIETIES LTD. (NAFCUB)

The National Federation of Urban Cooperative Banks and Credit Societies Ltd., (NAFCUB) is the apex level promotional body of urban cooperative banks and credit societies in the country.

As on 31st March 2019 the total membership of NAFCUB is 1778 out of which 986 are urban cooperative banks and 770 cooperative credit societies are members of NAFCUB There are 22 state federations/associations in the urban cooperative credit sector and all are members of the National Federation.

# Activities of NAFCUB during 2019-20

NAFCUB, being an apex body of urban cooperative banks and credit societies regularly takes up various issues concerning the sector with the regulators i.e. Reserve Bank of India, Central Registrar of Cooperative Societies and State Registrars of Cooperatives Societies as also with other authorities - Ministry of Finance, Ministry of MSMEs, SIDBI, DICGC etc. During the year 2019-20, NAFCUB took up various issues concerning urban cooperative banks and cooperative credit societies with the above authorities. With the persistent efforts of the Federation, many issues were resolved.

# **Umbrella Organization for UCBs**

The foremost important issue and dream of urban cooperative banks has been fulfilled with RBI's approval being granted for the formation of an umbrella organisation, which would be in the form of a non-deposit taking NBFC.

# Reduction in Income Tax rate for Cooperative Banks

NAFCUB regularly presents its pre-budget submission to the Hon'ble Union Finance Minister, highlighting the important issues that need the attention of the Ministry for their resolution. During the year, the two most important issues concerning UCB sector were resolved. The Hon'ble Union Finance Minister in the Union Budget 2020-2021 made two important announcements related to Urban Cooperative Banks. One of the most important relates to the reduction in income tax rates for cooperative banks from the existing 33% to 22% and bringing them at par with the corporates. NAFCUB took up the issue of recent deduction in corporate tax to 22% with the Hon'ble Finance Minister, which was considered by the Government. This is a remarkable achievement for NAFCUB.

# Increase the limit of Deposit Insurance

Another long pending demand of the sector to increase the limit of deposit insurance cover from existing Rs.1 lakh to Rs. 5 lakh has also been accepted with the nominal increase in the rate of premium to be charged by banks from existing 10 paise to 12 paise per hundred Rupees.

# Amendments in the Banking Regulation Act.

Another big achievement for the UCB Sector introduced in the Budget is the announcement regarding amendments in the Banking Regulation Act that would strengthen the cooperative banks. The Budget declared that a mechanism would be created to raise the capital of cooperatives and NAFCUB efforts made by NAFCUB are bringing fruitful results to the sector.

# Contribution of UCBs to PM CARES Fund for COVID 19 Victims

Further, on 30<sup>th</sup> March, 2020, the Finance Minister was requested that the contribution made by UCBs to PM CARES Fund up to 30<sup>th</sup> June, 2020 be made eligible for deduction under section 80(G) of Income Tax Act for the Financial Year 2019-20 i.e. Assessment Year 2020-2021. The limit on deduction of 10% of gross income is also not applicable for donations to PMCARES Fund. The Finance Ministry accepting NAFCUB request, immediately issued an Ordinance on 31<sup>st</sup> March, 2020 extending the timeline to 30<sup>th</sup> June, 2020 for making donations to PMCARES Fund u/s 80G of the Act.

During the year, NAFCUB submitted its views on amendments to Multi State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002, Banning of Unregulated Deposit Schemes Bill 2019 to the Ministry,

#### Reserve Bank of India

# Meeting of College Advisory Committee of RBI

President, NAFCUB attended the 58th meeting of the College Advisory Committee of CAB, Pune held on 26th April 2019. It was suggested to have more programmes in vernacular languages for small urban cooperative banks in different regions especially in North East region. Emphasis should be also be given to organising more programmes for unit banks as well as programmes relating to BR Act, Information Technology Act etc.

# **RBI's Standing Advisory Committee**

During the year, NAFCUB took up various important issues concerning UCB sector with Reserve Bank of India in the RBI's Standing Advisory Committee, which has been constituted to discuss issues concerning UCBs. NAFCUB also regularly takes up various issues as received from its member banks with the RBI for their timely resolution and also submits its views on the guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time related to policy matters viz. board of management, exposure norms and revision in priority sector lending targets etc.

# Resolving various problems of UCBs during COVID 19

NAFCUB actively involved itself in resolving the problems faced by UCBs due to the crisis in Yes Bank which had put various urban cooperative banks in trouble as their business was badly affected with the stoppage of CTS arrangement they had made with the bank. The Federation took up the matter with RBI on an urgent basis and the issue was resolved with issuance of NOC by YES Bank to all the banks to open CTS accounts with any other commercial bank of their choice.

On account of breakout of pandemic Covid 19, there was nationwide complete lockdown, in the month of March 2020. During the lockdown period in the period of Covid Pandemic, NAFCUB maintained correspondence with RBI Governor/Deputy Governor requesting that all types of loans may be permitted to be classified as per 180 days norms w.e.f. January 01, 2020 and

CAMEL rating, implementation of BOM, exposure norms and revised priority sector lending targets and SAF should be kept in abeyance till the normalcy is restored. It was also requested to provide one time deferment for a period of 6 months and consequent extension of installments for all term loans, not to remove any existing FSWM Bank for the next 6 months till the situation is improved. RBI was also requested to provide relaxations in regulatory norms of income recognition, asset classification, provisioning and other related matters. Considering this request, RBI on March 27, 2020 issued a Covid 19 Package vide its notification to all banks including UCBs, providing certain reliefs to the banks to some extent. It has permitted banks to grant a moratorium of 3 months on payment of all installments falling due between March 01 to May 31, 2020. As such, the repayment schedule was shifted across the board by 3 months after the moratorium period.

#### H.R. Initiatives

# Seminar/Workshop/Round Table

The Federation during the year organised 20 training programmes in collaboration with Reserve Bank of India College of Agricultural Banking, Pune, Vaikunth National Institute of Cooperative Management, Pune National Cooperative Development Corporation (LINAC), Gurgaon and National Centre for Cooperative Education, New Delhi for the benefit of urban cooperative banks particularly for smaller urban banks on the important topics of digital banking and cyber security, credit management, financial management, corporate governance, RBI regulation & recovery management, internal inspection & audit, RBI. Three seminars on the topics of (i) Digital Banking & Cyber Security (ii) Good Governance for Mahila UCBs and Good Governance for Cooperative Credit Societies were also organised Apart from this, a Round Table for CEOs of UCBs to discuss important issues concerning the Sector was also organised.

#### **Publications**

 "Fortnightly News Letter and Quarterly Journal Urban Credit"

The Federation regularly publishes two of

its flagship publications (i) quarterly journal "Urban Credit" and (ii) fortnightly newsletter "Coop Banking". Both these publications contain useful reading material and are very popular with subscribers.

# Reference Book for Urban Cooperative Banks

From time to time, the NAFCUB publishes important literature for the benefit of the urban cooperative credit sector. As part of its promotional activity, it has brought out a bilingual Reference Book for urban cooperative banks in English and Hindi. This Reference contains all the important circulars including master circulars issued by the Reserve Bank of India, important provisions of BR Act, National Level Umbrella Organisation, Salient features of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Act.

# NATIONAL FEDERATION OF STATE COOPERATIVE BANKS LTD. (NAFSCOB)

Ational Federation of State Cooperative Banks Ltd. (NAFSCOB), Vashi Navi Mumbai was established on May 19, 1964 with a broad objective to facilitate the operations of state and central cooperative banks, in particular, and the development of short term cooperative credit & banking in general. At the end of March, 2019, there are 33 State Cooperative Banks (SCBs), with a network of 1219 branches, 363 District Central Cooperative Banks (DCCBs) with 14293 branches and 95238 Primary Agricultural Credit Societies (PACS).

The Chairman, NAFSCOB submitted a memorandum to the Union Finance Minister with a request to address the following issues for possible incorporation in the Union Budget 2020-21, some of which are:

- Income Tax Issues Issues for Consideration
- Need for restoration of Section 80P of Income Tax Act, 1961, or
- To consider the proposal for reduction of income tax rate for cooperatives, similar to the option made available to domestic companies.
- 3.1.2. To consider the proposal to exempt

primary agriculture cooperative societies (PACS) and primary cooperative agricultural and rural development banks (PCARDBS) from TDS under section 194N.

- 3.1.3. Need for exempting SCBs and DCCBs from the provisions of Section 194A of Income Tax Act, 1961
- To consider the proposal for budgetary provision towards computerisation in all PACS in the country to address developments in Information Communication Technology (ICT) & to SCBs/DCCBs to pave way for migration to CBS platform.
- To consider budgetary provision on a sharing basis between the centre and the state governments, for implementation of the Human Resource Policy formulated for PACS by NAFSCOB.
- To peruse the proposal for formulation of Institutional Protection System (IPS) to strengthen rural cooperative credit and banking structure and consider contribution to its corpus.

# Study Reports/Papers/Write-up

NAFSCOB prepared the following study reports/publications and papers on important aspects/issues concerning the operations of the Short term Cooperative Credit structure in 2019-2020 (i.e. April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020), some of which are :

- Report of Diagnostic Study on the Problems and Prospects of Cooperative Societies of Assam and Nagaland.
- ◆ Report on 'A Study on Members' Indebtedness in Cooperatives'.
- Report on 'The Study of Short-Term Cooperative Credit Structure in North Eastern Region'.
- Report on the "Role of Rural Cooperative Credit Institutions for the Development of Scheduled Tribe Members in Tribal Areas".
- Recovery Performance of SCBs in Short-Term Agricultural Advances in India- An Analysis.

- ◆ Role of Short- term Cooperative Credit Institutions in Sustainable Development
- Fraud Monitoring System in Financial Cooperatives in India
- Technology Adoption in Rural Cooperative Banks.

NAFSCOB made available the following documents in the form of compact discs, some of which are:

- KYC & AML Programme for State Cooperative Banks
- Operational Manual for Cooperative Banks (Revised 2013)
- Model Policy on 'Risk Management in Cooperative Banks'
- Model Policy on 'Information Security Policy of State Cooperative Banks'

Mr. Bhima Subrahmanyam, Managing Director, NAFSCOB was elected as President, International Cooperative Banking Association (ICBA), a sectoral organisation of ICA on 12-10-2019 in Kigali, Rwanda. This is, in fact, the first ever representation from Asia-Pacific and hence an especial honour, also to NAFSCOB.

### Significant Role Played by NAFSCOB

- Ensuring interest subvention to cooperative banks, and continuation of the three tier Short Term Cooperative Credit Structure in present form, in many states, to achieve the spelt out objectives.
- Being very active in impressing upon the regulators, supervisors and government to take appropriate regulatory, supervisory and relief measures in the context of COVID-19 to help cooperative banks to continue to carry out their operations.
- ☐ Instituting Cyber-security Advisory Forum (CICAF) for cooperatives in close coordination with NCDC.
- ☐ Relooking into various policies initiated by NABARD to help rural cooperatives to perform better in a flexible environment through a number of interventions.

# Representation/Seminar/Consultations

Actively represented in the following events:

- National Review Meet of Cooperative Banks organised by NABARD on 11 July 2019 at New Delhi.
- National Seminar on "Emerging Rural Youth Gainfully" organised by NABARD on 12 July on the eve of its 38<sup>th</sup> Foundation Day at New Delhi.
- First ever India International Cooperatives Trade Fair (IICTF) organised by National Cooperative Development Council NCDC at Pragati Maidan, New Delhi on 11th October, 2019.
- NABARD Review Meet of SCBs and Select DCCBs organised on 27-28 January 2020 at BIRD, Lucknow.
- Conference on "Role of Cooperatives in Doubling of Farmers Income" organised by "The Bihar Rajya Sahakarita Vikas Samanvay Samiti", on 23rd February, 2020 at Patna, Bihar.

# **Dissemination of Information**

NAFSCOB has developed the system of disseminating information on agriculture, cooperatives, rural cooperative credit & banking through in-house quarterly Journal entitled, "NAFSCOB Journal of Rural Cooperative Credit and Banking".

# Annual Performance Awards to SCBs, DCCBs, PACS and Agricultural Cooperative Staff Training Institutes (ACSTIs)

Annual Performance Awards to winning SCBs and DCCBs, Subash Yadav Award for Best Performing PACS and Best Performance Awards to winning ACSTIs for the year 2017-18 were presented jointly by Dileep Sanghani, Ex. M.P./Ex. Minister, Gujarat and Chairman, NAFSCOB and Dr. Sundeep Kumar Nayak, IAS, Managing Director, NCDC in a special event held at Hyderabad on 30 April 2019.

# International Exposure during 2019-2020

Participated actively in the events organised









by the following international organisations:

- International Cooperative Alliance (ICA), Geneva, Switzerland.
- International Raiffeisen Union (IRU), Bonn, Germany.
- Asia-Pacific Rural and Agricultural Credit Association (APRACA).
- Network for Development of Agricultural Cooperatives (NEDAC).
- Centre for International Co-operation and Training in Agricultural Banking (CICTAB).
- International Cooperative Banking Association (ICBA).

# International Exposure Meetings/Interactions held during 2019-20:

- O Active participation in events organised by ICA, IRU, APRACA, NEDAC, etc.
- Meeting of Cooperative Institutions Cybersecurity Advisory Forum (CICAF) at Delhi on 20th May, 2019.
- O Interaction program with the participants of 53rd Batch of Post Graduate Diploma in Cooperative Business Management (PGDCBM) held by VAMNICOM, Pune on 14th February, 2020.

# Interaction with Dept. of Cooperation, MOA & FW. Govt of India

First ever interaction by the Dept. of Cooperation, Union Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare in the recent one decade with organisations such as NAFSCOB –grant in aid institutions, held on 21-01-2020 at Delhi.

# NATIONAL COOPERATIVE AGRICULTURE & RURAL DEVELOPMENT BANKS' FEDERATION LTD. (NCARDBF)

The Federation was established in 1960 as the national apex organization for long term cooperative credit structure (LTCCS). LTCCS advances loans mainly for capital formation in agriculture and rural sectors.

At present the structure comprises of 16 SCARDBs of which only 13 are fully functional with a network of 1,751 PCARDBs/branches of SCARDBs at ground level. These banks have a total membership of 1,07,49,291 rural households of which 62,40,508 have outstanding loans. The total loans outstanding and borrowings outstanding of these banks as on 31.03.2020 were Rs. 23715 crores and Rs. 17410 crores respectively. Fully functional SCARDBs have total deposits of '2083 crores as on 31.3.2020as against Rs. 2133 crores as on 31.3.2019. Their total lending during 2019-20 stood at Rs. 4680 crores as against Rs. 4230 crores during the previous year. Aggregate recoveries were 46.8% (upto June 2019) as against 43.31% last year.

Activities undertaken through Planning, Research & Development Cell with financial assistance from Govt of India under Central Sector Integrated Scheme for the year 2019-20

- Working Group on HR on LTCCS under the Chairmanship of Shri K. Sivadasan Nair, Chairman, NCARDBF and Joint Chairmanship of Shri N. Satyanarayana, Chief Executive, NCUI was formed under which the work related to data collection and compilation as per questionnaire has been completed. The draft report is under preparation.
- Study on recovery policy of banks. Model recovery policy of ARDBs was finalised based on best practices and circulated to member banks for formulating/reformulating recovery policy at their levels.
- A Seminar on Business Expansion and Diversification by ARDBs was held on 10<sup>th</sup> January 2019 in Mumbai.
- National Conference of ARDBs 2019, was held on 21<sup>st</sup> November 2019 in New Delhi.
- Workshop on Revival Road Map for LTCCS was held on 18<sup>th</sup> January 2020 in Hyderabad.
- Functional Restructuring of ARDBs for middle/junior level Officers of ARDBs at NIRB, Bangalore during 5-7 March 2020.

# **Model Recovery Policy**

The model Recovery Policy for member

banks finalized by the Board of the Federation recently, envisages significant changes in the loan and recovery systems. Banks need to view recovery as an essential part of the credit cycle and not just as the final step, so that loan officers remain responsible for the recovery of loans during the life of the loan. Timely detection of issues in the loan account can avoid default in repayment to a great extent.

Agriculture is prone to specific risks such as climate risk, price risk, risk of pests and diseases. In spite of reforms introduced in crop insurance through Pradhan Manthri Fassal Bhima Yojana the coverage of Crop Insurance at peak level in the last two years was limited to 40-45% for the farmers. It is reported that crop insurance enrolment has come down by 15% during 2019-20. The Model Recovery policy suggests that the banks should endeavor to make clients aware of these risks and should take such risks into account in the loan design. It is necessary to make a provision for rescheduling instalments due under agriculture term loan in a bad crop year, either partly or wholly, depending on the extent of losses and the impact of such losses on overall repaying capacity of the clients.

It is observed that ARDBs should also help such clients, who do not keep records of income and expenses, in spite of having capacity, and will fail to pay on time due to poor management of cash flow to accumulate their routine savings by extending the facility of thrift and saving accounts.

Adequate arrangements for financing working capital/production credit needs of clients who avail investment credit, sanctioning of loan and fixing loan period and due dates strictly based on repaying capacity, regular monitoring of activities undertaken by clients using the loan, introducing incentive scheme to clients for timely repayment, are the other major highlights of the model recovery policy.

#### National Conference of ARDBs 2019

The National Cooperative Agriculture & Rural Development Banks' Federation organised the National Conference of ARDBs 2019 at New Delhi on 21st November 2019. The Conference was inaugurated by Shri Parshottam Rupala, Hon'ble

Minister of State for Agriculture and Farmers Welfare. The function was chaired by Dr. Chandra Pal Singh, MP, President, NCUI.

Major recommendations/action points of the Conference are listed below :

#### State Government/Govt of India/RBI

- State and Central Government support and cooperation is necessary in implementing the structural reforms suggested in the Vaidyanathan Task Force II Report. (Action: State Govts/Gol)
- Government of India should consider recapitalisation of ARDBs without further delay as they are the only agency helping in creation of capital formation in agriculture, which has been left out in the restructuring process. (Action: Gol)
- The State Governments may be requested to appoint a Committee at state level consisting of representatives of stakeholders, NABARD to study the working of ARDBs and to suggest measures to strengthen them.
- The Federation needs to constitute a high level team to study various aspects of the functioning of LTCCS and bring out remedial measures for their revival.
- ◆ ARDBs should take following measures to step up investment credit like increasing coverage and outreach by opening customer service points and appoint business correspondents in potential areas, diversifying to agricultural value chain financing, addressing on priority critical issues affecting risk rating and eligibility for NABARD's refinance, introducing short term loan products to meet production/working capital/contingent credit needs of members, speeding up technology adoption and setting time frame for completing the process.

# Meeting with Chairman, NABARD on 6<sup>th</sup> February 2020

Outstanding issues relating to refinance policy of NABARD with respect of SCARDBs were discussed in the meeting. The Federation welcomed the funding support to PCARDBs for

extending refinance support to unitary SCARDBs also for developing Multi Service Centres.

# Delegation to Shri Parshottam Rupala, Hon'ble Union Minister of State for Agriculture & Farmers Welfare on 12th March 2020

A delegation from the Federation met Shri Parshottam Rupala, Hon'ble Union MoS for Agriculture & Farmers Welfare on 12 March 2020. The delegation requested the intervention of the Hon'ble Minister for reactivising the proposal regarding the revival package for LTCCS, based on the recommendations of VTF II, extending Govt of India's crop loan interest subvention scheme to SCARDBs, evolving norms for tor giving banking licence to ARDBs, etc.

# Computerisation of ARDBs – Renewal of Contract with NIC

An initial 3 year contract between SCARDBs and NIC has now expired in some states. In the meantime, member banks were advised to inform the Federation issues and disputes, if any, to be discussed and sorted out with NIC at the earliest.

# Deposit Mobilisation by ARDBs – Scheme of Deposit Mobilisation

With the enactment of the Banning of Unregulated Deposit Schemes (BUDS) Act 2019, the powers to regulate deposit schemes of ARDBs now solely rest with the state governemnts concerned. After the enactment of BUDS Act, ARDBs can collect deposits from their voting

members as well as from others based on schemes approved by State Government.

The Federation is implementing through SCARDBs a pilot project in select districts for cluster based financing of small and marginal farmers and post harvest value additions to their produce for maximising returns.

#### **Publications**

Publication of *Land Bank Journal* is an important work of the PRD Cell. Three issues of *Land Bank Journal* i.e. June 2019, September 2019 & December 2019 have been published and circulated during the year and March 2020 issue is under compilation.

#### **Annual Statistical Bulletin**

Statistical Bulletin for the year for the year 2017-18 was published during the year. The Bulletin for 2018-19 is under compilation. The Federation is trying to update this important publication by streamlining the reporting system relating to ground level data relating to the operations of ARDBs.

### **Monthly Progress Report of ARDBs**

The Federation collects and compiles data on member banks' key operations on a monthly basis for review at its level and reporting to Government of India. Nine consolidated monthly reports from April 2018 to January 2020 were brought out during the year 2019-20. February and March 2020 reports are under compilation.

# CHAPTER - 9

# IMPORTANT ACTIVITIES OF STATE LEVEL COOPERATIVE ORGANISATIONS

#### **ANDHRA PRADESH**

# Andhra Pradesh State Cooperative Union Ltd., Vijayawada

The Andhra Pradesh State Cooperative Union provides education and training for the members, elected members of the managing committees and employees of the cooperative societies to improve their capacity building so that they can professionally equip themselves to compete in the market economy.

A.P. State Cooperative Union, Vijayawada conducted 48 short-term training programmes for the employees, members of the managing committee and members of the societies, employees of financing bank and departmental staff on key issues of cooperative development. In total, 2115 candidates participated in the training programmes given below.

A TOT programme for district cooperative audit officers from each district on the subjects of Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR), Distribution of Profits in PACS and Audit rating & Classification was held on 04-01-2020 at KDCCB Ltd., Regional Office, Vijayawada. A total number of 56 candidates participated in the programme.

A two days training programme for all the department field staff on the subject of "Audit of Accounts of Cooperative Societies with Reference to Act Provisions, Common Accounting System (CAS) & MIS System in PACS as per NABARD Guidelines, was held on 8th & 9th January, 2020 at Vijayawada Cooperative Centre Ltd., Vijayawada. Thirty eight (38) candidates participated in the training programme.

37 one day training programmes for newly appointed PACS committee chairpersons and persons on the subject of "Important Provisions of APCS Act, 1964 & Rules and Bye-laws" in all

districts in the state were organised in which a total of 1477 PACS Chairpersons participated.

69 one day training programmes for newly appointed PIC Committee chairpersons and other persons of PACS on "Important Provisions of APCS Act, 1964 & Rules and Bye-laws" in all districts in the state were held. In total, 3769 PIC committee members participated in the programmes.

A state level seminar on "Role of Cooperatives for Development of SC/ST and weaker section women" was held at Guntur with NCUI support on 13-06-2019 in coordination with DRDA-Velugu, Guntur. 77 members participated in the seminar.

A five days trainer's training programme on "Cooperative Education" for all the employees of APSC Union Ltd., Vijayawada was held from 24<sup>th</sup> To 28<sup>th</sup> July, 2019 with NCUI support. 30 employees participated in the training programme.

A Seminar on "Role of cooperatives for development of SC/ST and weaker section women" for the ST women of Mandala Mahila Samakhya MACS societies was held at Kadapa YSR District on 04-06-2019 in coordination with DRDA-Velugu, Guntur. 114 members participated in the training programme.

International Day of Cooperatives and All India Cooperative Week Celebrations were organised by the Union.

The 4<sup>th</sup> batch of DCM & CA Course commenced on 04-07-2019 and concluded on 31-12-2019 for both in-service staff as well as freshers. 162 candidates completed the course successfully. 863 member education programmes were conducted and 73,501 members participated in these programmes during the year 2019-2020.

A.P. State Cooperative Union undertook the publication of a monthly journal by name





"Sahakara Samacharam" with a circulation of 3000 copies per month.

# छत्तीसगढ

# छत्तीसगढ़ राज्य सहकारी संघ मर्यादित, रायपुर

क्ति तीसगढ़ राज्य सहकारी संघ मर्यादित रायपुर, राज्य में सहकारिता आन्दोलन के विकास और उसके हितो की रक्षा हेतु मान्य प्रतिनिधि संस्था एवं सहकारिता विभाग के अधीनस्थ एक षीर्शस्थ सहकारी संस्था है।

सदस्य सहकारी शिक्षा योजना के अंतर्गत दो योजानाएं कार्य कर रही है। प्रथम सामान्य सहकारी षिक्षा योजना एवं दूसरी आदिवासी सहकारी शिक्षा योजना, इन दोनों योजनाओं के अंतर्गत सहकारी संस्थाओं के सदस्यों, कार्यकारिणी सदस्यों एवं पदाधिकारियों को सहकारिता में शिक्षित करना है।

वित्तीय वर्श 2019—20 में शिक्षा योजनान्तर्गत लक्ष्य एवं पूर्ति तालिका 1 पर दर्शायी गई है : सहकारी प्रशिक्षण योजना : संघ द्वारा संचालित सहकारी प्रशिक्षण केन्द्रों बिलासपुर एवं रायपुर द्वारा अपने वार्षिक कार्यक्रम के अंतर्गत नियमित एवं अल्पाविध दो प्रकार के सत्रों का आयोजन करता है।

राष्ट्रीय सहकारी षिक्षा केंद्र नई दिल्ली एवं संघ के संयुक्त तत्वाधान में सत्र 2019—20 में प्रदेष के प्रगतिशील हाथकरघा एवं बुनकर सहकारी समितियों के पदाधिकारियों को 3 दिवसीय आवासीय प्रषिक्षण प्रदान किया गया एवं दुग्ध उत्पादकों व दुग्ध समितियों के पदाधिकारियों को नेतृत्व विकास एवं दुग्ध उत्पादन, पशुपालन, विपणन व आर्थिक प्रबंधन पर 3 दिवसीय प्रशिक्षण प्रदान किया गया।

प्रचार—प्रसार एवं प्रकाशन : संघ द्वारा शासन द्वारा चलाये जा रहे जनकल्याणकारी योजनाओं की जानकारियों का फ्लेक्स, फोल्डर, पाम्पलेट्स एवं ब्रोसर तैयार कर उनके माध्यम से उपस्थित जनसमुदाय, कृषको, महिलाओं को जानकारी देकर सहकारिता का प्रचार—प्रसार किया जाता है।

संघ द्वारा प्रकाशित 'छत्तीसगढ़ सहकारी समाचार' बहुरंगी

तालिका 1						
क्रम वर्ग का नाम अवधि लक्ष			लक्ष्य	पूर्	र्ति	
सं.		वर्ग	प्रशिक्षित	वर्ग	प्रशिक्षित	
सदस्य शिक्षा आयोनेत्तर/आयोजना						
1 समिति सेवक वर्ग	5 दिवसीय	5	100	0	0	
2 प्रबंध कारिणी वर्ग	3 दिवसीय	60	1200	28	525	
3 सदस्यों हेतु वर्ग	2 दिवसीय	180	3600	154	2751	
4 महिला वर्ग	1 दिवसीय	180	3600	151	2729	
योग		425	8500	333	6005	

तालिका 2						
क्रम सत्र का नाम	ų.	र्ति				
सं.	सत्र संख्या	प्रशिक्षित संख्या	सत्र संख्या	प्रशिक्षित संख्या		
1 नियमित सत्र	4	120	2	20		
2 अल्पावधि सत्र	40	1200	37	1009		
योग	44	1320	39	1735		

पाक्षिक समाचार के माध्यम से सहकारी समिति से जुड़े सदस्यों एवं आम कृषकों के हित में राज्य षासन एवं केंद्र शासन द्वारा संचालित विभिन्न योजनाओं का प्रकाशन सहकारी समाचार पत्र के माध्यम किया जा रहा है साथ ही सहकारी बैंकों के वित्तीय पत्रकों का प्रकाशन किया जाता है। उक्त सहकारी समाचार पाक्षिक को प्रकाशन वर्ष के बाद भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ द्वारा बेस्ट को आपरेटिव्ह जर्नल एवार्ड मिला।

कृषि विभाग छत्तीसगढ़ षासन द्वारा वर्ष 2019—20 में भी तीन दिवसीय राष्ट्रीय कृषि मेला का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त मेला में सहकारिता विभाग के स्टाल डोम में सहकारिता विभाग, सहकारी बैंकों एवं छ.ग. राज्य सहकारी संघ मर्यादित रायपुर एवं शासन द्वारा चलाये जा रहे जनकल्याणकारी योजनाओं की जानकारियों का फ्लेक्स, फोल्डर, पाम्पलेट्स एवं ब्रोसर तैयार कर तथा संघ द्वारा प्रकाशित छ.ग. सहकारी समाचार के माध्यम से उपस्थित कृषक सदस्यों, कृषकों एवं आमजन को जानकारी देकर सहकारिता का प्रचार—प्रसार किया गया।

अखिल भारतीय सहकारी सप्ताह के अवसर पर विगत वर्ष रायपुर, दुर्ग, राजनांदगांव, बिलासपुर, बलौदाबाजार, बालोद, जगदलपुर में जिला सहकारी सहकारी संघों को कार्यक्रम आयोजित करने में सहयोग देकर कार्यक्रम को सफल बनाया गया।

भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ एवं छत्तीसगढ़ राज्य सहकारी संघ मर्यादित रायपुर के संयुक्त तत्वाधान में मध्य क्षेत्र के राज्यों के लिए सहकारिता विकास पर सत्र 2019—20 में एक दिवसीय मध्य क्षेत्रीय कान्फ्रेंस का आयोजन किया गया जिसमें उत्तर प्रदेश, मध्य प्रदेश, छत्तीसगढ़, उत्तराखंड राज्य की सहकारी संस्थाओं के अध्यक्ष, राष्ट्रीय, राज्य एवं जिला स्तर की संस्थाओं के अध्यक्ष / प्रबंध संचालक, सचिव सहकारिता एवं पंजीयक सहकारी संस्थाएं, क्षेत्रीय सहकारी संस्थाओं के सचिव एवं क्षेत्र के प्रख्यात सहकारी बंधु उपस्थित हुए।

# **GOA**

### The Goa State Cooperative Union Ltd., Panaji

The 66th All India Cooperative Week was celebrated in Goa from 14th to 20th November, 2019. The Inaugural Function of the Week was organized on 14th November, 2019 by The Goa State Cooperative Union Ltd. The function was

inaugurated by Shri Chandrakant Kavlekar, Hon'ble Dy. Chief Minister, Goa State, On all days of the Cooperative Week, various programmes were held according to the selected themes.

On 20<sup>th</sup> November, 2019, at the Valedictory function organized at "The Goa State Coop. Bank Ltd., Panaji", Shri Chandrakant Kavlekar, Hon'ble Dy. Chief Minister, Goa State was the Chief Guest, and Shri Menino D'Souza, Registrar of Cooperative Societies, Govt. of Goa was the Guest of Honor . The Special Issue of the monthly Magazine "SAHAKAR GOA" was also released on the occasion.

As in the past, the Union honoured the following individuals and Institutions for their outstanding performance in the cooperative sector.

# **Best Cooperator**

Dr. Sanjay Prabhakar Sawant Desai, Margao-Goa

#### **Best Chairman**

Adv. Vinayak Krishna Narvekar, The Marcel Urban Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Marcel, Ponda-Goa.

# **Best Society**

M.E.S. Staff Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Vasco-Da-Gama, Goa.

# **Best Secretary**

Shri Ramchandra Arjun Gawas, Shubhalaxmi Sahakari Dudh Vyav, Saunstha Maryadit, Revoda-Nadora, Bardez, Goa

# **Certificate of Appreciation**

- Bicholim Govt. Employees Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Bicholim, Goa.
- 2. The Netravali SahakariDudhVyav. Saunstha Ltd., Netravali, Sanguem Goa.
- Cooperative Department Employees Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Panaji – Goa.

### **Special Award**

Saheli Self Help Group Cooperative Society Ltd.,





Vaddy, Merces, Tiswadi - Goa.

A South Goa District Level Seminar of Cooperative Societies was organized on 12<sup>th</sup> January, 2020 at "SAHAKAR BHAVAN", Goa" in collaboration with National Cooperative Union of India.

Inaugurating the Seminar, Shri Vikas Gaunekar, Registrar of Cooperative Societies, Government of Goa applauded the efforts made by the Goa State Cooperative Union in association with National Cooperative Union of India to convene this Seminar for the benefit of all types of cooperative societies in the South District of Goa State. Shri Vishant Gaunekar, Asstt. Commissioner – GST, Govt. of Goa, threw light on the applicability and importance of GST.

Chartered Accountant S. P. Bhat, explained to the members in a nutshell the applicability of income tax provisions to the societies. Adv. Vinayak Narvekar, Sr. Cooperator and Expert in Goa State Cooperative Act guided the members on various issues relating to societies, more particularly related to filing of cases against the defaulters and various recovery methods. Shri Bhiso H. Gauns, Vice-Chairman of the Goa State Cooperative Union Ltd., Panaji proposed the Vote of thanks.

The Seminar/Workshop for Youth was organized on 14th December, 2019 at "G.V.MS. Science Centre Hall, Farmagudi, Ponda, Goa" in collaboration with the National Cooperative Union of India. In his inaugural speech Shri Vikas Gaunekar, Registrar of Cooperative Societies, Government of Goa appreciated the youth for their support to the cooperative movement. Mrs. Vanita Bandodkar, Principal G.V.M.s Higher Secondary School, Farmagudi, Ponda advised the youth to maintain their enthusiasm and actively participate in the cooperative movement. Adv. Vinayak Narvekar made a detailed presentation explaining the efforts made by the cooperatives in the development of weaker sections of the society.

A North Goa District Level Seminar of Cooperative Societies was organized on 2<sup>nd</sup> February, 2020 at "Deendayal Hall", Bicholim, Goa" in collaboration with the NCUI.

Inaugurating the Seminar, Shri Naresh

Sawal, Ex-MLA, Bicholim Constituency & Founder Chairman of Pirna Urban Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Pirna assured all support to the Goa State cooperative Union for strengthening the cooperative movement in the state. Other esteemed speakers threw light on the need for observing provisions of the IT Act as applicable to the cooperatives, methods of deduction of taxes with regards to consumer cooperative societies, etc. A training programme for women was organized on 25th January, 2020 in collaboration with the NCUI. Inaugurating the seminar, Shri Joshua F. D'Souza, Hon'ble MLA, Mapusa Constituency was happy to see the large women participation in the programme. Other speakers spoke on various ways of developing business and marketing products, importance of audit, etc.

A State level Seminar of Cooperative Societies was organized on 15th February, 2020 at Goa in collaboration with the NCUI. Inaugurating the Seminar, Shri Govind Gaude, Hon'ble Minister for Cooperation, Goa assured to give financial support to the Union and also agred to provide suitable premises at "Sahakar Bhavan", Curti, Ponda for conducting training courses for committee and staff members of all cooperative societies in the State. Other speakers threw light on various subjects such as the provisions of the IT Act and its applicability to cooperatives, procedure of filing arbitration cases, exhibition of awards, pros and cons of GST, etc.

## **GUJARAT**

#### **Gujarat State Cooperative Union**

Gujarat State Cooperative Union Ahmedabad organized a State Level Young Women Seminar-2019 on the theme of "The Scope for the Future Career of Young Women" on 30<sup>th</sup> August, 2019 at Ahmedabad on the occasion of the Women Empowerment Fortnight Inaugurating The State Level Young Women Seminar- 2019 by lighting a traditional lamp, Ms. Bijalben Patel Hon'ble Mayor of Ahmedabad City stated that since centuries, women in our society are burdened with both the responsibilities of home and the family. Women will now have to come out from it and they will have to be stronger and powerful.

Presiding over the seminar, Shri Ghanshyambhai Amin, Chairman of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, stated that today women are more educated, and the numbers of female students in the list of toppers and medalists are more than those of male students. He said that there is no other sector as excellent, especially to commence business, as the co-operative sector, A Booklet "Shakti Samarthya" was released on the occasion. Ms. Mirai Chatterji, Chairperson of SEWA Mahila Federation also addressed the seminar. Shri V.K. Dubey, Director, NCCE provided information about the best co-operative institutes of the country.

Dr. Mallika Kumar, Associate Professor and Coordinator, International Program, Shri Ram Collage of Commerce, Delhi threw light on participation of women in the cooperative sector.

The Gujarat State Cooperative Union, Ahmedabad and National Cooperative Union of India organized a "Youth Cooperative Seminar-2020" on the theme of "Building up Career for the Youth in Cooperative Sector" for young male students of various colleges of Ahmedabad on 28th January, 2020.

Inaugurating the seminar Shri, Ishwarsinh Patel, Co-operation Minister of Gujarat stated that in Gujarat around 1.65 crore people are associated with about 80,000 co-operative societies, and have achieved their socioeconomic development through the co-operative sector.

Presiding over the seminar, Shri G.H. Amin, Chairman, Gujarat State Cooperative Union and Vice President of National Cooperative Union of India elaborated upon the significance of the cooperative sector in various sectors like banking, dairy, credit, sugar, irrigation etc.

Gracing the function as the Chief Guest, Shri Anamik Shah, Vice Chancellor of Gujarat Vidhyapith stated that a strong bond exists between Gujarat and its cooperative activities.

A State Level Women Cooperative Seminar was organised under the aegis of the Gujarat State Co-operative Union, at Ahmedabad on 8<sup>th</sup> March, 2020 on the occasion of the International Women's Day. Around 700 women representatives

of women cooperative societies across the Gujarat State attended the Seminar.

Inaugurating State Level Women Cooperative Seminar-2020 Shri Nitinbhai Patel, Hon'ble Dy. Chief Minister of Gujarat State said that women should be respected and efforts should be put-in to ensure their all-round development. He also said that awareness about the co-operative sector should be generated amongst women.

Presiding over the function Shri G.H. Amin, Vice President of the National Co-operative Union of India, stated that despite getting higher education, women unfortunately do not get the positions and offices they deserve.

In this State Level Women Co-operative Seminar Shri G.H. Amin was felicitated with "Cooperative Good Governance Award" by Shri Nitinbhai Patel, Dy. Chief Minister of Gujarat State for his excellent work and contribution in the cooperative sector at state, national and global Level.

Gracing the function as its Chief Guest, Ms. Bijalben Patel, the Hon'ble Mayor of Ahmedabad City stated that when the nation is prospering on the path of "Sabka Sath, Sab ka Vikas aur Sabka Vishwas" and when various schemes are being announced for the development of women, women are becoming strong and empowered.

Shri Vijaybhai Rupani, Hon'ble Chief Minister of Gujarat inaugurated the National Level Cooperative Banking Summit. On the occasion, he also released a Book containing important judgements of various Courts/Tribunals on Income Tax.

Shri Rupani in his inaugural address stated that the banking sector will have to face new challenges in the times ahead in this global competitive scenario. In order to face these challenges, the co-operative banks will have to equip themselves with modern digital technology.

Presiding over the function Shri Ghanshyambhai Amin, while welcoming all, stated that the cooperative organisations will have to embark upon latest technology in this age of stiff competition.

Informing about the book released on income









tax and co-operative banks, Shri G. H. Amin stated that the Gujarat State Cooperative Union had organised this banking summit so as to enable state urban cooperative banks to sustain themselves in the competitive economy.

Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, President, National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI) and the Chief Guest of the Summit said that Gujarat state always shows a direction to other states in strengthening the cooperative movement. The eminent subject experts provided guidance to the delegates of the Summit covering subjects like use of analytics, artificial intelligence, etc. This Summit was also graced by Shri Dilipbhai Sanghani, Chairman of NAFSCOB and by Shri Narhari Amin, Ex Vice-Chairman of the State Planning Commission.



#### **SEWA Cooperative Federation**

S EWA Federation has been working as an Enterprise Support System (ESS) with women-owned cooperatives in Gujarat, since 1992. Starting with 33 cooperatives, the Federation has in total promoted 106 cooperatives, with 300,000 informal women workers. The year 2019-2020 has been a year of growth for SEWA Cooperative Federation.

The highlights of this year included:

- Along with SEWA Bharat, ICA-AP and ILO, SEWA Federation organised a national workshop on strengthening women's cooperatives. Issues related to the importance of networking for the marketing of services and products, and various opportunities to sell products online, enabling capital access by women cooperatives and creating a positive policy environment for cooperatives, etc. were discussed.
- SEWA Cooperative Federation's inputs were included in the 'Think Coop' module developed by the International Labour Organization.
- The Federation participated in the Global Youth forum organized by the International Cooperative Alliance in Malaysia, where a training session was conducted on the topic

- of 'Organizational Structure of Cooperatives'. Following this, SEWA became a member of the Youth Committee at the International Cooperative Alliance.
- Representatives from the SEWA Cooperative Federation and SEWA Bharat attended a workshop organized by the Cambodia Business and Human Resource Center, where they shared the experiences of cooperatives and the labour unions.
- SEWA Homecare, a domestic workers' cooperative celebrated its 10 years anniversary.

SEWA also introduced the Farm 2 Table initiative which promotes the concept of direct delivery of vegetables straight from the farm. This delivery service was first started in sister organisations and has since been expanded to other B2B linkages. A number of skill-based training sessions were organised in the agriculture sector and the handicrafts sector. A total of 289 training sessions were organised with approximately 5900 participants. A Board of Directors' training for member cooperatives of SEWA Federation was also organised.

In collaboration with the International Labour Organization, SEWA Cooperative Federation provided data collection support for a research project. A total of 250 women beauty workers and tutors who use online platforms for providing their services were interviewed as a part of the project.

SEWA Cooperative Federation also carriedout a Farmer Mapping Survey for Megha Mandli in Tapi District. A total of 875 farmers were interviewed from 7 blocks of Tapi District. The purpose of this project was to understand the onground situation of the agricultural yield and the market where it could be sold as well as the availability of various government services.

The President and Deputy Managing Director of SEWA Cooperative Federation attended a workshop organized by KEDV Cooperative Federation SIMURG Union of Turkey. In this workshop, the representatives of SEWA Union and SEWA Cooperative Federation discussed their activities, organisational structure, how both (the union and the federation) plan their strategies and

work together, and lastly, the challenges both the organizations have faced so far.

The SEWA Managing Director attended a workshop organised by the Overseas Development Institute, London. In this conference, the Managing Director participated in a discussion on chalking out a roadmap for the next ten years on the issues related to empowerment and equality of sisters and social security. She also discussed the importance of identification and registration of the workers and the role technology plays in it. There was a discussion on how the cooperatives associated with the SEWA Cooperative Federation are using platforms as a medium for increasing their sales and reaching out to a larger audience during a workshop organized by The New School, New York on the theme of Platform Cooperativism.

Mr.Bruno of the International Cooperative Alliance, Mr.Simel from the International Labour Organization and the President of National Rural Livelihoods Mission of Andhra Pradesh visited the SEWA Union to learn about its activities and programmes. Representatives of the SEWA Cooperative Federation participated in a Round Table Conference organized by the United Nations where they shared the experiences of the Lok Swasthya Mandali, Vimo SEWA, and Sangini Childcare Cooperative.

A training session was organized and conducted by the SEWA Cooperative Federation for participants from four countries (Tanzania, Ethiopia, Nepal and Rwanda). In this training session, there was knowledge sharing session on the various livelihood initiatives undertaken by the SEWA Cooperative Federation and the Gujarat Government.

### **HARYANA**

# The Haryana State Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Bank (HSCARDB) Panchkula

The Haryana State Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Bank (HSCARDB) advances loans for various sectors/schemes like minor irrigation, farm mechanisation, horticulture/plantation, land development, etc. During the year,

loan disbursement and refinance claimed by HSCARDB in the state is given below:

(Rs. In crore)

Year	Loans	R	efinance	Claimed fron	n
	Disbursed	bursed NABARD State Govt.			Total
2019-20	89.48	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil

The financial position of HSCARDB at the end of year is given below:

			(Amo	Crore)	
Year	Paid up share capital	Working capital	Borro- wing	Loans out- standing	Profits

 $2019\hbox{-}20 \ \ 43.61 \ \ 618.70 \ \ 2836.44 \ \ 1363.31 \ \ 1879.44 \ \ (+) \ \ 63.92$ 

# **Recovery Position**

The recovery position of the DPCARDBs during this financial year 2019-20 is as under:

#### (Rs. in Crores)

Year	Demand	Collection	%age of recovery
2019-20	2068.22	456.96	22.09

One time settlement scheme 2019 covered those defaulter loanees of DPCARDBs who could not clear their installments of principal and interest due to certain reasons as on 31.8.19. As per norms of the Scheme, defaulter loanee is entitled to avail 50% of entire interest liability inclusive of overdue interest as on 30.8.19. The penal interest @ 2% p.a. is borne by the bank. The Scheme covers all the purposes . The Scheme has been closed on 31.01.2020.

Under "Timely Repayment Interest Incentive Scheme" of the State Govt. launched in 2009, the previous state government had provided Rs. 80.31 crore to 154770 beneficiaries during the period of 5 years. Similarly, the present state government has provided Rs. 65.24 core to 74879 beneficiaries. Thus, a total number of 229649 beneficiaries have availed interest subvention amounting to Rs. 145.55 crore since the inception of the scheme until 31.03.2020.





NCUI Annual Report 2019-20

# (Amount Rs. in crore)

Year	No. of Loanees	Beneficiaries
2019-20	7707	5.47

The HSCARDB has requested the State Government for extending the scheme period up to 31.03.2020.

The details of financial assistance provided by the State Government to HSCARDB during the

financial year 2019-20 is given below:-

(Amount in Rs. crores)

Year	Loans	Grant- in-Aid	Total
2019-20	100.00	100.00	200.00



# Haryana State Cooperative Development Federation Limited (HARCOFED), Haryana

	MEMBER EDUCATION PR	ROGRA	MME				
SI. No.		No. of urses	Trained person	SC/ST	Women		
A.	Educational Development Activities (in Primary Agricultual Cooperatives)						
1	Course for Secretaries/Managers/Employee PACS	5	262	46/78	16		
2	PACS, Credit & Marketing	41	2238	338/644	81		
	Fruit & Vegetable Programme	03	208	42/62	2		
	Milk Cooperative Societies	42	2621	232/1069	865		
	<ul> <li>L/C and Others</li> </ul>	23	1234	199/372	32		
	Non Agricutural SETC	4	192	54/40	02		
	House Construction & Group Housing Societies	12	518	68/111	36		
B.	Educational / Developmental Activities in Societies other than PACS						
	Programme For Youth:						
	<ul> <li>School Lecture</li> </ul>	4	181	43/68	105		
	<ul> <li>Speech Contest (College Students &amp; State level)</li> </ul>	21	383	38/120	286		
	Youth Skill Development Programme	19	4434	1120/1671	1122		
Sem	inars/Conferences :						
•	CEDS (IV) Sugar mill	1	500	0/280	28		
	Grand Total	175	12771	2180/4515	2575		

#### **HIMACHAL PRADESH**

# Himachal Pradesh State Cooperative Development Federation

The principal objective of the Himachal Pradesh. State Cooperative Development Federation is to promote and develop the cooperative movement in Himachal Pradesh, to educate, guide and assist the people in their efforts to build up and expand the cooperative movement.

Cooperative education programme was first introduced in Himachal Pradesh in the year 1957 with two cooperative educational units under the charge of a cooperative education officer. The present sanctioned strength of CEIs is 24 and the number of lecturers and CEIs/others is only 15.

This Federation is running two cooperative training centres at Mashobra, Distt. Shimla and Garli, Distt. Kangra to cater to the training needs of junior personnel of cooperative department and employees of cooperative institutions. In both training centres, one Diploma in Cooperative Management Course of 16 week duration is organised in a year keeping account of the guidelines and syllabus prescribed by National Council for Cooperative Training (NCCT).

During 2019-20, with 272 Courses, comprising of Secretary/Manager Course, SC/ST Camps, Youth Camps, Diploma for Certified Auditors, etc., 9926 persons were trained.

Apart from the implementation of the Cooperative Education and Training Programme, this Federation also has various publication and propaganda activities including publication of "Sahkar Durpan", organization of All India Cooperative Week/seminars/workshops, conferring of awards, interstate study visits, etc.

In the recent years the Printing Unit has been modernised by installation of three offset printing machines. As a result, this Federation is able to acquire printing work from H.P. University, and various government Departments such as the Transport Department, the Department of Science and Technology, ICAR, Panchayati Raj etc.

#### **KARNATAKA**

# Karnataka State Cooperative Marketing Federation Ltd.

The Karnataka State Cooperative Marketing Federation Ltd., was established on 11.11.1943 under the erstwhile Mysore State Cooperative Societies Act.

The Federation is distributing fertilisers to the farmers through its member societies with a wide network of 40 branches. It has distributed 1,26,474 MTs. of fertiliserfertilisers under government's buffer stock scheme and also supplied 74,613 MTs. Fertilisers under its own account during the year 2019-20.

The Federation is also undertaking procurement of various agricultural produce, under Central Government's Minimum Support Price (MSP); Market intervention Scheme (MIS) and Price Stabilization Scheme (PSF) to help the farmers of the state during the slowdown of market prices. NAFED is the Central Nodal Agency for these procurements. In the year 2019-20, under the above said schemes, the Federation has procured 41,72,805.50 quintals of various agricultural produces valued at Rs. 2316.54 crore.

The Federation has immovable properties in 64 places, throughout the state. It has got 135 godowns, total storage capacity of which comes to 1.73 lakh MTs., besides owning its own office buildings at 15 places.

The Federation proposes to undertake the below mentioned activities:

- To open 50 sales depot in the state, for retail sales of fertilisers, pesticides and agricultural produces;
- To open wholesale and retail sales points for generic medicines;
- To undertake procurement of various agricultural produce under own funds.
- Construction of logistic warehouses and commercial complexes;
- To supply groceries and other items to





various government/public sector institutions on commission basis.

 To help the farmers of the state by establishing E-Market units.



# The Karnataka State Cooperative Apex Bank Ltd.

The Karnataka State Cooperative Apex Bank Ltd., which is popularly known as "APEX BANK" was established in the year 1915. The bank, identified as one of the premier state cooperative banks in the country, has completed 105 years of useful and eventful services in the cooperative movement of Karnataka and has achieved significant growth.

The primary objective of the bank is to provide short-term and medium-term agricultural loans to farmers through DCC Banks and PACS. Besides, the bank is also extending working capital and term loans to agri-based cooperatives and private sugar factories through consortium arrangements. The apex bank, being a scheduled bank is carrying out all retail banking activities including mobilisation of deposits, and issue of loans to the public through its network of 52 branches in Bangalore city, which are functioning under CBS with RTGS and NEFT facility.



# Karnataka State Cooperative Federation Ltd., Bangalore

he Mysore Provincial Cooperative Institution came into existence on 27th August 1924 with the sole objective of providing the necessary cooperative education and training for the development of the cooperative movement in the state and also to give wide publicity to the activities of the cooperatives. Like—minded co-operators were behind this move. This organisation was renamed as Mysore State Cooperative Union soon after the re-organization of states on linguistic basis. Further again, four cooperative institutions were merged and the new institution was formed called Karnataka State Co-operative Federation Limited.

The objective of the Karnataka State Cooperative Federation is to provide education and training for the development of the cooperative movement in the state and also to give wider publicity to the activities of the co-operatives.

Under the Member Education Programme scheme, education is provided to the secretaries, members, executive committee members, staff, women and SC/ST members of the societies. To bring the women folk into the co-operative movement a separate women's wing was started in 1966. The Federation has been running eight co-operative training centres through which a Diploma Programme in Cooperative Management is conducted for a period of 26 weeks and also a correspondence course of Diploma in co-operative management training is conducted for a period of 24 weeks. The Federation has been publishing "Sahakara" News Weekly, which is in its 50th year of publication.

With a view to make the Member Eeducation Programme more effective and also to face the global challenges, it was decided to arrange cluster type training programmes for 2 or 3 co-operative institutions in a group at the village level.

The cluster programme has been widely appreciated. The directors of the societies, women members, members belonging to SC/ST and youth are participating in this programme. During the year 2019-20, 855 classes were conducted for 27,629 participants, in which the number of classes conducted for women and youth was significant.

Education and training programmes pertaining to all sectors of the cooperative movement have been organised in all the districts of the state. Need-based training programmes for secretaries, staff, office bearers, directors are being organised through district cooperative unions. During 2019-20, for district level special programmes, the members of classes conducted were 262, and the number of participants was 20627.

The federation arranges state level training programmes for different sectors of the cooperative movement. During 2019-20, <u>82</u> such programmes were conducted in which 10802 people participated.

### State level Programme Inauguration

The Federation has been organising essay and debate competitions on cooperatives for the students of schools and colleges at district level through District Cooperative Unions. 868 students participated in 29 debating competitions and 813 students participated in 29 essay competitions. For LAMPS cooperative societies, training programmes were conducted for 85 participants. 18 training programmes were conducted by the Karnataka Institute of Cooperative Management in 2019-20 for 3212 participants.

During the year 2019-2020, KICM Belagavi won the Inter-KICM debate competition.

### **Publicity**

Karnataka State Cooperative Federation has been publishing "SAHAKARA WEEKLY" for the last 51 Years.

#### **PUDUCHERRY**

Family Development Cooperative Thrift and Credit Society Ltd., (FAMCO), Puducherry

AMCO was registered by the Central Registrar of Cooperatives, on 23rd Day of July, 2009, as a Multi State Cooperative Society. Its area of operation includes the states of Puducherry, Tamilnadu and Karnataka with the registration number MSCS/CR/307/2009.

As on 31.03.2020, FAMCO has a total membership of 433 members (111 Individual members and 322 Group Members). The total paid up share capital is Rs.12, 57,900/-. The total number of members as on 31.03.2019 was 413 (100 individual members and 313 Group members) and the total paid up share capital was Rs. 12,42,800/- During the reporting period, 11 Individual members and 9 Group Members joined FAMCO with an additional share capital of Rs.4,300/- and Rs.10,800/- respectively Hence the total shares increased during this reporting period by. Rs.15,100/-.

As on 31<sup>st</sup> March 2020, FAMCO has total deposits of Rs.1.64 crores. During the year, **33** member SHGs were given a total loan of Rs. 97,

00,000/- for small income generation activities. The loans are repaid 100%. Since inception, FAMCO has granted a total loan of Rs.10.43 Crores to 433 SHGs covering 6000 families.

The 10<sup>th</sup> Annual General Body Meeting of FAMCO was held on 10.08.2019. All the candidates were elected unopposed as Directors of FAMCO for a period of 5 years from 30.08.2019 to 29.08.2024.

On 21.08.2019, Rev. Fr. A.S. Antonisamy, Founder, FAMCO and Mr.M.Aloysius, CEO, FAMCO visited the Bon Secours College for Women, Thanjavur. A motivation meeting was arranged for the drivers of the college buses. 65 drivers participated in the meeting. They were encouraged to undertake thrift and savings. All of them resolved to form 5 groups of SHGs with 13 members each.

Rev. Fr. A.S. Antonisqamy, Founder, FAMCO, was invited to the Kanchi Maamunivar Centre for Post Graduate Studies (KMCPDS), on 15.08.2019. An orientation programme was conducted for the students on that day on the subject of Gandhian principles of rural development, thrift and savings, credit problems of the poor, etc., 100 post graduate students participated in the programme.

Celebrating the 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week on 19.11.2019 and 20.11.2019, FAMCO in collaboration with Chithra Don Bosco, a NGO at Chitradurga, Karnataka, held two awareness meetings for 95 SHG members at Sajjanakere, and Hosing board Colony, Chitradurga respectively. 50 SHG members from Sajjanakere and 45 SHG members from the Housing Board Colony participated in the meeting.

Various awards have been instituted by FAMCO to facilitate individuals and organisations to promote electoral education to voters and establish best electoral practices by voters in line with the programme of Election Commission of India, New Delhi namely "Systematic Voters' Education and Electoral Participation (SVEEP)". The awards were given by Dr. Surbir Singh, Chief Electoral Officer, Elections department, Government of Puducherry.











#### **PUNJAB**

# The Punjab State Urban Cooerative Banks and Credit Societies Federation Ltd., Jalandhar

he Punjab State Urban Cooperative Banks and Credit Societies Federation Ltd., Jalandhar organised a workshop on audit and its compliance. This workshop was chaired by Sh. K.K. Sharma, Chairman of The Punjab State Urban Coop. Banks and Credit Societies Federation Ltd., Jalandhar.

Last year, the Reserve Bank of India put some restrictions on advances and deposit of Hindu Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd., Pathankot due to NPA and losses being sustained by the bank. RCS, Punjab appointed an Administrator of the Bank and formed a six member Advisory Committee including Sh. K.K. Sharma, Chairman and Chief Executive of Punjab State Urban Coop. Banks and Credit Societies Federation Ltd., Jalandhar to advise the Administrator for improving the working of the bank, which proved fruitful.

The Punjab State Urban Coop. Banks and Credit Societies Federation Ltd., Jalandhar, played a vital role in associating the Citizens Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd., Jalandhar to organise its Annual General Body Meeting on 22.09.2019.

#### **RAJASTHAN**

# Aaditiya Credit Cooperative Society Ltd. (Multi-State)

The main objective of Aaditiya Credit Cooperative Society Ltd., is to provide the best services to its members. Its important activities are deposits, loans, maintaining saving accounts, reccuring deposits, monthly income scheme, etc., . Its main focus is on developing women's Self Help Groups. For this purpose, it grants loan to them for their better future. It also undertakes various social activities like starting Samsan Vatika schools and planting about 200 trees. It also sends its employees for attending education and training programmes at the NCUI. The future plan of action is to go for core banking, and also form Joint Liability Groups.

#### **TELANGANA**

# Telangana State Cooperative Urban Banks Federation Ltd.

The Telangana State Cooperative Urban Banks Federation Ltd commenced its activities from 1<sup>st</sup> November 2016. In order to fulfil its mission to develop the UCB sector and upgrade the skills of the officers and staff of the urban cooperative banks, the Federation organised several training programmes regularly. The following training programmes, seminars, and CEO interactive sessions were organised by the Federation during the year 2019-20 for the benefit of the executives and staff of member UCBs.

# **Training Programmes**

- One day Training Programme on Soft Skills on 24<sup>th</sup> August 2019, in association with the State Bank Institute of Learning & Development, Secunderabad
- One day Training Programme on Legal & Regulatory Aspects of Banking on 30<sup>th</sup> October 2019
- Workshop on Cyber Security Risk Management on 21<sup>st</sup> December 2019, in association with ICICI Bank
- One day Training Programme on Credit Appraisal Skills & Documentation on 28<sup>th</sup> December 2019.

#### **Seminars**

- One day Seminar on Cyber Security in UCBs as per RBI guidelines on 15th June 2019
- Presentation on Comprehensive Audit Solutions for Banks on 14th July 2019

# **Chairman and CEOs Interactive Sessions**

 Interactive Sessions for Chairmen and CEOs of UCBs on Revised Exposure limits for Single and Group Borrowers of UCBs and Final Guidelines on Board of Management on 7th January 2020.

#### उत्तर प्रदेश

# उत्तर प्रदेश कोआपरेटिव यूनियन लि0

पी०सी०यू० द्वारा संचालित योजनाओं दिनांक 01.04. 2019 से 31.03.2020 तक की अवधि के कार्यो का विवरण/प्रगति रिपोर्ट

तर प्रदेश कोआपरेटिव यूनियन लि०, (पी०सी०यू०) एक राज्य स्तरीय गैर व्यावसायिक सहकारी संस्था है जिसका मुख्य उद्देश्य सहकारी शिक्षा एवं प्रशिक्षण की व्यवस्था करना तथा सहकारी कार्यक्रमों का क्षेत्र में व्यापक प्रचार—प्रसार करना है। इस संस्था का गठन वर्ष 1928 में हुआ था।

उपर्युक्त उद्देश्यों की पूर्ति हेतु प्रदेश के जनपदों में सहकारी शिक्षा हेतु सचल इकाइयों की स्थापना की गई है, तथा निम्न स्थानों पर 06 सहकारी प्रबंध प्रशिक्षण केन्द्र स्थापित किए गए हैं—

1. मेरठ, 2. वाराणसी, 3. हैवरा (इटावा), 4. महोबा, 5. अयोध्या (फैजाबाद), 6. बिलारी (मुरादाबाद)।

# 1. यहकारी शिक्षा कार्यक्रम

इसके अन्तर्गत सहकारी सदस्यों/भावी सदस्यों एवं सहकारी बन्धुओं/पदाधिकारियों को शिविरों, गोष्ठियों एवं सभाओं के माध्यम से सहकारी सिद्धांत, दर्शन तथा व्यवहार आदि की शिक्षा दी जाती है। वर्ष 2019—20 में इस योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2019 से 31.03.2020 तक कुल 7361 सहकारी बन्धुओं/सदस्यों/भावी सदस्यों को शिक्षित किया गया।

#### 2. सहकारी प्रशिक्षण योजना

सस्था द्वारा संचालित 06 प्रशिक्षण केन्द्रों पर पत्रोपाधि सत्र (डिप्लोमा कोर्स) एवं अल्पकालिक सत्र आयोजित किए जाते हैं। वर्ष 2019—20 में इस योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01. 04.2019 से 31.03.2020 तक कुल 219 कार्मिकों को प्रशिक्षित किया गया।

# 3. सहकारी शिक्षा निधि योजना

सहकारी शिक्षा एवं प्रशिक्षण कार्यक्रमों के संचालन हेतु सहकारी संस्थाओं द्वारा सहकारी शिक्षा निधि में अंशदान किए जाने का प्रावधान उ०प्र० सहकारी नियमावली क नियम संख्या – 138 में किया गया है, जिसके आधार पर वर्ष 2019—20 में इस योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2019 से 31.03.2020 तक कुल 30 20.55 लाख शिक्षा निधि मद में प्राप्त हुए।

# 4. सहकारी बीमा योजना

वित्तीय संसाधनों में वर्षद्ध लाने के उद्देश्य से प्रदेश की सहकारी संस्थाओं की परिसम्पत्तियों / कैश की सुरक्षा सदस्यों की किसी दुर्घटना में मष्ट्यु / अपंगता की स्थिति में उन्हें बीमा की सुविधा एक समान न्यूनतम दर पर उपलब्ध कराए जाने की व्यवस्था पी०सी०यू० द्वारा साधारण बीमा कम्पनी के सहयोग से सुलभ कराई जा रही है। वर्ष 2019—20 में इस योजना के अंतर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2019 से 31.03.2020 तक कुल रु० 44.85 लाख का बीमा कमीशन मद में आय प्राप्त हुई।

#### 5. सहकारी प्रेस

सहकारी कार्यक्रमों के व्यापक प्रचार—प्रसार संस्था द्वारा "सहकारिता साप्ताहिक" समाचार पत्र एवं "सहकारिता मासिक" पत्रिका का नियमित प्रकाशन हेतु संस्था का एक अपना सहकारी प्रेस वर्ष 1969 से स्थापित है। इस प्रेस के द्वारा सहकारी क्षेत्र की संस्थाओं के उपयोगार्थ विभिन्न प्रकार की स्टेशनरी की छपाई का कार्य भी किया जाता है। वर्ष 1019—20 में इसकी योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2019 से 31.03.2020 तक कुल रु० 50.87 लाख का छपाई का कार्य किया गया था।

# धान एवं गेंहू क्रय योजना

संस्था द्वारा वर्ष 2019—20 में किसानों से 394551.69 मी0टन गेंहूं एवं 676882.21 मी0टन धान क्रय किया गया जिससे संस्था को प्रशासनिक शुल्क के रुप में रु0 2300.42 लाख आय संभावित है।

# 7. आडिटोरियम

संस्था द्वारा भूतल पर आधुनिक सुविधाओं से युक्त वातानुकूलित आडिटोरियम का संचालन किया जा रहा है जो सहकारी तथा गैर सहकारी संस्थाओं / संगठनों की गोष्ठी, सेमिनार, सम्मेलन आदि हेतु उचित दरों पर उपलब्ध कराया जाता है। दिनांक 01.04.2019 से 31.03.2020 तक कुल रु0 09.87 लाख की आय प्राप्त हुई है।

### संस्था की आय के स्रोत एवं समस्याएं

1. वर्ष 1996–97 के पूर्व तक शिक्षा/प्रशिक्षण एवं

प्रचार-प्रसार से राज्य सरकार से पी०सी०यू० को वित्तीय सहायता उपलब्ध कराई जाती रही, जो 1996-97 के पश्चात पूर्णतया बन्द कर दी गई है। इसके फलस्वरुप संस्था को अपने कार्यक्रमों के संचालन हेतु वित्तीय कठिनाईयों का सामना करना पड़ रहा है।

- 2. संस्था के आय का मुख्य स्नोत विभिन्न सहकारी संस्थाओं से प्राप्त होने वाली सहकारी शिक्षा निधि की धनराशि है। वर्तमान में बैंकिंग सहकारी संस्थाओं यथा पैक्स, उ०प्र० सहकारी बैंक के लिए शिक्षा निधि ऐच्छिक होने के कारण एवं विभिन्न सहकारी संस्थाओं की वित्तीय स्थिति अच्छी न होने के कारण उनसे शिक्षा निधि की वाजिब धनराशि प्राप्त नहीं हो पा रही है।
- 3. वित्तीय वर्ष 2019—20 के आय—व्यय में उ०प्र0 कोआपरेटिव यूनियन लि0 लखनऊ के 6 सहकारी प्रबंन्ध । प्रशिक्षण केन्द्रों के संचालन में सहयोग हेतु रु० 100. 00 लाख की अनुदान स्वरुप वित्तीय सहायता के बजट प्रावधान कराने का अनुरोध भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ, नई दिल्ली से किया जाता है। जिससे सहकारी क्षेत्र के मानव संसाधन के विकास एवं सहकारी शिक्षा एवं प्रशिक्षण व्यवस्था को सुदष्ढ़ बनाने के लिए प्रभावी प्रशिक्षण कार्यक्रम संचालित किए जांएगे, इससे सहकारी आंदोलन को गित मिलेगी।

### **WEST BENGAL**

# West Bengal State Cooperative Union, Kolkata

The West Bengal State Cooperative Union imparted cooperative training through its 6 (Six) CCMs located at Uttarpara, Barsul, Sriniketan, Jhargram, Jalpaiguri & Kalimpong. One new CCM at Malda, District Malda has been set up and it is starting its work shortly. 20 Week Diploma Courses as well as short term courses were conducted at CCMs. 323 courses were held at various CCMs in which there were 7600 participants comprised of SC/ST and females.

Member Education Programmes are conducted at grass root level i.e. society level by DCEIs (District Cooperative Education Instructors) engaged in every district cooperative union. 2384 classes were organised in which there were 76521 participants comprising of SC/ST, minorities and women.

International Cooperative Day was observed

on Saturday, the 6<sup>th</sup> July, 2019. The role of cooperatives in sustainable development was discussed by the cooperators and members of cooperatives.

The West Bengal State Cooperative Union observed the 66<sup>th</sup> All India Cooperative Week from 14.11.2019 at Kolkata. The programme was inaugurated by the Hon'ble Minister In Charge, Cooperation, Sri Arup Roy. Sri Swarna Kamal Saha, MLA & the Hon'ble Chairman presided over the programme.

State and District level debates and quiz competitions were also organized for the students of Class IX- XII by the West Bengal State Cooperative Union. The winners and runners of the district level debates & quiz competitions took part in the state level competition. The state level quiz competition was held on 20.12.2019.

The monthly Cooperative Journal "BHANDAR" continued to be published every month.

West Bengal State Cooperative Union has maintained it's close contact with the societies of different districts and worked hard for the socioeconomic development of the members.



West Bengal Urban Cooperative Banks and Credit Societies Ltd.

During the year under report the Federation undertook the following activities.

#### **Training**

The Federation organised Two (Days Training programme of Urban Cooperative Banks in West Bengal on 06<sup>th</sup> & 07<sup>th</sup> January, 2020 on the subject related to Assets and Liability Management, Management of N.P.A. and A Case Exercise on ALM. Management and high officials of the urban co-operative banks attended from different States attended the programme.

The Federation also organised 02 Days Training programme of urban co-operative banks in West Bengal on 27<sup>th</sup> & 28<sup>th</sup> February, 2020 at Kolkata, on the subject "Digital Banking and Threats associated with it".

The Federation organised 42 Annual General Meeting of the Federation on 30<sup>th</sup> August, 2019 at Kolkata.

The Federation celebrated the 3<sup>rd</sup> Day of All India Co-operative Week en the 16<sup>th</sup> November, 2019 Highlighting the subject "**Re-orienting Training and Education through success stories**" at Kalkata. The occasion event was attended by a good number of members of urban cooperative banks and credit societies from different corners of the State.

During the year one review meeting with the representatives of the urban co-operative banks of the State was held on 18-01-2020. The meeting was held at Kolkata. The meeting touched upon such topics as position of total deposits and its deployment, position of outstanding and overdue loans, management of the Bank, Locker, A.T.M etc, position of Audit and maintenance of accounts, business planning and diversification etc.

The Federation attended and participated in the 46 State Level TAFCUB Meeting at Reserve Bank of India, Kolkata Office on 25 June, 2019.

Celebration of Silver Jubilee of Directorate of Cooperative Audit Employees' Cooperative Credit Society Limited, West Bengal was organised on 27 September, 2019 at the Kolkata office. The

federation participated in the 43<sup>rd</sup> Annual General Meeting of NAFCUB at New Delhi on 28 September, 2019 Shri Pratap Narayan Paria, Hon'ary Chief Executive Officer/Secretary of the Federation attended the Awards programme of "Frontiers in Co-operative Banking Awards (F.C.B.A-2019). He was honored as the Best C.E.O. In the (F.C.B.A-2019) held at Goa on 18<sup>th</sup> and 19<sup>th</sup> September, 2019.

Shri Pratap Narayan Paria, Hon'ble Chief Executive and Secretary of the Federation attended the 55th Meeting of Academy for Cooperative Management, Research and Training (ACMART).

Shri Satyabrata Samanta, Hon'ble Chairman and Shri Pratap Narayan Paria. Hon'ble Secretary of the Federation attended and participated in the 47 TAFCUB Meeting at Reserve Bank of India, Kolkata Office on 17th February, 2020.

During the period, Federation authorities kept constant liaison with the member organisations, heard their problems, if any, and tried to solve these problem as early as possible. The federation also kept regular liaison with the Co-operation Directorate and Co-operation Department, Government of West Bengal and also Reserve Bank of India, and sought their advice in solving the problems of the members.





**APPENDIX** 

# NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA List of Members of the Governing Council (As on 31.03.2020)

1. Dr. Chandrapal Singh Yadav, MP

President

President, National Cooperative Union of India, 466, Masiha Ganj, Sipri Bazar, Jhansi (U.P.)

2. Dr. Bijender Singh, Ex-MLA

Vice-President

President, Delhi State Coop. Bank Ltd., 31, Netaji Subhash Marg, Daryagani, New Delhi-110 002

3. Shri G.H. Amin Vice-President

President, Gujarat State Cooperative Union, Shilp Park, Behind Bandhu Samaj Society, Usmanpura, Ahmedabad – 380 013 (Gujarat)

4. Shri K. Sivadasan Nair, Ex-MLA

Member

Chairman, National Cooperative Agriculture & Rural Development Banks' Federation Ltd. 701, A-Wing, BSEL Tech Park (Opp. Railway Station), Vashi Navi Mumbai – 400703

5. Shri Balvinder Singh Nakai

Member

Chairman, Indian Farmers Fertilizer Cooperative Ltd., IFFCO, Sadan, C-1, District Centre, Saket Place.

New Delhi-110017

6. Shri V. R. Boda

Member

Director, National Coop. Consumer Federation Ltd., Path, Harihar Nagar, 2 Ravapar Road Morvi, Rajkot-363641 Gujarat

7. Shri S.N. Sharma, MLA

Member

Chairman, National Coop. Housing Federation of India Ltd., 6A/6, Siri Fort Institutional Area,

August Kranti Marg,

New Delhi -110049

8. Shri H. K. Patil, MLA

Member

Director, National Federation of Urban Coop. Banks & Credit Societies Ltd.
B-14, 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor, A-Block Shopping Complex,

Name in a Wilson Disas Day of

Naraina Vihar, Ring Road,

New Delhi-110 028

9. Shri V.P. Singh

Member

President, Delhi State Cooperative Union 9/3 Sarve Priya Vihar, New Delhi-110016 10. Shri Kiran Kakati Member

President, Assam State Cooperative Union

Institute of Cooperative Management

VIP Road, Hengarabari,

Guwahati-781036 (Assam)

11. Shri Ramachandra Govind Naik Mule Member

Chairman, Goa Pradesh Rajya Sahakari Sangh Ltd.,

Davanand Smriti. IInd Floor.

Swami Vivekanand Road,

Panaji- 403001 (Goa)

12. Shri Swarna Kamal Saha, MLA Member

Chairman, West Bengal State Cooperative Union

Acharyya Prafulla Chandra Samabaya Bhavan,

DD-18/6, Bidhannagar,

Sector-1, Kolkata- 700 064 (W.B.)

13. Shri Rajendra Singh Negi Member

Director, Uttarakhand State Cooperative Union Ltd.

A-8 Palam City, Near T.P. Nagar, Dewal Choaud,

Haldwani District – Nainital (Uttrakhand)

Shri Devinder Singh Thakur 14.

Member

Chairman,

Himachal Pradesh State Coop. Development Federation Ltd.

Sahakar Bhavan, Near Dogra Lodge,

Shimla- 171 004 (H.P)

15. Shri Gurpratap Singh Khushalpur Member

Chairman,

The Punjab State Coop. Labour & Construction Federation Ltd.

S.C.O. No. 2, Industrial Area, Phase II,

Chandigarh 160 001

16. **Shri Pramod Kumar Singh**  Member

Chairman, Farmer's Agri Business Coop. Society Ltd.

53/11, Rajpur Road, Dehradun – 248 001 (Uttrakhand)

17. Shri Jyotindra Mansukhalal Mehta Govt. Nominee

Chairman, Rajkot Nagarik Sahakari Bank Ltd.

301, Royal Orchid, 3/8, Geet Gurjari Society,

Near Airport,

Rajkot- 360001 (Gujarat)

Shri T. Prasad Rao Dora 18.

Co-opted Member

President

National Fereration of Fishers Cooperatives Ltd.

(FISHCOPFED)

7, Institutional Area, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi-110076

19. Shri N. Satyanarana **Ex-officio Member** 

Chief Executive, National Cooperative Union of India

3, Siri Institutional Area, August Kranti Marg,

New Delhi- 110016



Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, President, NCUI and Vice-President, ICA – AP with Ms. Chitose Arai, Vice-President, Japan Consumer Cooperative Union and Vice-President, ICA – AP with other women leaders of the Asia Pacific Region during the International Workshop organized at NCUI in August 2019



A view of the distinguished gathering on the occasion of NCUI Annual General Body Meeting.



3 Siri Institutional Area, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi-110016
Telephone: 26861988, 26861472 Fax: 011-26863248, 011-26865350
Email: mailncui@india.coop
Website: www.ncui.coop